










sa
fe

 h
a
rb

ou
r

Al
ex

is 
Al

ve
y

M
as

te
rs

 P
ro

je
ct

FI
U

 S
pr

in
g 

20
17

cr
ea

ti
ng

 a
 w

a
lk

a
bl

e 
su

rf
si
de

1H



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  
2

P
ro

je
ct

 S
ta

te
m
en

t

•  
Inc

re
as

e c
on

ne
cti

vit
y w

ith
in 

the
 ur

ba
n f

ab
ric

•  
Cr

ea
te 

en
joy

ab
le,

 co
mf

or
tab

le,
 ou

tdo
or

 pu
bli

c s
pa

ce
s

•  
Re

-d
es

ign
 m

ajo
r r

oa
dw

ay
s t

o c
re

ate
 ne

igh
bo

ho
od

-fr
ien

dly
 st

re
ets

  Ho
w 

ca
n 

lan
ds

ca
pe

 a
rc

hit
ec

tu
re

 cr
ea

te
 a

 w
alk

ab
le 

ne
igh

bo
rh

oo
d,

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 p

ed
es

tri
an

 sa
fe

ty,
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

ne
ed

s o
f t

he
 co

m
m

un
ity

, a
nd

 b
rin

g 
ec

on
om

ic 
gr

ow
th

 to
 

m
ain

 st
re

et
? 



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  


S
it
e 

A
na

ly
si
s 

- 
C
ir
cu

la
ti
on

0
50

0
1,

00
0

25
0

Fe
et

N

20
15

 A
ve

ra
ge

 D
ail

y #
 of

 V
eh

icl
es

 
on

 S
tat

e R
oa

ds
   (

So
ur

ce
: F

DO
T)

Ma
in 

Pe
de

str
ian

 R
ou

tes
 to

 S
yn

ag
og

ue
s &

Lo
ng

es
t P

ote
nti

al 
Ro

ute
 in

 S
ur

fsi
de

 - 
1.5

 M
ile

s

Al
l S

ide
wa

lks
 W

ith
in 

Su
rfs

ide
1/4

 M
ile

 W
alk

 fr
om

 S
ur

fsi
de

 S
yn

ag
og

ue
s

96
th 

St
 - 

25
,50

0

Collins Ave - 24,500

Harding Ave - 26,500 
A1A -
50,000



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  


S
it
e 

A
na

ly
si
s 

- 
S
tr

ee
t 

C
on

di
ti
on

s

Ty
pic

al 
Re

sid
en

tia
l S

tre
et

Do
wn

tow
n H

ar
din

g A
ve

nu
e

Co
llin

s A
ve

nu
e



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  


S
it
e 

A
na

ly
si
s 

- 
S
tr

ee
t 

C
on

di
ti
on

s

5’ 

49
’ 

5’ 

3 L
an

e S
tre

et
 w

ith
 1 

St
re

et
sid

e P
ar

kin
g

Si
de

wa
lk

Si
de

wa
lk

Bi
ke5’ 

Pu
bli

c R
OW

38
’ 

2 L
an

e S
tre

et
 w

ith
 2 

St
re

et
sid

e P
ar

kin
g

Pu
bli

c R
OW

2 T
ra

ffic
 La

ne
s

8’ 

53
’ 

3 L
an

e S
tre

et
 w

ith
 2 

St
re

et
sid

e P
ar

kin
g

Si
de

wa
lk

Si
de

wa
lk

Bi
ke5’ 

3 T
ra

ffic
 La

ne
s

11
’ 

3 T
ra

ffic
 La

ne
s

12
’ 

8’ 
Pa

rki
ng

10
’ 

11
’ 

8’ Pa
rki

ng

8’ 

8’ 
8’ 

8’ 
8’ 

11
’ 

11
’ 

Pa
rki

ng
Pa

rki
ng

12
’ 

12
’ 

8’ 
Pa

rki
ng



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  


S
it
e 

A
na

ly
si
s 

- 
P
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

C
on

ce
rn

s

Po
or

 C
on

ne
cti

vit
y

Inh
os

pit
ab

le 
Mi

cro
cli

ma
te

No
 S

ha
de

Ex
ce

ss
 H

ea
t

La
ck

 of
 S

pa
ce

 fo
r A

cti
ve

 S
tre

et 
Lif

e

Po
or

 B
ea

ch
 an

d B
ay

 C
on

ne
cti

vit
y



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  
7

S
it
e 

A
na

ly
si
s 

- 
P
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

C
on

ce
rn

s

Inh
os

pit
ab

le 
Mi

cro
cli

ma
te

St
aff

 &
 P

oli
ce

 N
ee

de
d t

o H
elp

 w
ith

 
Cr

os
sin

g H
igh

 V
olu

me
 Tr

affi
c R

oa
ds

Ins
uffi

cie
nt 

Cr
os

sin
gs

Sa
fet

y I
ss

ue
s

No
 S

ide
wa

lks
 in

 R
es

ide
nti

al 
Ar

ea
s

To
o N

ar
ro

w 
Si

de
wa

lks
 &

 F
as

t T
ra

ffic



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  


C
on

ne
ct

iv
it
y 

&
 m

ic
ro

cl
im

a
te

 p
la

ns

0
50

0
1,

00
0

25
0

Fe
et

Im
pr

ov
ed

 In
ter

se
cti

on
 / C

ro
ss

wa
lk

Pe
de

str
ian

 C
irc

ula
tio

n E
nh

an
ce

me
nt

Bi
ke

 La
ne

Op
en

 S
pa

ce
 E

nh
an

ce
me

nt

0
50

0
1,

00
0

25
0

Fe
et

Gr
ee

n P
ed

es
tria

n C
or

rid
or

Sh
ad

e S
tru

ctu
re

s
W

ate
r F

ea
tur

e



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  


M
a
st

er
 P

la
n

En
ha

nc
ed

 C
on

ne
cti

vit
y &

Pe
de

str
ian

 an
d B

ike
 S

afe
ty

Pe
de

str
ian

 C
irc

ula
tio

n E
nh

an
ce

me
nt

Op
en

 S
pa

ce
 E

nh
an

ce
me

nt

Im
pr

ov
ed

 In
ter

se
cti

on
 / C

ro
ss

wa
lk

Bi
ke

 La
ne

s

Gr
ee

n P
ed

es
tria

n C
or

rid
or

s
Ex

ist
ing

 S
tre

et 
Gr

id

Sh
ad

e S
tru

ctu
re

s
W

ate
r F

ea
tur

es

En
ha

nc
ed

 P
ed

es
tria

n 
Mi

cro
cli

ma
te



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  
10

0
50

0
1,

00
0

25
0

Fe
et

B
ea

ch
 &

 B
a
y 

C
on

ne
ct

iv
it
y 

- 
Im

pl
em

en
te

d

N

Pu
bli

c B
ay

 A
cc

es
s a

t 9
4th

 S
t.

Mu
nic

ipa
l P

ar
k

Pu
bli

c B
ea

ch
 A

cc
es

s
Pu

bli
c B

ay
 A

cc
es

s
Al

ley
wa

y
Pu

bli
c B

ea
ch

 A
cc

es
s a

t 8
8th

 S
t.



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  
11

P
ub

li
c 

B
a
y 

A
cc

es
s 

- 
E
xi
ti
ng

N



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  
12

P
ub

li
c 

B
a
y 

A
cc

es
s 

- 
P
ro

po
se

d



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  
1

P
ub

li
c 

B
ea

ch
 A

cc
es

s 
- 

E
xi
st

in
g

N



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  
1

P
ub

li
c 

B
ea

ch
 A

cc
es

s 
- 

P
ro

po
se

d



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  
1

P
ro

je
ct

 F
oc

us
 A

re
a

N



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  
1

P
ro

je
ct

 F
oc

us
 A

re
a

N

Co
llin

s A
ve

.

Ha
rd

ing
 A

ve
.

95
th 

St
re

et



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  
17

F
oc

us
 A

re
a
 -

 L
a
nd

 U
se

N

Mu
lti-

Fa
mi

ly 
Re

sid
en

tia
l

Ho
tel

Co
mm

er
cia

l
Po

st 
Of

fic
e

Th
e S

hu
l

Pu
bli

c P
ar

kin
g (

29
7 T

ota
l S

po
ts)

Pa
rki

ng
 fo

r D
es

ign
ate

d C
om

me
ric

al 
Es

tab
lis

hm
en

t (
77

 To
tal

 S
po

ts)
 

40
 P

ar
kin

g S
po

ts

13
 P

ar
kin

g S
po

ts

60
 P

ar
kin

g S
po

ts

22
 P

ar
kin

g S
po

ts

24
 P

ar
kin

g S
po

ts

21
5 P

ar
kin

g S
po

ts



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  
1

H
a
rd

in
g
 A

ve
 -

 C
om

m
er

ci
a
l 

U
se

N

Ba
nk

Sa
lon

 (H
air

, N
ail

, W
ax

, B
ar

be
r)

Fo
od

 E
sta

bli
sh

me
nt 

(R
es

tau
ra

nt,
 C

afe
, D

eli
, T

ak
e-

Ou
t, C

off
ee

 S
ho

p)
Gr

oc
er

y /
 Li

qu
or

 S
tor

e 
Re

tai
l (B

oti
qu

e, 
Je

we
ler

, S
ho

es
, B

rid
al,

 G
las

se
s)

Ot
he

r S
er

vic
e (

Ta
ilo

r, D
oc

tor
, V

et)

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

Va
ca

nt

Cl
oth

ing
 B

oti
qu

e

Ar
t G

all
er

y

Cl
oth

ing
 B

oti
qu

e

Do
cto

r

Cl
oth

ing
 B

oti
qu

e

& 
Re

sta
ur

an
t



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  
1

H
a
rd

in
g
 A

ve
 -

 C
om

m
er

ci
a
l 

U
se

Va
ca

nt

Cl
oth

ing
 B

oti
qu

e

Ar
t G

all
er

y

Cl
oth

ing
 B

oti
qu

e

“S
ur

ve
ys

 in
 ci

tie
s a

cr
os

s t
he

 U
.S

. in
di

ca
te

 
th

at
 co

ns
um

er
s a

re
 w

illi
ng

 to
 sp

en
d 

9%
 to

 
12

%
 m

or
e f

or
 g

oo
ds

 an
d 

se
rv

ice
s i

n 
ce

nt
ra

l 
bu

sin
es

s d
ist

ric
ts

 w
ith

 h
ig

h 
qu

ali
ty

 tr
ee

s.”
*

*S
ou

rce
: W

olf
, K

ath
lee

n L
. (

20
05

). 
Bu

sin
es

s d
ist

ric
t s

tre
ets

ca
pe

s, 
tre

es
, a

nd
 co

ns
um

er
 

re
sp

on
se

. J
ou

rn
al 

of
 F

or
es

try
 10

3(
8)

: 3
96

-4
00

.



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  
2
0

F
oc

us
 A

re
a
 -

 S
ha

de
 A

na
ly

si
s

N

8:0
0 A

M

12
:00

 P
M

4:0
0 P

M
8:0

0 P
M

Mi
d-

Ap
ril



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  
2
1

P
ro

po
se

d 
P
la

nt
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

Ca
no

py
 Tr

ee
s

N

Co
co

lob
a 

uv
ife

ra

Co
no

ca
rp

us
 e

re
ctu

s

Cu
sto

m
Sh

ad
e S

tru
ctu

re Si
m

ar
ou

ba
 g

lau
ca

Ly
sil

om
a 

lat
isi

liq
uu

m

Co
co

lob
a 

div
er

sif
oli

a

Ile
x c

as
sin

e

Be
ac

h C
on

ne
cti

on
 Tr

ee
s

Re
tai

l T
re

es



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  
2
2

P
ro

po
se

d 
S
ha

de
 S

tr
uc

tu
re

W
ins

pe
ar

 O
pe

ra
 H

ou
se

, D
all

as
 T

X
Ca

no
py

 D
es

ign
: F

os
ter

 +
 P

ar
tne

rs
Fa

br
ica

tio
n: 

Za
hn

er

N

*S
ou

rce
 - 

Th
e L

an
ds

ca
pe

 A
rch

ite
ctu

re
 F

ou
nd

ati
on

. 2
01

4. 
“T

he
 U

niv
er

sit
y o

f T
ex

as
 at

 A
rlin

gto
n’s

 
Ca

se
 S

tud
y I

nv
es

tig
ati

on
 20

14
: S

un
da

nc
e S

qu
ar

e P
laz

a, 
& 

AT
&T

 P
er

for
mi

ng
 A

rts
 C

en
ter

-E
lai

ne
 

an
d C

ha
rle

s S
am

mo
ns

 P
ar

k, 
Me

tho
do

log
y f

or
 La

nd
sc

ap
e P

er
for

ma
nc

e B
en

efi
ts.

” L
AF

 C
SI

 P
ro

gr
am

 
La

nd
sc

ap
e P

er
for

ma
nc

e S
er

ies
. 

“O
n 

av
er

ag
e, 

su
rfa

ce
 te

m
pe

ra
tu

re
s o

f 
co

nc
re

te
 b

en
ea

th
 th

e s
ha

de
 st

ru
ct

ur
e 

we
re

 17
  F

 le
ss

 th
an

 u
ns

ha
de

d 
ar

ea
s.”

* 

Cu
sto

m,
 H

igh
-G

ra
de

 
Al

um
inu

m,
 

Se
afo

am
 B

lue
,

Sh
ad

e S
tru

ctu
re



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  
2


P
ro

po
se

d 
C
ro

ss
w
a
lk

s
W

ins
pe

ar
 O

pe
ra

 H
ou

se
, D

all
as

 T
X

Ca
no

py
 D

es
ign

: F
os

ter
 +

 P
ar

tne
rs

Fa
br

ica
tio

n: 
Za

hn
er

Hi
gh

-V
isi

bil
ity

 C
ro

ss
wa

lk

Su
rfs

ide
-S

tyl
ize

d C
ro

ss
wa

lk

N

Hi
gh

-V
isi

bil
ity

 C
ro

ss
wa

lk
Su

rfs
ide

-S
tyl

ize
d C

ro
ss

wa
lk

Re
gu

lar
 C

ro
ss

wa
lk 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
Ha

rd
ing

 A
ve

 / B
ea

ch
 C

on
ne

cti
on

 C
or

rid
or

      
      

      
      

      
      

      
      

      
   



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  
2


H
ig

h-
V
is
ib
il
it
y 

C
ro

ss
w
a
lk

Ov
er

he
ad

 
Tr

affi
c 

Lig
ht

Sa
fe 

Di
sta

nc
e 

St
op

 B
ar

Fla
sh

ing
 

Pe
de

str
ian

 
Si

gn
s

Pe
de

str
ian

Co
un

tdo
wn

Si
gn

al

Em
be

dd
ed

 
Pa

ve
me

nt
W

ar
nin

g L
igh

ts

Si
de

wa
lk 

Bu
mp

-o
uts

wi
th 

Bi
os

wa
les

Ex
ten

de
d

Cr
os

sw
alk

 
wi

th 
Pa

ve
rs



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  
2


S
ur

fs
id
e-

S
ty

li
ze

d 
C
ro

ss
w
a
lk

Ov
er

he
ad

 
Tr

affi
c 

Lig
ht

Sa
fe 

Di
sta

nc
e 

St
op

 B
ar

Fla
sh

ing
 

Pe
de

str
ian

 
Si

gn
s

Pe
de

str
ian

Co
un

tdo
wn

Si
gn

al

Em
be

dd
ed

 
Co

lor
ed

W
ar

nin
g L

igh
ts

Ex
ten

de
d

Cr
os

sw
alk

 w
ith

 
Re

cy
cle

d G
las

s 
Co

nc
re

te



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  
2


P
ro

po
se

d 
C
ro

ss
w
a
lk

s 
- 

Im
pl

em
en

te
d

Co
llin

s A
ve

 H
igh

-V
isi

bil
ity

 In
ter

se
cti

on

Ha
rd

ing
 A

ve
 S

ur
fsi

de
-S

tyl
ize

d I
nte

rse
cti

on

N

Hi
gh

-V
isi

bil
ity

 In
ter

se
cti

on
Su

rfs
ide

-S
tyl

ize
d I

nte
rse

cti
on

Re
gu

lar
 In

ter
se

cti
on

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
Ha

rd
ing

 A
ve

 / B
ea

ch
 C

on
ne

cti
on

 C
or

rid
or

      
      

      
      

      
      

      
      

      
   



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  
2
7

C
ol

li
ns

 A
ve

 -
 E

xi
st

in
g

 0 
    

   5
    

   1
0  

    
    

    
  2

0’

 5’
 5’

 5’
 8’

 12
’

 12
’

 12
’

 S
ide

wa
lk  P

ar
kin

g /
Tu

rn
ing

 
La

ne

 3 
Tr

affi
c 

La
ne

s

Bi
ke

La
ne

 S
ide

wa
lk

N



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  
2


C
ol

li
ns

 A
ve

 -
 P

ro
po

se
d

 0 
    

   5
    

   1
0  

    
    

    
  2

0’

 5’
 6’

 10
’

 7’
 10

’
 10

’
 11

’

Co
ve

re
d 

Si
de

wa
lk

 R
ed

uc
ed

 
La

ne
 

W
idt

h

 B
us

 / T
ru

ck
La

ne

St
re

et 
Lig

hti
ng

 &
 

Fu
rn

itu
re

Ad
de

d
 S

ha
de

Tr
ee

s

Bu
ffe

re
d

Bi
ke

 La
ne

Ex
ten

de
d

Si
de

wa
lk

N



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  
2


C
ol

li
ns

 A
ve

 C
ro

ss
w
a
lk

 -
 E

xi
st

in
g

N



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  

0

C
ol

li
ns

 A
ve

 C
ro

ss
w
a
lk

 -
 P

ro
po

se
d



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  

1

H
a
rd

in
g
 A

ve
 -

 E
xi
st

in
g

 0 
    

    
  5

    
    

  1
0  

    
    

    
    

   2
0’

 8’
 5’

 8’
 11

’
 10

’
 11

’

 P
ar

kin
g

La
ne

 3 
Tr

affi
c

La
ne

s
Pa

rki
ng

La
ne

N
 B

ike
La

ne

Si
de

wa
lk

 8’
 8’



Bu
ffe

re
d

Bi
ke

 La
ne

A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  

2

H
a
rd

in
g
 A

ve
 -

 P
ro

po
se

d

 0 
    

    
  5

    
    

  1
0  

    
    

    
    

   2
0’ 16

’
 6’

 16
’

 10
’

 10
’

 11
’

Co
ve

re
d 

Si
de

wa
lks

 R
ed

uc
ed

 
La

ne
 W

idt
h

 B
us

 / T
ru

ck
La

ne

St
re

et 
Lig

hti
ng

 &
 

Fu
rn

itu
re

Ad
de

d
Tr

ee
s

Ex
ten

de
d

Si
de

wa
lks

N



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  



H
a
rd

in
g
 A

ve
 C

ro
ss

w
a
lk

 -
 E

xi
st

in
g

N



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  



H
a
rd

in
g
 A

ve
 C

ro
ss

w
a
lk

 -
 P

ro
po

se
d



A
le

xi
s 

A
lv

ey
 -

 M
a
st

er
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 F

IU
 S

pr
in

g
 2

0
17

 -
 S

a
fe

 H
a
rb

ou
r 

  



S
um

m
a
ry

 -
 P

ro
je

ct
 B

en
ef

it
s

Inc
re

as
ed

 co
nn

ec
tiv

ity
 w

ith
in 

the
 ur

ba
n f

ab
ric

Inc
re

as
ed

 M
ult

i-M
od

al 
Mo

bil
ity

  -
  R

ec
on

ne
cte

d t
o W

ate
r  

-  
En

ha
nc

ed
 P

ub
lic

 O
pe

n S
pa

ce
 

Cr
ea

ted
 en

joy
ab

le,
 co

mf
or

tab
le,

 ou
tdo

or
 pu

bli
c s

pa
ce

s
Inc

re
as

ed
 S

ha
de

  -
  D

ec
re

as
ed

 H
ea

t  E
xp

er
ien

ce
 - 

 P
ro

vid
ed

 O
as

is 

Re
-d

es
ign

ed
 m

ajo
r r

oa
dw

ay
s t

o c
re

ate
 ne

igh
bo

rh
oo

d-
frie

nd
ly 

str
ee

ts
 Ac

co
mm

od
ate

d P
ed

es
tria

ns
 &

 B
icy

cle
s  

-  
Pr

om
ote

d S
afe

 &
 E

ffic
ien

t V
eh

icl
e T

ra
ffic

 F
low

  -
  F

os
ter

ed
 S

ma
ll B

us
ine

ss
 G

ro
wt

h

Ho
w 

ca
n 

lan
ds

ca
pe

 a
rc

hit
ec

tu
re

 cr
ea

te
 a

 w
alk

ab
le 

ne
igh

bo
rh

oo
d,

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 p

ed
es

tri
an

 
sa

fe
ty,

 m
ee

t t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f t
he

 co
m

m
un

ity
, a

nd
 b

rin
g 

ec
on

om
ic 

gr
ow

th
 to

 m
ain

 st
re

et
? 



Town of Surfside 
Town Commission Meeting 

MINUTES 
June 13, 2017 

 7 p.m.  
Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 

Surfside, FL  33154 

1. Opening

A. Call to Order
Mayor Dietch called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 

B. Roll Call of Members 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa called the roll with the following members present: 
Mayor Daniel Dietch, Vice Mayor Barry Cohen, Commissioner Tina Paul, 
Commissioner Michael Karukin and Commissioner Daniel Gielchinsky. 

C. Pledge of Allegiance  
Police Chief Allen led the Pledge of Allegiance.   

D. Mayor and Commission Remarks – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
Vice Mayor Cohen welcomed everyone and said the free reflective vests are available 
to the community. 

E. Agenda and Order of Business Additions, deletions and linkages 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to move Item 5A up to 8:00 p.m. before Good 
and Welfare.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Paul and all voted in 
favor. 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to link Item 9C with Item 9F.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Gielchinsky and all voted in favor. 
Commissioner Gielchinsky made a motion to move Item 4A1 after 5A and directly to 
public comments.  Passing the gavel, the motion received a second from Mayor 
Dietch and all voted in favor. 

F. Community Notes – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
The Mayor announced recognitions the town had received. The Mayor announced 
upcoming community events which can be found in the Gazette and on the Town’s 
website.    

G. State Representative Joseph Geller – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Representative Geller gave an overview on the legislative session. 

H. Town Lobbyist Fausto Gomez Legislative Session Overview– Guillermo 
Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Mr. Gomez gave a brief update of what has been happening in Tallahassee.  Mr. 
Gomez addressed questions from the Commission. 

3A



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

June 13, 2017 
 

  

2 
  

 

I. Proclamation Presentation to Julia Magnani – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
Mayor Dietch read the proclamation and thanked Julia Magnani for all she has done 
for the community. 
 

J. GFOA Budget Award – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Town Manager Olmedillo read a letter from the Government Finance Officers 
Association     recognizing Finance Director Don Nelson and his staff and awarding 
them a Distinguished Budget Presentation Award. This is the second year that the 
Town has received this award.   
 

K. Police Department Verbal Update – David Allen, Chief of Police 
Chief Allen gave an update on police activities. 
 

2. Quasi-Judicial Hearings (None) 
Mayor Dietch said for the record, there was a quasi-judicial hearing regarding 90th Street 
and Abbott. There are two blank walls and they will be cutting in windows and putting in 
landscaping. 
 

3. Consent Agenda  
Commissioner Karukin pulled Item 7 from the Town Manager’s Report.  Commissioner 
Karukin made a motion to approve the consent agenda minus the pulled item.  The 
motion received a second from Commissioner Gielchinsky and the motion carried 4-0 
with Commissioner Paul absent. 

A. Minutes –  Sandra Novoa, MMC, Town Clerk   
 May 9, 2017 Regular Town Commission Meeting Minutes 
 

            *B. Town Manager’s Report – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager  
      

1. See Click Fix 
2. Public Information Policy and Plan 
3. Development Application Status 
4. Building Department 
5. Code Compliance 
6. Finance 
7. Information Technology 
8. Police Department 

 
            *C. Town Attorney’s Report – Linda Miller, Town Attorney  
 

         D.  Committee Reports – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
 
  - April 27, 2017 Sustainability Subcommittee Meeting Minutes 
  - April 27, 2017 Planning and Zoning Board Meeting Minutes 
 

Pulled Item 7 from the consent agenda– Commissioner Karukin requests that the ERP 
Project be added to the Manager’s Report.   
 



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

June 13, 2017 
 

  

3 
  

 

 Mayor Dietch said there was a Scribner error in the minutes which said Vice Mayor Paul 
and should be Commissioner Paul. 

 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to accept the pulled item.  The motion received a 
second from Commissioner Gielchinsky and the motion passed 4-0 with Commissioner 
Paul absent. 

 
 Mayor Dietch took the opportunity to thank Town Attorney Miller for her service to the 

community. 
  

E. Mutual Aid Agreement between the City of North Miami Police and the Town of 
Surfside Police – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 

  
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
ACKNOWLEDGING THE MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF NORTH MIAMI POLICE DEPARTMENT AND THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE POLICE DEPARTMENT; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN 
MANAGER AND CHIEF OF POLICE TO EXECUTE AND IMPLEMENT 
THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT; 
PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION AND APPROVAL; PROVIDING 
FOR IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Approved on consent. 

 
 F. Nurse Enhancement Initiative – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 

  
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF MIAMI 
BEACH, NORTH BAY VILLAGE, THE TOWN OF BAY HARBOR ISLANDS, 
THE VILLAGE OF BAL HARBOUR AND THE MIAMI BEACH CHAMBER 
EDUCATION FOUNDATION TO IMPLEMENT THE NURSE 
ENHANCEMENT INITIATIVE FOR SCHOOL YEAR 2017/2018; 
PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING FOR 
IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 Approved on consent. 
 

G. Interlocal Agreement for NPDES Co-Permit No. FLS000003 - Guillermo 
Olmedillo, Town Manager 

  
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA APPROVING THE RENEWAL OF THE 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEN CO-PERMITTEES NAMED IN 
NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM PERMIT 
NO. FLS000003 AND MIAMI-DADE COUNTY; AND ALSO BETWEEN ALL 
CO-PERMITTEES; PROVIDING FOR IDENTIFICATION AND CONTROL 
OF POLLUTANT DISCHARGES IN SHARED MUNICIPAL SEPARATE 



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

June 13, 2017 
 

  

4 
  

 

STORM SEWER SYSTEMS; PROVIDING FOR APPROVAL AND 
AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 Approved on consent. 
 

H. Certificate and Coin Request for Jake Rubin – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
 Approved on consent. 

 
4. Ordinances  

 
A. Second Reading Ordinances 

 
1. Amended Beach Furniture Ordinance – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town 

Manager 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 86 “WATERWAYS”; 
ARTICLE II, “PUBLIC BEACHES”, SPECIFICALLY AMENDING 
SECTION 86-26 “DEFINITIONS”; SPECIFICALLY AMENDING 
SECTION 86-31 “BEACH FURNITURE PERMIT REQUIREMENTS”; 
SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 86-33 “VIOLATIONS, CIVIL 
FINES AND PENALTIES”; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE 
CODE; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the ordinance.  Town Town Manager 
Olmedillo gave a visual presentation. 

 
Commissioner Paul made a motion to discuss.  The motion received a second 
from Commissioner Karukin. 
 
Mayor Dietch read the regulations for public speakers and then opened the 
public hearing. 
The following public speakers addressed the Commission on the item giving 
their views. 
-Jeffery Platt 
-Marianne Meischied 
-Deborah Cimadevilla 
-Manty Sabates Morse  
-Luciadia Bololla 
-Mario Luski (stated his name and address and had an interpreter give his 
statement) 
-Elizabeth Maiche 
-Joel Simmonds  
-Elizabeth Cimadevilla 
-Yuri Fridman 



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

June 13, 2017 
 

  

5 
  

 

-Silvia Coltrane 
-April Pullo 
-Maria Diaz 
-Arthur Holman 
-Robert Davison 
-Neison Kasdin 
-George Kousoulas 
No one else wishing to speak the Mayor closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Paul had a correction as some condo regulation language was 
omitted and she presented a paragraph with new wording to be part of the 
ordinance.  Commissioner Gielchinsky gave background information on 
littoral rights of beachfront condo ownership.  The Commission responded to 
public comments and gave their views on the item including pre-set chairs and 
who would require permits. 
 
Regarding setups, Mayor Dietch would like to give the right to the Town 
Manager to approve what the beach furniture looks like (color and style).  
There was discussion to revise the definition of Beach Furniture Operator to 
include condos. 
 
Commissioner Paul left the meeting at 10:31 p.m. 
 
The Mayor read into the record the revisions to the ordinance discussed by the 
Town Commission.  Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the six changes to be 
made. 
 
The Mayor opened the public hearing and no one wishing to speak the Mayor 
closed the public hearing.   
 
Commissioner Gielchinsky made a motion to approve with changes read back 
by the Town Clerk.  The motion received a second from Commissioner 
Karukin.  The motion passed 3-1 with Vice Mayor Cohen voting in opposition 
and Commissioner Paul absent. 
 

 First Reading Ordinances 
 

 5.  Resolutions and Proclamations 
 

 
A.  Regional Hybrid Skatepark and Pumptrack Initiative – Guillermo 

Olmedillo, Town Manager 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER TO 
ENTER INTO A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (“MOU”) 
WITH THE CITY OF SUNNY ISLES BEACH TO SUPPORT A 
REGIONAL HYBRID SKATEPARK AND PUMPTRACK INITIATIVE IN 



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

June 13, 2017 
 

  

6 
  

 

HAULOVER PARK, MIAMI-DADE COUNTY WITH COORDINATION 
FROM MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, THE CITY OF SUNNY ISLES BEACH, 
CITY OF MIAMI BEACH, BAL HARBOUR VILLAGE AND THE TOWN 
OF BAY HARBOR ISLANDS; AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2016-
2017 ANNUAL BUDGET AUTHORIZING THE APPROPRIATION OF UP 
TO $50,000 FROM THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND, 
SKATEPARK CONTRIBUTION, ACCOUNT NO. 301-4400-572-8110 TO 
THE CITY OF SUNNY ISLES BEACH TO BE DISBURSED UPON 
EXECUTION OF THE MOU; PROVIDING FOR APPROVAL AND 
AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; AND  
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the resolution.   
 

Commissioner Gielchinsky made a motion to approve.  The motion received a 
second from Commissioner Karukin and all voted in favor. 

 
 

B. Approval to proceed with A & B Pipe for the purchase of checkmate 
valves for water outfalls – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 ANNUAL 
BUDGET; APPROPRIATING FUNDS NOT TO EXCEED THE AMOUNT OF 
$45,280.00 FROM THE STORM WATER FUND RESERVES ACCOUNT NO. 
404-0000-391-1000 TO THE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE ACCOUNT NO. 404-
5500-538-4603; AUTHORIZATION TO WAIVE COMPETITIVE BIDDING; 
AUTHORIZATION OF THE EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS FOR THE PURCHASE 
OF TIDEFLEX CHECKMATE VALVES FROM A&B PIPE & SUPPLY; 
PROVIDING FOR APPROVAL AND AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING FOR 
IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the resolution.   
 

Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve.  The motion received a second 
from Commissioner Gielchinsky and the motion passed 4-0 with Commissioner 
Paul absent. 

   
      6.  Good and Welfare  

Mayor Dietch opened the public speaking. 
Public Speakers 
-  The Mayor called Dr. Marvin Shuster, however he had already left the meeting. 
- George Kousoulas spoke in favor of Town Attorney Miller and Assistant Town 

Attorney Jane Graham and thanked them for their service. 
- Ruben Valdivia spoke about a courtesy notice received from Code Compliance                   

regarding his synthetic grass. 
-  Mandyf Davenport spoke about gating and sidewalks. 
-  Jeffery Platt spoke on police issues. 
-  Charles Ness spoke on shrubbery issues and also supports gating.  



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

June 13, 2017 
 

  

7 
  

 

-  Victor May spoke on several issues including the red-light cameras. 
No one else wishing to speak the Mayor closed Good and Welfare. 
 
The Commission addressed some of the comments by the public and regarding the red-
light cameras (which are being removed). Mayor Dietch said the town never spent more 
money than what was taken in. 
  

7. Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports 
Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports have been moved to the Consent Agenda –  
 Item 3.   
  

8. Unfinished Business and New Business 
 

9. Mayor, Commission and Staff Communications 
 

A. Policy for Funding for Non-For-Profit Organization – Guillermo Olmedillo, 
Town Manager 
Town Manager Olmedillo presented the item and Commissioner Karukin had 
some issues with the policy.  Some changes were suggested and approved by 
consensus. 
 

B. Sustainability Incentives – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Town Manager Olmedillo presented the item.  The Commission discussed the 
item and Building Official Ross Prieto answered questions from the Commission. 
 
Vice Mayor Cohen made a motion to approve with staff recommendations.  The 
motion received a second from Commissioner Gielchinsky and the motion passed 
4-0 with Commissioner Paul absent. 
 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to extend the meeting an additional 30 
minutes. The motion received a second from Commissioner Gielchinsky and the 
motion passed 4-0 with Commissioner Paul absent. 
 

C. Agenda Deadline Dates – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager {Linked to Item 
9F} Town Manager Olmedillo presented the item and issues that may occur 
during the month of August.  After some discussion the consensus was to discuss 
the item during the July 11, 2017 meeting.    
 

D. Walkability and Pedestrian Improvements Trial - Guillermo Olmedillo, Town 
Manager 
Town Manager Olmedillo requested he meet with neighbors of 89th and 90th 
Street and come back to the Commission with the results of the meeting. The 
Manager’s meeting would be open to the general public. 
 
Public Speaker Deborah Cimadevilla asked how the meeting will be advertised 
and Town Manager Olmedillo said it would be posted on the town website.  The 
Mayor suggested e-blast and the Gazette, as well as all regular channels that 



Minutes
 Regular Commission Meeting 

June 13, 2017 

8 

announce a meeting.  Public Speaker Victor May said it was a great idea and had 
some suggestions. 

E. Miami Gardens Site – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Town Manager Olmedillo presented the item.  Neisen Kasdin representing the 
developer, gave background information and presented what the developer 
wishes.  The Commission discussed the item. 

Commissioner Gielchinsky made a motion to defer the item to the July 2017 
meeting.  The motion received a second from Vice Mayor Cohen and the motion 
passed 4-0 with Commissioner Paul absent. 

F. August Town Commission Meeting Discussion {Verbal} - Guillermo 
Olmedillo, Town Manager {Linked to Item 9C}  
Discussion occurred under item 9C. 

10. Adjournment

  Respectfully submitted, 

Accepted this _____day of ____________________, 2017 

________________________ 
Daniel Dietch, Mayor 

Attest: 

 _______________________ 
Sandra Novoa, MMC 
Town Clerk 



 
Town of Surfside 

Budget Workshop Meeting 
MINUTES 

June 15, 2017 
 5:00 p.m.  

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 
Surfside, FL  33154 

      
        

 

 

1. Opening        

A. Call to Order  
Mayor Dietch called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 
          

B. Roll Call of Members 
Deputy Clerk Elora Riera called the roll with the following members present:  Mayor 
Daniel Dietch, Commissioner Tina Paul and Commissioner Michael Karukin with 
Vice Mayor Barry Cohen and Commissioner Daniel Gielchinsky absent. 

    
C. Pledge of Allegiance  

Police Chief Allen led the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 

2. Discussion and Input of Upcoming FY 17-18 Budget – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town 
Manager 
Town Manager Olmedillo provided an overview of what will be discussed tonight which 
will include modifications for capital, equipment and fundamentally what is needed for 
staff support. 
 
Commissioner Gielchinsky and Vice Mayor Cohen arrived at this time. 
 
Finance Director Donald Nelson explained the schedule of budget meetings and provided 
information to the Town Commission regarding the proposed millage rate and 
modifications to the budget for FY 17-18. 

 
Discussion ensued amongst the Town Commission regarding any comments or concerns 
they had with the proposed budget. 
 
Mayor Dietch requested to see the five-year financial forecast at the next budget meeting. 
 

3.  Adjournment   
The meeting adjourned at 5:58 p.m.  

 
  Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 



   Minutes 
 Budget Workshop Meeting 

June 15, 2017 
 

  

2 
  

 

 

Accepted this _____day of ____________________, 2017 

 
 
 
 
       ________________________ 
       Daniel Dietch, Mayor 
Attest: 
 

 
 _______________________ 
Sandra Novoa, MMC 
Town Clerk 

 



 
Town of Surfside 

Special Commission Meeting 
MINUTES 

June 15, 2017 
 6:00 p.m.  

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 
Surfside, FL  33154 

      
        

 

 

1. Opening        

A. Call to Order  
Mayor Dietch called the meeting to order at 6:15 p.m. 
          

B. Roll Call of Members 
Deputy Clerk Elora Riera called the roll with the following members present:  Mayor 
Daniel Dietch, Commissioner Tina Paul, Commissioner Michael Karukin and 
Commissioner Daniel Gielchinsky with Vice Mayor Barry Cohen absent. 

    
C. Pledge of Allegiance  

Human Resources Director Yamileth Slate-McCloud led the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 

 Vice Mayor Cohen arrived at this time. 
 

2. Town Attorney Selection Process Discussion – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Town Manager Olmedillo provided an overview of the selection process that was decided 
by the Town Commission. 
 
Commissioner Karukin commented that since there were only three interested firms, he 
felt that the Town Commission should invite the firms to submit their quotes as soon as 
possible so the Town Commission can make a better educated decision. 
 
After some discussion, Commissioner Gielchinsky made a motion to provide a quote for 
the following scope of services: 
 
• Firms to submit a flat rate proposal for all services, excludes labor and litigation. 
• Not less than 3 days a week, full day (9-5pm) a mid-level associate in our offices. 
• The lead attorney (partner) to attend all Commission meetings, Planning and Zoning 

Board, Design Review Board (DRB) and Sustainability Sub Committee of the 
Planning and Zoning Board. 

• Not less than an associate level attorney to attend all Tourist Board meetings. 
• The Associate who manages the office should attend the Development Impact 

Committee (DIC) meetings. 
• Be specific if the fee to prepare Resolutions/Ordinances is included in the flat fee or if 

it’s separate (Re: to our Code section 90-11 & 12). 
 



   Minutes 
 Special Commission Meeting 

June 15, 2017 
 

  

2 
  

 

The proposals are to be submitted to the Town Manager by 5pm, Wednesday June 21, 
2017.  The proposals to be delivered to Town Commission by 9 am Thursday, June 22, 
2017. The motion received a second from Commission Karukin and all voted in favor. 
 

3.  Adjournment   
The meeting adjourned at 5:58 p.m.  

 
  Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 

 

Accepted this _____day of ____________________, 2017 

 
 
 
 
       ________________________ 
       Daniel Dietch, Mayor 
Attest: 
 

 
 _______________________ 
Sandra Novoa, MMC 
Town Clerk 

 



 
Town of Surfside 

Special Commission Meeting 
MINUTES 

June 22, 2017 
 6:00 p.m.  

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 
Surfside, FL  33154 

      
        

 

 

1. Opening        

A. Call to Order  
Mayor Dietch called the meeting to order at 6:04 p.m. 
          

B. Roll Call of Members 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa called the roll with the following members present:  
Mayor Daniel Dietch, Vice Mayor Barry Cohen, Commissioner Tina Paul, and 
Commissioner Michael Karukin.  Commissioner Gielchinsky was absent. 

    
C. Pledge of Allegiance  

Police Lieutenant John Bambis led the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 

 Commissioner Gielchinsky arrived at 6:08pm. 
 

2. Town Attorney Selection Process Discussion – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Mayor Dietch opened the meeting and asked each of the firms to provide an opening 
statement.   
 
Firms Genovese Joblove & Battista, GreenspoonMarder and Weiss Serota Helfman Cole 
& Bierman provided their opening statements and answered questions posted by the 
Town Commission. 
 
After an extensive discussion amongst the Town Commission the consensus was to have 
Commissioner Gielchinsky and the Town Manager negotiate with the three firms further 
and by 8:00 pm on Monday, June 26, 2017 all firms must submit their final proposal to 
the Town Manager. 
 
 

3.  Adjournment   
The meeting adjourned at 9:11 p.m.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



   Minutes 
 Special Commission Meeting 

June 22, 2017 
 

  

2 
  

 

 
  Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 

 

Accepted this _____day of ____________________, 2017 

 
 
 
 
       ________________________ 
       Daniel Dietch, Mayor 
Attest: 
 

 
 _______________________ 
Sandra Novoa, MMC 
Town Clerk 

 



 
Town of Surfside 

Special Commission Meeting 
MINUTES 

June 27, 2017 
 6:00 p.m.  

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 
Surfside, FL  33154 

      
        

 

 

1. Opening        

A. Call to Order  
Mayor Dietch called the meeting to order at 6:07 p.m. 
          

B. Roll Call of Members 
Recording Clerk Frantza Duval called the roll with the following members present:  
Mayor Daniel Dietch, Vice Mayor Barry Cohen, Commissioner Gielchinsky, 
Commissioner Tina Paul, and Commissioner Michael Karukin.   

    
C. Pledge of Allegiance  

Police Chief David Allen led the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 

2. Town Attorney Selection Process Discussion – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Mayor Dietch opened the meeting and asked the Manager and/or Commissioner 
Gielchinsky to speak about their meetings with the firms and the different engagement 
letters that were provided.   
 
Town Manager Olmedillo presented the item to the Town Commission and spoke about 
the engagement letters provided by the three firms. 
 
A clarification was made regarding the yearly annual renewal increase on Weiss Serota 
Helfman Cole & Bierman’s engagement letter to specify the words “up to 3% annually”.  
Representing Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, Lilliam Arango clarified that the 
intent was to include the words “up to 3% annually” and while typing the agreement she 
failed to include it.  
 
After some discussion amongst the Town Commission, Commissioner Karukin made a 
motion to select Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman.  The motion received a second 
from Commissioner Paul and the motion carried 4-1 with Commissioner Gielchinsky 
voting in opposition. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Minutes
 Special Commission Meeting 

June 27, 2017 

2 

3. Adjournment
The meeting adjourned at 6:33 p.m.

  Respectfully submitted, 

Accepted this _____day of ____________________, 2017 

________________________ 
Daniel Dietch, Mayor 

Attest: 

 _______________________ 
Sandra Novoa, MMC 
Town Clerk 



























3C









3D





























5A





















5B















9A



Marcum LLP n One Southeast Third Avenue n Suite 1100 n Miami, Florida 33131 n Phone 305.995.9600 n Fax 305.995.9601 n www.marcumllp.com

June 30, 2017 

To the Honorable Mayor, Town Commission, and Town Manager 
Town of Surfside, Florida 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Surfside, Florida (the Town) 
for the year ended September 30, 2016. Professional standards require that we provide you with 
information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. 
We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated March 27, 2017. Professional standards 
also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the Town are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new 
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies were not changed during 2016 
with the exception of, as described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Town changed accounting 
policies related to fair value measurement by adopting Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB) 
Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. 
We noted no transactions entered into by the Town during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the 
proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting the Town’s statements were: 

Management’s estimate of the net pension liability in accordance with GASB Statement 
No. 68 is based on actuarial methods and assumptions used by the actuary for the 
development of the funding valuation as well as the accounting valuation. The key factors 
impacting the assumptions, such as change in market conditions, are subject to change on 
an annual basis therefore and can have a significant impact on this estimate. We evaluated 
the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimate described above, in 
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.  

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements relate to the reporting 
required by GASB Statement No. 68. The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent and clear. 



Town of Surfside, Florida 
June 30, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 

 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit other than the delays in receiving certain financial data requested which delayed completion of the 
audit. 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management. All significant adjustments proposed by the auditor, many of which were material, were 
recorded by management. There were no uncorrected misstatements. 
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the 
course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated June 30, 2017. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application 
of an accounting principle to the Town’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditors’ 
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting 
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, 
there were no such consultations with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Town’s auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retention. 
 
  



Town of Surfside, Florida 
June 30, 2017 
Page 3 
 
 

 

Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
We applied certain limited procedures to Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the budgetary 
comparison schedule, and the required supplementary information (RSI) for the pension and OPEB, which 
are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our 
procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 
  
Other Information 
 
We have been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI (Combining and Individual 
Fund Financial Statements and Schedules), which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. 
With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated 
the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it 
has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our 
audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the 
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves.  
 
We were not engaged to report on the introductory and statistical analysis sections, which accompany the 
financial statements but are not RSI. We did not audit or perform other procedures on this other 
information and we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 
 
Restriction on Use 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of the Mayor, Town Commission, Town Manager and the 
management of the Town of Surfside, Florida and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
Marcum LLP 
 
 







 

 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 
 

CONTENTS 
 
 
Introductory Section 
 
 Letter of Transmittal ................................................................................................................. i-iv 
 Listing of Elected Officials and Administrative Personnel ..........................................................v 
 Organization Chart ...................................................................................................................... vi 
 Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting ........................................... vii 
 
Basic Financial Statements 
 
 Independent Auditors’ Report ................................................................................................... 1-3 
 
 Management's Discussion and Analysis (Required Supplementary Information) ................. 4-15 
 
 Basic Financial Statements 
  Government-wide Financial Statements 
   Statement of Net Position .....................................................................................................16 
   Statement of Activities ..........................................................................................................17 
  Fund Financial Statements 
   Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds ..................................................................................18 
   Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances –  
    Governmental Funds ..........................................................................................................19 
   Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and  
    Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities .................................................20 
   Statement of Net Position – Proprietary Funds .....................................................................21 
   Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – Proprietary Funds .........22 
   Statement of Cash Flows – Proprietary Funds ................................................................ 23-24 
   Statement of Fiduciary Net Position – Pension Trust Fund ..................................................25 
   Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position – Pension Trust Fund ...............................26 
 
  Notes to Basic Financial Statements .................................................................................. 27-63 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
 Budgetary Comparison Schedule – General Fund ......................................................................64 
 Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedule ........................................................................... 65-66 
 Schedule of Funding Progress – OPEB ......................................................................................67 
 Schedule of Changes in the Town’s Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios .........................68 
 Schedule of the Town Contributions ..........................................................................................69 
  
 



 

 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 
 

CONTENTS 
 
 
Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules 
 
 Combining Balance Sheet – Nonmajor Governmental Funds ....................................................70 
 Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances –  
  Nonmajor Governmental Funds ...............................................................................................71 
 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance –  
  Budget and Actual – Tourism Fund .........................................................................................72 
 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance –  
  Budget and Actual – Transportation Surtax Fund ...................................................................73 
 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance –  
  Budget and Actual – Police Forfeiture Fund ...........................................................................74 
 
Statistical Section (Unaudited) 
 
 Changes in Net Position – Governmental Activities ..................................................................75 
 Changes in Net Position – Governmental Activities – Percentage of Total ...............................76 
 Changes in Net Position – Business-type Activities ...................................................................77 
 Changes in Total Net Position ....................................................................................................78 
 Government-wide Net Position by Category ..............................................................................79 
 General Government Revenues by Source .................................................................................80 
 Tax Revenues by Source – Governmental Funds .......................................................................81 
 General Governmental Expenditures by Function ......................................................................82 
 General Governmental Current Expenditures by Function ........................................................83 
 Summary of Changes in Fund Balances – Governmental Funds ...............................................84 
 Fund Balances - Governmental Funds ........................................................................................85 
 Fund Balances - Governmental Funds ........................................................................................86 
 Taxable Assessed Value – Real and Personal Property ..............................................................87 
 Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates ...............................................................................88 
 Total Property Tax Levies and Collections ................................................................................89 
 Principal Real Property Taxpayers .............................................................................................90 
 Principal Personal Property Taxpayers .......................................................................................91 
 Ratios of Total Debt Outstanding by Type .................................................................................93 
 Pledged Revenue Coverage ........................................................................................................93 
 Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt ...............................................................................94 
 Demographic and Economic Statistics .......................................................................................95 
 Principal Employers ....................................................................................................................96 
 Town Full-Time Funded Positions by Function/Program ..........................................................97 
 Operating Statistics by Function/Program ..................................................................................98 
 Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program.............................................................................99 
 
 

 



 

 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 
 

CONTENTS 
 
 
Reporting Section 
 
 Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 
  Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements  
  Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards .................................. 100-101 
 
 Management Letter in Accordance with the Rules of the Auditor General of the  
  State of Florida ............................................................................................................... 102-103 
 
 Independent Accountants’ Report on Compliance Pursuant to Section 218.415 
  Florida Statutes ......................................................................................................................104 
 
 
 







 

i 

 

June 30, 2017 

To the Honorable Mayor and Vice Mayor, Town Commissioners, and the Citizens 
of the Town of Surfside, Florida: 

We are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the 
Town of Surfside, Florida (the Town), for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016.  
Florida Statutes require that every general-purpose local government publish within nine 
months of the close of each fiscal year a complete set of audited financial statements.  In 
addition to meeting this legal requirement, the report continues to present the Town's 
strong tradition of full financial disclosure.  This philosophy is reflected by the informative 
financial analysis provided by the Town's Finance Department and the exhibits and 
statistical tables included herein. 

The CAFR's role is to assist in making economic, social and policy decisions and to assist 
in assessing accountability to the citizenry by: 

 Comparing actual financial results with the legally adopted budget, where 
appropriate; 

 Assessing financial condition and results of operations; 
 Assisting in determining compliance with finance related laws, rules and regulations; 

and 
 Assisting in evaluating the efficiency and effectiveness of Town operations. 

 
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and 
fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the 
Town.  We believe the data, as presented, is accurate in all material respects; that it is 
presented in a manner designed to fairly present the financial position and results of 
operations of the Town; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain 
an understanding of the Town's financial activity have been included. 

Marcum LLP, independent auditors, have issued an unmodified opinion on the Town of 
Surfside’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016.  The 



 

ii 

independent auditors’ report is located at the front of the financial section of this report.  
The Town’s financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB).  The Town’s Management Discussion and Analysis (the 
MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditors’ report and provides a narrative 
introduction, overview and analysis of the basic financial statements. MD&A compliments 
the letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it. 

ACCOUNTING AND INTERNAL CONTROLS 

Management of the Town is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal 
control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the Town are protected from loss, 
theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the 
preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America.  The internal control structure is designed to 
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The 
concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that:  

 The cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and  
 The valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by 

management. 
 

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT 

The Town is a beautiful oceanfront community located in the tropical paradise of South 
Florida. The Town was incorporated in 1935 and is home to approximately 5,800 
residents.  The Town of Surfside includes a tranquil, attractive, residential neighborhood, 
multi-family residences, a traditional "home town" business district and tourist facilities 
that welcome visitors year round. 

The Town is a Commission-Manager form of government.  The Town is governed by a 
Mayor, Vice-Mayor and three Town Commissioners, elected Town-wide to two-year terms.  
Collectively known as the Town Commission, they appoint a full-time Town Manager, who 
is responsible for the administration of the Town’s operations.  The Town Commission 
establishes policy for the operation of the government, enacts ordinances for the safety, 
welfare, and orderly interaction of the citizens of the Town, adopts a millage rate and annual 
budget, appoints the Town Attorney, as well as members to various boards, agencies, and 
authorities within the Town, and engages an independent auditor. 

SERVICES PROVIDED 

The Town provides a full range of municipal services.  These services include police, 
parks and recreation programs, tourism, public works, human resources, code 
compliance, finance, town clerk, town attorney, building, and planning and zoning.  The 
Town also provides water and sewer utility, municipal parking, sanitation services and 
stormwater utility services to its citizens. 



 

iii 

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION 

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when 
it is considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment. Surfside has 
maintained its strong financial position through prudent long-term financial planning, 
additional non ad-valorem revenue generation and fiscal actions to reduce or contain 
fixed costs.    

The Town of Surfside enjoys a favorable commercial, residential and economic 
environment. Financial indicators point to increased growth.  Additionally, the Surfside 
real estate market continues to be on the rise as prices of residential homes and 
condominiums increase.  We anticipate a continued upward trend in taxable value growth 
as new hotel and condominium developments come on line. 

Surfside is a tourist destination point in southeast Florida. In fact, Surfside has one mile 
of pristine beach coastline in Miami-Dade County. Surfside is one square mile in size of 
residential homes, condominiums and a beautiful tree lined business section.  There is 
no industrial area in the Town. Thanks to the Town’s low property tax millage rate, 
diversified commercial business base, a Town-sponsored shuttle system, and an active 
community of involved citizens who take a genuine interest in the social, business, cultural 
and governing aspects of the Town, Surfside continues to flourish and be financially 
strong. 

The Town Commission has adopted financial policies. Management has made every 
effort to comply with these policies and we believe that we are in compliance with the 
adopted policies. The Town Commission has adopted a Five Year Financial Plan.  This 
document forecasts the General Fund and several other fund operations for the next five 
(5) years and is used to guide the development of the annual operating budget. 

The Town has also recognized the long-term financial cost implications of its pension plan 
and continues to fund 100% of the actuarially determined employer contribution.  
Accordingly, the pension plan’s funded ratio is 89%, well above funded percentages 
considered to be healthy.  The Town continues to monitor its pension costs for 
sustainability and to provide cost containment so as not to shift the costs to future 
taxpayers. 

The Capital Improvements Program (CIP) is prepared and presented to the Town 
Commission as part of the annual budget process.  The projects represent the Town's 
plan for infrastructure improvement and major equipment acquisition for the next five 
years. 

  





 

v 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

LISTING OF ELECTED OFFICIALS AND ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL 
 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

TOWN COMMISSION 
 

Daniel Dietch, Mayor 
 

Barry Cohen, Vice Mayor 
 

Daniel Gielchinsky, Commissioner 
 

Michael Karukin, Commissioner 
 

Tina Paul, Commissioner 
 
 

OFFICIALS 
 

Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
 

David Allen, Chief of Police 
 

Sandra Novoa, Town Clerk 
 

Linda Miller, Town Attorney 
 

Tim Milian, Parks and Recreation Director 
 

Joseph Kroll, Public Works Director  
 

Duncan Tavares, Tourism, Economic Dev, & Community Svs. Director 
 

Rosendo Prieto, Building Official 
 

Alan Graham, Code Compliance Director 
 

Sarah Sinatra Gould, Town Planner 
 

Yamileth Slate-McCloud, Human Resource Director 
 

Donald G. Nelson, Finance Director 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 
 

Marcum LLP 



 

vi 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

ORGANIZATION CHART 
 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Finance 

Director 

 

Town Clerk 

 

Building 

Official  

 

Chief of 

Police 

Public 

Works 

Director 

 

Parks and 

Recreation 

Director 

Tourism/ 

Economic/

Community 

Svs. 

Director 

Residents 

Town 
Committees/Boards 

Town Attorney 
Town Manager 
 HR Director 

 Code Compliance 

 Planning/Zoning 

Town Commission 

Plans, 
Coordinates 
and Directs 
Community 
Events and 
Parks and 
Recreation 
Programs 

Plan, organize 
and manage 

Tourism/ 
Economic/ 
Community 

events. 
Implement 

tourism 
marketing, 
plans and 
strategies 

Water & 
Sewer, 

Sanitation, 
Street 

Cleaning, 
Stormwater, 
Building and 

Property 
Maintenance, 
Community 

Services 

Police patrol, 
Community 
Relations, 
Criminal 

Investigation, 
Traffic and 

Parking 
Enforcement, 
Emergency 

Management 

Building 
Inspections 

and, 
Permitting 

Commission 
Agenda, 
Minutes, 
Records 

Management 
Retention, 

Local 
Business 

Taxes and 
Information 
Technology 

Finance, 
Accounting, 

Budget, 
Accounts 
Payable, 

Purchasing, 
Payroll, Debt 
Service and 

Risk 
Management  



 

vii 

 

 







Marcum LLP n One Southeast Third Avenue n Suite 1100 n Miami, Florida 33131 n Phone 305.995.9600 n Fax 305.995.9601 n www.marcumllp.com

 

1 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor, Town Commission and Town Manager 
Town of Surfside, Florida 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
Town of Surfside, Florida (the Town), as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the Town’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
 
 



 

2 

but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal 
control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town as of September 30, 
2016, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof 
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 15, the budgetary comparison 
information on pages 64 and 66, and the required supplementary information for the pensions 
and OPEB on pages 67 through 69 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express 
an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Supplementary and Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements.  The introductory and statistical 
sections and the combining and individual fund statements and schedules, are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
 



 

3 

The combining and individual fund statements and schedules, are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the 
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the 
combining and individual fund statements and schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, 
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on them. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 30, 
2017 on our consideration of the Town’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the Town’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
Miami, FL 
June 30, 2017 
 
 





MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Town of Surfside, Florida 
As of and For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

 

4 

This section of the comprehensive annual financial report for the Town of Surfside (the Town), the 
Town’s management is pleased to provide this narrative discussion and analysis of the financial activities 
of the Town for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016.  The Town’s financial performance is 
discussed and analyzed within the context of the accompanying financial statements and disclosures 
following this section. 
 
2016 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
 The Town’s assets plus deferred outflows exceeded its liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources 

by $36,686,030 (total net position) as of September 30, 2016. 
 

 Total net position increased $1,487,795 and is comprised of the following: 
(1) Capital assets, net of related debt, of $24,442,981 include property and equipment, net of 

accumulated depreciation, and reduced by capital related outstanding debt.   
(2) Net position of $1,449,671 is restricted by constraints imposed from outside the Town such as 

grantors, laws, or regulations. 
(3) Unrestricted net position consists of $10,793,378 that may be used to meet the Town’s ongoing 

obligations to citizens and creditors.  
 

 The Town’s governmental funds reported total ending fund balance of $9,385,340 at September 30, 
2016.  This compares to the prior year total ending fund balance of $6,984,368, showing an 
increase of $2,400,972 during the current year.  Unassigned fund balance is $5,170,003 at 
September 30, 2016. 
 

 At the end of the current fiscal year, the unassigned and unrestricted fund balance for the General 
Fund was $7,170,003 or 61.1% of total General Fund expenditures.  The unrestricted fund balance 
for the General fund was $5,170,003 or 44% of total General Fund expenditures. 
 

 Overall, the Town continues to maintain a strong financial position. 
 
The above financial highlights are explained in more detail in the “financial analysis” section of this 
document. 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This Management Discussion and Analysis document introduces the Town’s basic financial statements.  
The basic financial statements include:  (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial 
statements, and (3) notes to the basic financial statements.  The Town also includes in this report 
additional information to supplement the basic financial statements.  Comparative data is presented to 
allow comparison to the prior fiscal year. 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements 
 
The Town’s annual report includes two government-wide financial statements.  These statements provide 
both long-term and short-term information about the Town's overall financial status.  Financial reporting 
at this level uses a perspective similar to that found in the private sector with its basis in accrual 
accounting and elimination or reclassification of activities between funds. 
 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Town of Surfside, Florida 
As of and For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

 

5 

The first of these government-wide statements is the Statement of Net Position.  This is the government-
wide statement of position presenting information that includes all of the Town’s assets plus deferred 
outflows of resources and liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net 
position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the 
financial position of the Town as a whole is improving or deteriorating.  Evaluation of the overall health 
of the Town would extend to other nonfinancial factors such as diversification of the taxpayer base or the 
condition of the Town’s infrastructure, in addition to the financial information provided in this report. 
 
The second government-wide statement is the Statement of Activities, which reports how the Town’s net 
position changed during the current fiscal year.  All current year revenues and expenses are included 
regardless of when cash is received or paid.  An important purpose of the design of the statement of 
activities is to show the financial reliance of the Town's distinct activities or functions on revenues 
provided by the Town's taxpayers. 
 
Both government-wide financial statements distinguish governmental activities of the Town principally 
supported by taxes from business-type activities intended to recover all or a significant portion of their 
costs through user fees and charges.  Governmental activities include general government, public safety, 
public works, leisure services and transportation.  Business-type activities include water and sewer, 
municipal parking, sanitation and storm water utilities activities. 
 
The government-wide financial statements are presented on pages 16 and 17 of this report. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
A fund is an accountability unit used to maintain control over resources segregated for specific activities 
or objectives.  The Town uses funds to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related laws and 
regulations.  Within the basic financial statements, fund financial statements focus on the Town’s most 
significant funds rather than the Town as a whole.  Major funds are separately reported while all others 
are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.  Individual fund data for nonmajor funds is provided 
in the form of combining statements in a later section of this report. 
 
The Town has three types of funds: 
 
Governmental funds are reported in the fund financial statements and encompass the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, the focus is 
very different with fund statements providing a distinctive view of the Town’s governmental funds.  
These statements report short-term fiscal accountability focusing on the use of spendable resources and 
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year.  They are useful in evaluating annual 
financing requirements of governmental programs and the commitment of spendable resources for the 
near-term. 
 
Since the government-wide focus includes the long-term view, comparisons between these two 
perspectives may provide insight into the long-term impact of short-term financing decisions.   Both the 
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund operating statement provide a reconciliation 
to assist in understanding the differences between these two perspectives. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements are presented on pages 18 - 19 of this report. 
 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Town of Surfside, Florida 
As of and For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

 

6 

Proprietary funds are reported in the fund financial statements and generally report services for which the 
Town charges customers a fee.  The Town’s proprietary funds are classified as enterprise funds.  The 
enterprise funds essentially encompass the same function reported as business-type activities in the 
government-wide statements.   
 
The basic proprietary fund financial statements are presented on pages 21 - 24 of this report.  
 
The Town’s Fiduciary fund is reported in the fiduciary fund financial statements, but is excluded from the 
government-wide reporting.  Fiduciary fund financial statements report resources that are not available to 
fund the Town’s programs.  The Town’s fiduciary fund reports the Town’s single employer pension plan 
balances and activities. 
 
The basic fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on pages 25 and 26 of this report. 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
 
The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements provide information essential to a full 
understanding of the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to the basic financial 
statements begin on page 27 of this report. 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain 
required supplementary information.  A budgetary comparison schedule is included as “required 
supplementary information” for the General Fund.  Budgetary comparison schedules for all other 
governmental funds can be found in the supplementary information section of this report.  These 
schedules demonstrate compliance with the Town’s adopted and final revised budget.  In addition, some 
required trend information for the Town’s pension trust fund and other post employment benefits (OPEB) 
plan are presented in this section.  Required supplementary information can be found on pages 64 - 69 of 
this report. 
 
Supplementary Information 
 
As discussed, the Town reports major funds in the basic financial statements.  Combining and individual 
fund statements and schedules for nonmajor funds are presented in a supplementary information section 
of this report beginning on page 70. 
 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Town of Surfside, Florida 
As of and For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

 

7 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN AS A WHOLE 
 
The Town’s net position at fiscal year-end is $36,686,030.  The following table provides a summary of 
the Town’s net position: 
 

                    

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Assets:
  Current assets 10,773,529$       8,602,700$      5,741,084$    9,535,931$    16,514,613$      18,138,631$    
  Non-current assets
    Capital assets 15,430,657         15,854,217     26,577,691   27,164,932   42,008,348       43,019,149      

Total assets 26,204,186         24,456,917     32,318,775   36,700,863   58,522,961       61,157,780      

Deferred outflows of resources 1,657,120           771,118          233,106        102,187        1,890,226         873,305           

Liabilities:
  Current liabilities 1,473,538           1,748,483       1,139,034     2,048,759     2,612,572         3,797,242        
  Long-term liabilities 2,899,971           1,576,702       17,732,114   17,729,300   20,632,085       19,306,002      

Total liabilities 4,373,509           3,325,185       18,871,148   19,778,059   23,244,657       23,103,244      

Deferred inflows of resources -                      208,482          472,500        521,124        472,500            729,606           

Net position:
  Net investment in 
    capital assets 15,329,431         15,652,978     9,113,550     8,615,955     24,442,981       24,268,933      
  Restricted 859,426              893,489          590,245        2,112,459     1,449,671         3,005,948        
  Unrestricted 7,298,940           5,147,901       3,494,438     2,775,453     10,793,378       7,923,354        

Total net position 23,487,797$       21,694,368$    13,198,233$  13,503,867$  36,686,030$      35,198,235$    

Summary of Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

 
 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Town of Surfside, Florida 
As of and For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

 

8 

The following chart reports the Town’s total net position balances from fiscal year 2007 - 2016. 
 
 

$23,871,169 

$22,518,626 

$23,074,825 

$24,706,676 

$27,898,476 

$29,801,668 

$32,266,101 

$34,503,296 

$35,198,235 

$36,686,030

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $35,000,000

 $40,000,000

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Fiscal Year

Total Net Position

 
 
Note over the last ten years, the total net position has increased $12,814,861 or 53.7%. 
 
The Town continues to maintain high current ratios.  The current ratio compares current assets to current 
liabilities and is an indication of the ability to pay current obligations.  The current ratio for governmental 
activities is 7.3 to 1 as compared to 3.2 to 1 at September 30, 2015.  The current ratio for business-type 
activities is 5 to 1 as compared to 4.7 to 1 at September 30, 2015.   Overall, the total current ratio at 
September 30, 2016 was 6.3 to 1 as compared to 4.8 to 1 at September 30, 2015 or an improvement. 
 
The Town reported positive balances in net position for both governmental and business-type activities.  
During 2016, net position increased $1,793,429 for governmental activities and decreased $305,634 for 
business-type activities.  The Town's overall financial position improved during fiscal year 2016.  The 
Town remains in a strong financial position. 
 
Note that 58.9% of the governmental activities’ total assets are tied up in capital assets.  The Town uses 
these capital assets to provide services to its citizens.  82.2% of the business-type activities total assets are 
included in capital assets.  These capital assets provide utility and parking services to the Town’s citizens.  
By combining governmental activities with business-type activities, the Town has invested approximately 
71.8% of its total assets in capital assets, as presented in the government-wide statement of net position. 
 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Town of Surfside, Florida 
As of and For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

 

9 

The following table provides a summary of the Town’s changes in net position:  
 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Revenues:
 Program:
  Charges for services 3,013,135$      2,545,805$     6,327,686$    6,352,593$    9,340,821$      8,898,398$     
  Operating grants and contributions 301,052           277,331         -               -                301,052           277,331         
  Capital grants 554,446           141,217         -               -                554,446           141,217         
 General:
  Property taxes 7,276,466        6,526,267      -               -                7,276,466        6,526,267      
  Other taxes 2,463,643        2,442,812      -               -                2,463,643        2,442,812      
  Unrestricted intergovermental 717,252           713,914         -               -                717,252           713,914         
  Unrestricted investment earnings 26,988             28,783           220               1,406            27,208             30,189           
  Miscellaneous 571,559           613,367         -               -                571,559           613,367         

Total revenues 14,924,541      13,289,496    6,327,906     6,353,999     21,252,447      19,643,495    

Program Expenses:

  General government 3,295,208        3,432,500      -               -                3,295,208        3,432,500      
  Public safety 5,871,196        5,624,875      -               -                5,871,196        5,624,875      
  Public works 1,487,590        1,516,329      -               -                1,487,590        1,516,329      
  Leisure services 2,534,022        2,350,266      -               -                2,534,022        2,350,266      
  Transportation 381,891           271,284         -               -                381,891           271,284         
  Interest 3,213               5,475             -               -                3,213               5,475             
  Water and sewer -                  -                3,150,570     2,987,800     3,150,570        2,987,800      
  Municipal parking -                  -                1,095,550     954,129        1,095,550        954,129         
  Sanitation -                  -                1,452,813     1,334,381     1,452,813        1,334,381      
  Stormwater utility -                  -                492,599        471,517        492,599           471,517         

Total expenses 13,573,120      13,200,729    6,191,532     5,747,827     19,764,652      18,948,556    

Changes in net position 
  before transfers 1,351,421        88,767           136,374        606,172        1,487,795        694,939         

Transfers 442,008           (19,272)         (442,008)      19,272          -                   -                 

Changes in net position
  after transfers 1,793,429        69,495           (305,634)      625,444        1,487,795        694,939         

Beginning net position 21,694,368      21,624,873    13,503,867   12,878,423   35,198,235      34,503,296    

Ending net position 23,487,797$    21,694,368$   13,198,233$  13,503,867$   36,686,030$    35,198,235$   

Summary of Changes in Net Position

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

Governmental Activities Revenues 
 
The Town is heavily reliant on property taxes to support governmental operations.  Property taxes 
provided 48.8% of the Town’s total revenues as compared to 49.1% in fiscal year 2015.  Other taxes, 
which includes resort, franchise, utility and communications taxes provided 16.5% of the Town’s total 
revenues as compared to 18.4% in fiscal year 2015.   The charges for services increased $467,330 or 
18.4% due primarily to increased building permit revenue from increased building and increased fines 
from red light cameras. 
 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Town of Surfside, Florida 
As of and For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

 

10 

Note that program revenues covered 28.5% of governmental operating expenditures as compared to 
22.5% in fiscal year 2015.  This means that the government’s taxpayers and the Town’s other general 
revenues normally fund 71.5% of the governmental activities, primarily from property taxes, other taxes 
and unrestricted intergovernmental revenue.  As a result, the general economy and the success of local 
businesses have a major impact on the Town’s revenue streams.     
 
Governmental Activities Expenses 
 
The following table presents the cost of each of the Town’s services, including the net costs (i.e., total 
cost less program revenues generated by the activities).  The net costs illustrate the financial burden that is 
placed on the Town’s taxpayers by each of these services. 
 

Total Cost Percentage Net Cost Percentage
of Services of Total of Services of Total

  General government 3,295,208$         24.3% 2,062,013$       21.2%

  Public safety 5,871,196           43.3% 4,660,507         48.0%

  Public works 1,487,590           11.0% 933,144            9.6%

  Leisure services 2,534,022           18.7% 1,894,147         19.5%

  Transportation 381,891              2.8% 151,463            1.6%

  Interest 3,213                  0.0% 3,213                0.0%

  Total 13,573,120$       100.0% 9,704,487$      100.0%

Governmental Activities

 
The public safety expenditures, both gross and net of program revenues total over 43% of total costs.   
 
Business-Type Activities  
 
The Town reports four major enterprise funds.   
 
Overall Analysis of Major Funds – Total operating revenues decreased $24,907 or 4/12th of 1%.  
Operating expenses increased $660,300 or 13.4%.  In total, the operating income decreased $685,207.  
The total decrease in net position for all enterprise funds was $305,634. 
 
The operating income (loss) for each major enterprise fund was as follows for fiscal years 2016 and 2015: 
 

 

Increase
2016 2015 (Decrease)

Water and sewer 337,039$             1,109,867$         (772,828)$       
Municipal parking (8,787)                 93,377                (102,164)         
Sanitation 252,804               46,980                205,824          
Stormwater 168,210               184,249              (16,039)           

Total 749,266$             1,434,473$         (685,207)$       

 
The following includes an analysis of the fiscal year 2016 financial activities for each fund.   
 
Water and Sewer Fund - The total assets decreased $858,437 or 3.8% due primarily to a $747,082 
decrease in the net book value of capital assets.  Total liabilities decreased $706,852.   



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Town of Surfside, Florida 
As of and For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

 

11 

Operating revenues decreased $403,140 or 11.8% because of a large one-time development fee 
recognized in fiscal year 2015, which is not duplicated in fiscal year 2016. 
 
In total, operating expenses increased $369,688 or 15.9%.  Personal services increased $67,395 or 22.1% 
due to a staff vacancy from the prior year filled in this year.  Administration costs increased $30,933 or 
37.8% because of increased professional fees and increased costs of property and liability insurance. 
Water system costs decreased $126,908 or 21.7% from fiscal year 2015 due to a true up credit on billing of 
water purchased from Miami-Dade County Water and Sewer.  Sewer system costs decreased $389,606 or 
68.4% due to a billing adjustment from the City of Miami Beach for cost of sewage flow.  
 
Net position decreased $122,871 or 1.8% in fiscal year 2016, resulting in ending net position of 
$6,713,313.   
 
Municipal Parking Fund – The total assets decreased $3,375 or less than 1%.  Capital assets increased 
$35,725 and the accumulated depreciation increased $92,788. 
 
Operating revenues increased $39,257 or 3.7% and operating expenses increased $141,421 or 14.8%.  
Metered and permit parking revenue increased due to more activity and increased demand for parking for 
workers from large-scale commercial construction projects. 
 
The cost of personal services decreased $72,850 or 16.9%, due to position vacancies. 

 
In total, operating income decreased $102,164 or 109.4% in fiscal year 2016 below fiscal year 2015.  Net 
position decreased $8,787 or less than 1% in fiscal year 2016, resulting in an ending net position of 
$3,266,426. 
 
Sanitation Fund - The total assets increased $396,847 or 77.8%.  Capital assets increased approximately 
$347,254 due to the purchase of a rear loader garbage truck.  Total liabilities increased $203,087.  
Operating revenues were $324,256 or 23.5% above the fiscal year 2015 amount.    Administrative costs 
increased $30,337 or 14.4% due to the elimination of a full-time position and related benefits.   
  
In total, operating expenses increased $118,432 or 8.9%. 
 
Operating income increased $205,824.  Net position increased $252,804 or 68.8% in fiscal year 2016, 
resulting in an ending net position of $620,122. 
 
Stormwater Fund - The total assets decreased $842,397.  Cash decreased $801,749.  Net capital assets 
decreased $130,350 from fiscal year 2015. 
 
Total liabilities decreased $403,808.  The operating revenues decreased $14,720 from fiscal year 2015 
and the operating expenses increased $30,759. 
 
As a result, operating income was $16,039 below fiscal year 2015.  Net position decreased $426,780 in fiscal 
year 2016, resulting in ending net position of $2,598,372. 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Town of Surfside, Florida 
As of and For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

 

12 

FUND ANALYSIS 
 
Governmental Funds 
 
Governmental funds are reported in the fund statements with a short-term, inflow and outflow of 
spendable resources focus.  This information is useful in assessing resources available at the end of the 
year in comparison with upcoming financing requirements.  Governmental funds reported ending fund 
balances of $9,385,340 compared to $6,984,368 at September 30, 2015. 
 
The total governmental revenues and transfers in exceeded expenditures and transfers out by $2,400,972. 
The general fund’s revenues exceeded its expenditures and transfers out by $1,462,682.  The capital 
projects fund’s revenues and transfers in exceeded expenditures $971,449. 
 
Governmental funds report total fund balance of $9,385,340.  Of this year-end total, $859,426 is 
restricted.  $2 million is assigned in the General Fund for emergencies and disasters since we are a coastal 
community subject to hurricane risk and $1,151,352 is assigned in the Capital Projects Fund for future 
capital projects. $204,559 is considered non-spendable and $5,170,003 is unassigned and available for 
future appropriation within the General Fund.    
 
The total ending fund balances of governmental funds shows an increase of $2,400,972 or 34.4% over the 
prior year. 
 
Major Governmental Funds  
 
The Town reports two major governmental funds, the General Fund and the Capital Projects Fund. 
 
General Fund - The General Fund is the Town’s primary operating fund and the largest source of day-to-
day service delivery.  The General Fund’s total fund balance increased $1,462,682 or 24.8%.  The ending 
assigned and unassigned fund balance is considered adequate, representing the equivalent of 60% of 
annual expenditures.   This compares to 49.3% at September 30, 2015. 
 
Property taxes increased approximately $750,000 or 11.5% due to an increase in taxable property values of 
$166 million or 12.41% from the previous fiscal year.   Resort taxes increased $72,310 or 6.3% as the 
result of an addition of a new hotel on the ocean that pays 4% on hotel room revenues.  
 
Utility tax revenue increased approximately $9,410 or 1.6%. Licenses and permits increased 
approximately $224,000 or 31.3% over fiscal year 2015 because of an increase from new construction. 
  
Fines and forfeitures increased $199,685 or 21.2% over the prior year due to red light camera violations.  
All other revenue streams were consistent with the 2015 amounts. 
 
Total General Fund expenditures decreased $245,527 above the fiscal year 2015 level.  Although most 
changes are not significant, some of these changes, by department, from fiscal year 2015 are described 
below. 
 
General government costs were $82,024 or 2.5% below the 2015 amount.   

 
Public safety expenditures increased $178,683 or 3.3% due to an increase in extra duty pay to Police 
Officers working off duty details and an increase in the amount paid to the State of Florida for their share 
of the Red-Light Camera revenues.   
 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Town of Surfside, Florida 
As of and For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

 

13 

Public works costs decreased $94,947 or 8.7% due to a reduction of personnel cost from staff changes and 
reduction of maintenance costs.  Leisure services costs were similar to the prior year. 
 
Capital Projects Fund - This fund reported revenue from developer contributions totaling $354,446.  
This fund spent $245,258 on capital items.  At September 30, 2016, this fund reported $1,153,218 in cash 
and investments.  At year-end, this fund reported fund balance of $1,154,352. 
 
Proprietary Funds 
 
Proprietary fund statements share the same focus as the government-wide statements, reporting both 
short-term and long-term information about financial status.  The business-type activities analysis above 
discusses the Town’s enterprise funds. 
 
GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS  

 
The General Fund’s revenue budget was amended upward in this fiscal year, by $324,541.  In total, actual 
revenues were above the final budget by $942,561 or 7.6%.   
 
Property taxes were $96,550 over budget because of conservative budgeting.  Resort taxes were below the 
budget by $57,649 because the tax fell short of projections.  The largest revenue stream over budget was 
fines and forfeitures revenue by $379,865 due to revenue light camera code violations. 
 
Licenses and permits were above budget by $237,379, due to growth of building activity. 
 
The General Fund’s expenditure (excluding transfers) budget was increased $344,106 or 2.8%.  In total, 
actual expenditures were below the budget by $649,977.  
 
The executive, finance and administration final budget was underspent by $443,640 because of operating 
efficiencies of reduced actual operating expenditures compared to the budget and a delay in hiring staff.  
  
The budget for public safety was over expended by $130,039.  This overage relates to extra pay for police 
officers working off duty details and the refunding of a portion of the Red Light Camera revenue to the 
State of Florida. 
 
The leisure services budget was underspent by $129,477 due to a decrease in actual operating 
expenditures for the Recreation Programs and the Tourism Services Departments.  
 
CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital Assets 
 
The Town's net investment in capital assets, for governmental and business-type activities as of 
September 30, 2016, was $15,329,431 and $9,113,550 respectively.  The change in this net investment 
was a 2.0% decrease for governmental activities and a 5.8% increase for business-type activities.   See 
Note 6 for additional information about changes in capital assets during the fiscal year and outstanding at 
the end of the year.   
 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Town of Surfside, Florida 
As of and For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

 

14 

The following table provides a summary of capital asset activity:   
 

 
        Business-type Activities                        Total

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Non-depreciable assets:
  Land 1,461,229$        1,461,229$        1,358,011$       1,358,011$       2,819,240$      2,819,240$       
  Construction in progress 128,297             1,261,070          -                   60,715              128,297           1,321,785         

  Total non-depreciable 1,589,526          2,722,299          1,358,011         1,418,726         2,947,537        4,141,025         

Depreciable assets:
  Buildings 11,026,367        11,024,416        -                   -                   11,026,367      11,024,416       
  Machinery, equipment 
    and furniture 2,845,297          2,957,119          1,412,611         1,089,961         4,257,908        4,047,080         
  Infrastructure 5,588,764          4,263,220          29,228,018       29,167,301       34,816,782      33,430,521       

Total depreciable assets 19,460,428        18,244,755        30,640,629       30,257,262       50,101,057      48,502,017       

Less accumulated depreciation 5,619,297          5,112,837          5,420,949         4,511,056         11,040,246      9,623,893         

Book value - depreciable assets 13,841,131        13,131,918        25,219,680       25,746,206       39,060,811      38,878,124       

Percentage depreciated 29% 28% 18% 15% 22% 20%

Total net capital assets 15,430,657$      15,854,217$      26,577,691$     27,164,932$     42,008,348$    43,019,149$     

Capital Assets

Governmental Activities

 
At September 30, 2016, the depreciable capital assets for governmental activities were 29% depreciated.  
This compares to the 28% at September 30, 2015.  With the Town’s business-type activities, 18% of the 
asset values were depreciated at September 30, 2016 compared to 15% at September 30, 2015.  These 
percentages for governmental activities indicate that the Town is replacing their capital assets at the same 
rate, as they are being depreciated, which is a positive financial indicator.  However, for the business-type 
activities, they are only 18% depreciated due to the new infrastructure put into place. 
 
Governmental Capital Assets  
 
The increase in the infrastructure transferred from construction in progress totaling $1,325,544 relates to 
the replacement of five more seawalls on Biscayne Bay, part of the Seawall Replacement Phase II.   
 
The major equipment additions include the costs for the purchase of Police vehicles (3), Code 
Enforcement vehicles (2), an all-terrain vehicle, and audio-video equipment in the Commission 
Chambers. 
 
Business-type Activities Capital Assets 
 
The increase in the infrastructure transferred from construction in progress totaling $60,715 relates to the 
completion of a seawall replacement on Biscayne Bay at the end of Carlyle Street, Seawall Phase I.  
 
The specific major equipment included in the $457,592 addition relates to the purchase of a Solid Waste 
Grapple Truck, $157,000, a Solid Waste Garage Truck rear loader, $222,000, a Sanitary Sewer Pump, 
$43,000, a Municipal Parking sign, $11,000 and a new Pickup Truck. 
 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Town of Surfside, Florida 
As of and For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 

 

15 

Debt  
 
The following table reports long-term debt balances at September 30, 2016 and 2015: 
 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Revenue bonds -$                   -$                    9,266,490$           9,866,062$            9,266,490$          9,866,062$           

Capital leases 101,226              201,239               25,957                  38,123                   127,183               239,362                

State revolving loan -                     -                      8,172,054             8,591,249              8,172,054            8,591,249             

Compensated absences 362,880              309,375               103,759                110,929                 466,639               420,304                

Net OPEB obligation 300,781              242,285               42,957                  38,562                   343,738               280,847                

Net pension liability 2,220,433           953,954               298,287                126,401                 2,518,720            1,080,355             

Total 2,985,320$      1,706,853$       17,909,504$     18,771,326$      20,894,824$     20,478,179$     

Outstanding Long-term Debt

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Totals

 

See Note 7 for additional information about the Town’s long-term debt. 
 
A SUMMARY OF THE ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AFFECTING THE TOWN 
 
The State of Florida, by constitution, does not have a state personal income tax and therefore the State 
operates primarily using sales, gasoline and corporate income taxes.  Local governments (towns and 
cities, counties, school boards) primarily rely on property and an array of permitted other taxes (utility 
taxes, franchise fees and local business taxes) as well as intergovernmental revenues for their 
governmental activities.   
 
For business-type activities and certain governmental activities (building/construction services and 
recreational programs), the user pays a related fee or charge associated with the service.  The Town’s 
residents would expect to have a lower unemployment rate than is reported for the county.   
 
Some of the key elements affecting the fiscal year 2016-2017 budget include:  
 

 An increase in Resort Tax revenues from hotels and restaurants.  
 An increase in taxable property values. 
 No increase in the Solid Waste collection rates to customers. 
  Residential and Commercial developments will continue for the next few years. 
 Building permit activity for residential and commercial construction will increase. 
 The General Fund balance is projected to increase over the next two years.  

 
All of these factors result in a strong financial forecast in fiscal year 2016-2017 and beyond.   
 
CONTACTING THE TOWN’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town’s finances, comply with 
finance-related laws and regulations, and demonstrate the Town’s commitment to public accountability.  
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or request for additional information 
should be addressed to the Finance Director, Town of Surfside, 9293 Harding Avenue, Surfside, FL 
33154. 





Business-
Governmental type

Activities Activities Total
Assets

Cash 6,379,604$      3,975,293$      10,354,897$    
Investments 3,465,485        40,535             3,506,020        
Receivables 723,881           1,645,597        2,369,478        
Prepaid items 204,559           79,659             284,218           
Capital assets not being depreciated 1,589,526        1,358,011        2,947,537        
Capital assets being depreciated, net 13,841,131      25,219,680      39,060,811      

Total Assets 26,204,186      32,318,775      58,522,961      

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension 1,657,120        223,106           1,880,226        

Liabilities
Accounts payable 383,839           447,365           831,204           
Accrued liabilities 415,170           44,074             459,244           
Interest payable --                     218,124           218,124           
Retainage payable --                     1,235               1,235               
Unearned revenue 27,494             6,492               33,986             
Customer deposits 561,686           244,354           806,040           
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year 85,349             1,076,091        1,161,440        
Due in more than one year 2,899,971        16,833,413      19,733,384      

Total Liabilities 4,373,509        18,871,148      23,244,657      

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Parking Trust Fund --                     472,500           472,500           

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources --                     472,500           472,500           

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 15,329,431      9,113,550        24,442,981      
Restricted for:

Tourism 363,407           --                     363,407           
Transportation 354,264           --                     354,264           
Police forfeiture 141,755           --                     141,755           
Renewal and replacement --                     240,745           240,745           
Parking Development --                     25,500             25,500             
Loan reserve --                     324,000           324,000           

Unrestricted 7,298,940        3,494,438        10,793,378      

Total Net Position 23,487,797$    13,198,233$    36,686,030$    

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

16



C
ha

rg
es

O
pe

ra
ti

ng
C

ap
it

al
B

us
in

es
s-

fo
r

G
ra

nt
s 

an
d

G
ra

nt
s 

an
d

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l
ty

pe
F

un
ct

io
ns

/P
ro

gr
am

s
E

xp
en

se
s

S
er

vi
ce

s
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
A

ct
iv

it
ie

s
A

ct
iv

it
ie

s
T

ot
al

G
ov

er
n

m
en

ta
l A

ct
iv

it
ie

s
G

en
er

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t
3,

29
5,

20
8

$ 
   

  
1,

23
3,

19
5

$ 
   

  
--

$
 

--
$

 
(2

,0
62

,0
13

)
$ 

   
 

--
$

 
(2

,0
62

,0
13

)
$ 

   
 

P
ub

li
c 

sa
fe

ty
5,

87
1,

19
6

   
   

  
1,

14
0,

06
5

   
   

  
70

,6
24

   
   

   
   

 
-- 

(4
,6

60
,5

07
)

   
   

 
-- 

(4
,6

60
,5

07
)

   
   

 
P

ub
li

c 
w

or
ks

1,
48

7,
59

0
   

   
  

-- 
-- 

55
4,

44
6

   
   

   
  

(9
33

,1
44

)
   

   
   

 
-- 

(9
33

,1
44

)
   

   
   

 
L

ei
su

re
 s

er
vi

ce
s

2,
53

4,
02

2
   

   
  

63
9,

87
5

   
   

   
  

-- 
-- 

(1
,8

94
,1

47
)

   
   

 
-- 

(1
,8

94
,1

47
)

   
   

 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n
38

1,
89

1
   

   
   

  
-- 

23
0,

42
8

   
   

   
  

-- 
(1

51
,4

63
)

   
   

   
 

-- 
(1

51
,4

63
)

   
   

   
 

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 d

eb
t

3,
21

3
   

   
   

   
 

--
--

--
(3

,2
13

)
   

   
   

   
--

(3
,2

13
)

   
   

   
   

T
ot

al
 G

ov
er

n
m

en
ta

l A
ct

iv
it

ie
s

13
,5

73
,1

20
   

 
3,

01
3,

13
5

   
   

30
1,

05
2

   
   

   
55

4,
44

6
   

   
   

 
(9

,7
04

,4
87

)
   

  
--

(9
,7

04
,4

87
)

   
  

B
u

si
n

es
s-

ty
p

e 
A

ct
iv

it
ie

s
W

at
er

 a
nd

 s
ew

er
3,

15
0,

57
0

   
   

  
3,

02
7,

47
9

   
   

  
-- 

-- 
-- 

(1
23

,0
91

)
   

   
   

 
(1

23
,0

91
)

   
   

   
 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 p

ar
ki

ng
1,

09
5,

55
0

   
   

  
1,

08
6,

76
3

   
   

  
-- 

-- 
-- 

(8
,7

87
)

   
   

   
   

  
(8

,7
87

)
   

   
   

   
  

S
an

it
at

io
n

1,
45

2,
81

3
   

   
  

1,
70

5,
61

7
   

   
  

-- 
-- 

-- 
25

2,
80

4
   

   
   

  
25

2,
80

4
   

   
   

  
S

to
rm

w
at

er
 u

ti
li

t y
49

2,
59

9
   

   
   

50
7,

82
7

   
   

   
--

--
--

15
,2

28
   

   
   

  
15

,2
28

   
   

   
  

T
ot

al
 B

u
si

n
es

s-
ty

p
e 

A
ct

iv
it

ie
s

6,
19

1,
53

2
   

   
6,

32
7,

68
6

   
   

--
--

--
13

6,
15

4
   

   
   

13
6,

15
4

   
   

   

T
ot

al
19

,7
64

,6
52

$ 
   

9,
34

0,
82

1
$ 

   
  

30
1,

05
2

$ 
   

   
  

55
4,

44
6

$ 
   

   
  

(9
,7

04
,4

87
)

   
   

 
13

6,
15

4
   

   
   

  
(9

,5
68

,3
33

)
   

   
 

G
en

er
al

 R
ev

en
u

es
T

ax
es

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
ta

xe
s

7,
27

6,
46

6
   

   
  

-- 
7,

27
6,

46
6

   
   

  
R

es
or

t t
ax

es
1,

22
6,

35
1

   
   

  
-- 

1,
22

6,
35

1
   

   
  

F
ra

nc
hi

se
 f

ee
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 g
ro

ss
 r

ec
ei

pt
s

42
4,

87
8

   
   

   
  

-- 
42

4,
87

8
   

   
   

  
U

ti
li

ty
 ta

xe
s

57
7,

87
2

   
   

   
  

-- 
57

7,
87

2
   

   
   

  
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ta
x

23
4,

54
2

   
   

   
  

-- 
23

4,
54

2
   

   
   

  
U

nr
es

tr
ic

te
d 

in
te

rg
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l r
ev

en
ue

s
71

7,
25

2
   

   
   

  
-- 

71
7,

25
2

   
   

   
  

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

t e
ar

ni
ng

s 
19

,4
88

   
   

   
   

 
22

0
 

19
,7

08
   

   
   

   
 

M
is

ce
ll

an
eo

us
 r

ev
en

ue
s

57
9,

05
9

   
   

   
  

-- 
57

9,
05

9
   

   
   

  
T

ra
n

sf
er

s
44

2,
00

8
   

   
   

(4
42

,0
08

)
   

   
  

--

T
ot

al
 G

en
er

al
 R

ev
en

u
es

 a
n

d
 T

ra
n

sf
er

s
11

,4
97

,9
16

   
 

(4
41

,7
88

)
   

   
  

11
,0

56
,1

28
   

 

C
h

an
ge

 in
 N

et
 P

os
it

io
n

1,
79

3,
42

9
   

   
  

(3
05

,6
34

)
   

   
   

 
1,

48
7,

79
5

   
   

  

N
et

 P
os

it
io

n 
- 

B
eg

in
ni

ng
21

,6
94

,3
68

   
 

13
,5

03
,8

67
   

 
35

,1
98

,2
35

   
 

N
et

 P
os

it
io

n 
- 

E
nd

in
g

23
,4

87
,7

97
$ 

  
13

,1
98

,2
33

$ 
  

36
,6

86
,0

30
$ 

  

T
O

W
N

 O
F

 S
U

R
F

S
ID

E
, F

L
O

R
ID

A

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 N

et
 P

os
it

io
n

P
ro

gr
am

 R
ev

en
ue

s

S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
 O

F
 A

C
T

IV
IT

IE
S

F
O

R
 T

H
E

 F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
 E

N
D

E
D

 S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 3

0,
 2

01
6

N
et

 (
E

xp
en

se
) 

R
ev

en
ue

 a
nd

T
h

e 
ac

co
m

pa
n

yi
n

g 
n

ot
es

 a
re

 a
n

 in
te

gr
al

 p
ar

t o
f 

th
es

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.

17



Nonmajor Total
Capital Governmental Governmental

General Projects Funds Funds
Assets

Cash 4,592,912$  936,735$    849,957$     6,379,604$    
Investments 3,236,519    216,483      12,483         3,465,485      
Receivables 580,878       15,000        128,003       723,881         
Due from other funds 2,050           --                 --                 2,050             
Prepaid items 198,405       3,000          3,154           204,559         

Total Assets 8,610,764$  1,171,218$ 993,597$     10,775,579$  

Liabilities
Accounts payable 239,770$     16,866$      127,203$     383,839$       
Accrued liabilities 414,006       --                 1,164           415,170         
Due to other funds --                --               2,050          2,050            
Unearned revenue 26,894         --                 600              27,494           
Customer deposits 561,686       --                 --                 561,686         

Total Liabilities 1,242,356    16,866        131,017       1,390,239      

Fund Balances
Non-spendable:

Prepaid items 198,405       3,000          3,154           204,559         
Restricted for:
  Tourism --                  --                 363,407       363,407         
  Transportation surtax --                  --                 354,264       354,264         
  Police forfeiture --                  --                 141,755       141,755         
Assigned for:

Hurricanes and emergencies 2,000,000    --                 --                 2,000,000      
Capital projects --                  1,151,352   --                 1,151,352      

Unassigned 5,170,003    --                 --                 5,170,003      

Total Fund Balances 7,368,408    1,154,352   862,580       9,385,340      

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 8,610,764$  1,171,218$ 993,597$     

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are 
not financial resources and, therefore, are not 

reported in the funds. 15,430,657    
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions

are recorded in the statement of net position 1,657,120      
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the 

current period and therefore are not reported in 
the funds:
   Compensated absences (362,880)        

Capital lease (101,226)        
Net pension liability (2,220,433)     
Net OPEB obligation (300,781)        

Net Position of Governmental Activities 23,487,797$  

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

18



Nonmajor Total
Capital Governmental Governmental

General Projects Funds Funds
Revenues

Property taxes 7,276,466$      --$                   --$                   7,276,466$      
Resort taxes 1,226,351        --                     639,875           1,866,226        
Utility taxes 577,872           --                     --                     577,872           
Communications services tax 234,542           --                     --                     234,542           
Franchise fees 424,878           --                     --                     424,878           
Licenses and permits 939,870           --                     --                     939,870           
Intergovernmental 717,252           --                     230,428           947,680           
Charges for services 293,325           --                     --                     293,325           
Fines and forfeitures 1,140,065        --                     70,624             1,210,689        
Developer fees --                     554,446           --                     554,446           
Interest earnings 17,913             1,169               406                  19,488             
Miscellaneous 571,559           --                     7,500               579,059           

Total Revenues 13,420,093      555,615           948,833           14,924,541      

Expenditures
Current:

General government 3,159,302 --                     --                     3,159,302        
Public safety 5,520,988        --                     33,153             5,554,141        
Public works 1,113,789 --                     --                     1,113,789        
Leisure services 1,841,022 --                     620,862           2,461,884        
Transportation --                     --                     310,767           310,767           

Capital outlay --                     245,258           17,210             262,468           
 Debt service:

Principal 100,013           --                     --                     100,013           
Interest and fiscal charges 3,213               --                     --                     3,213               

Total Expenditures 11,738,327      245,258           981,992           12,965,577      

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
over Expenditures 1,681,766        310,357           (33,159)            1,958,964        

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in --                     661,092           --                     661,092           
Transfers out (219,084)          --                     --                     (219,084)          

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (219,084)          661,092           --                     442,008           

Net Change in Fund Balances 1,462,682        971,449           (33,159)            2,400,972        

Fund Balances - Beginning 5,905,726        182,903           895,739           6,984,368        

Fund Balances - Ending 7,368,408$      1,154,352$      862,580$         9,385,340$      

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

19



Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of 
activities (Page 17) are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Page 19) 2,400,972$    

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures.  However,
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated 
over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense.  This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded 
capital outlay in the current period.

The details of the difference are as follows:
Capital outlay 442,691$       
Depreciation and amortization (821,889)       

            Net adjustment (379,198)       

   Loss on disposal of capital assets (44,361)         

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides
current financial resources to governmental funds, while the
repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
current financial resources to governmental funds.  Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net position.  Also,
governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts,
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these 
amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.  
This detail of the difference is as follows:
Payment of principal on capital lease 100,013         

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not 
reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

The detail of the difference is as follows:
Compensated absences (53,505)         
Net pension liability (171,995)       
Net OPEB obligation (58,497)         

            Net adjustment (283,997)       

     Change in net position of governmental activities (Page 17) 1,793,429$    

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

20



 Water and  Municipal  Stormwater 

Sewer Parking Sanitation Utility Totals
Assets

Current Assets
Cash --$                       1,157,676$         226,964$            2,590,653$         3,975,293$         
Investments 40,535                --                         --                         --                         40,535                
Receivables 704,413              505,700              327,812              107,672              1,645,597           
Due from other funds --                         --                         --                         1,096,671           1,096,671           
Prepaid items 20,747                27,424                20,881                10,607                79,659                

Total Current Assets 765,695              1,690,800           575,657              3,805,603           6,837,755           

Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets
Land --                         1,358,011           --                         --                         1,358,011           
Infrastructure 24,197,722         1,447,360           --                         3,582,936           29,228,018         
Equipment 291,340              499,049              622,222              --                         1,412,611           

24,489,062         3,304,420           622,222              3,582,936           31,998,640         
Less: accumulated depreciation (3,633,035)          (1,175,435)          (248,041)             (364,438)             (5,420,949)          

Total Capital Assets, Net 20,856,027         2,128,985           374,181              3,218,498           26,577,691         

Total Noncurrent Assets 20,856,027         2,128,985           374,181              3,218,498           26,577,691         

Total Assets 21,621,722         3,819,785           949,838              7,024,101           33,415,446         

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension 42,507                73,094                89,992                17,513                223,106              

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 213,040              27,328                203,436              3,561                  447,365              
Accrued liabilities 30,859                4,788                  7,130                  1,297                  44,074                
Due to other funds 1,096,671           --                         --                         --                         1,096,671           
Interest payable 163,593              --                         --                         54,531                218,124              
Retainage payable 1,235                  --                         --                         --                         1,235                  
Current portion capital lease payable 12,747                --                         --                         --                         12,747                
Current portion of revenue bonds payable 470,902              --                         --                         156,967              627,869              
Current portion of state revolving loan payable 318,824              --                         --                         106,275              425,099              
Compensated absences 2,701                  1,166                  6,433                  76                       10,376                
Unearned revenue --                         6,492                  --                         --                         6,492                  
Customer deposits 244,354              --                         --                         --                         244,354              

Total Current Liabilities 2,554,926           39,774                216,999              322,707              3,134,406           

Noncurrent Liabilities
Net OPEB obligation 12,729                6,066                  23,987                175                     42,957                
Net pension liability 56,562                97,617                120,828              23,280                298,287              
Compensated absences 24,307                10,496                57,894                686                     93,383                
Capital lease payable 13,210                --                         --                         --                         13,210                
Revenue bonds payable 6,478,966           --                         --                         2,159,655           8,638,621           
State revolving loan payable 5,810,216           --                         --                         1,936,739           7,746,955           

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 12,395,990         114,179              202,709              4,120,535           16,833,413         

Total Liabilities 14,950,916         153,953              419,708              4,443,242           19,967,819         

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Parking Trust Fund --                         472,500              --                         --                         472,500              

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 7,751,522           2,128,985           374,181              (1,141,138)          9,113,550           
Restricted for renewal and replacement 208,560              --                         --                         32,185                240,745              
Restricted for loan reserve 243,000              --                         --                         81,000                324,000              
Restricted for parking development --                         25,500                --                         --                         25,500                
Unrestricted (1,489,769)          1,111,941           245,941              3,626,325           3,494,438           

Total Net Position 6,713,313$         3,266,426$         620,122$            2,598,372$         13,198,233$       

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

21



Water 
and Municipal  Stormwater 

Sewer Parking Sanitation Utility Totals
Operating Revenues

Charges for services:
Water sales 1,653,233$    --$                 --$                 --$                 1,653,233$    
Sewer charges 1,372,530      --                   --                   --                   1,372,530      
Parking fees --                   1,086,763      --                   --                   1,086,763      
Solid waste fees --                   --                   1,547,604      --                   1,547,604      
Recycling fees --                   --                   125,181         --                   125,181         
Drainage fees --                   --                   --                   507,827         507,827         
Miscellaneous 1,716             --                   32,832           --                   34,548           

Total Operating Revenues 3,027,479      1,086,763      1,705,617      507,827         6,327,686      

Operating Expenses
Personal services 371,936         504,317         713,935         145,348         1,735,536      
Administrative 112,686         498,445         240,518         63,916           915,565         
Water system 456,606         --                   --                   --                   456,606         
Sewer system 959,227         --                   --                   --                   959,227         
Solid waste system --                   --                   474,811         --                   474,811         
Depreciation 789,985         92,788           23,549           130,353         1,036,675      

Total Operating Expenses 2,690,440      1,095,550      1,452,813      339,617         5,578,420      

Operating Income (Loss) 337,039         (8,787)           252,804         168,210         749,266         

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest earnings 220               --                   --                   --                   220               
Interest expense (460,130)       --                   --                   (152,982)       (613,112)       

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (459,910)       --                   --                   (152,982)       (612,892)       

Income Before Transfers (122,871)       (8,787)           252,804         15,228           136,374         

   Transfers out --                   --                   --                   (442,008)       (442,008)       

Change in Net Position (122,871)       (8,787)           252,804         (426,780)       (305,634)       

Net Position - Beginning 6,836,184      3,275,213      367,318         3,025,152      13,503,867    

Net Position - Ending 6,713,313$    3,266,426$    620,122$       2,598,372$    13,198,233$  

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

22



Water
and Municipal Stormwater

Sewer Parking Sanitation Utility Totals
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Receipts from customers 2,954,833$   1,070,063$    1,763,607$    500,683$        6,289,186$     
Payments to other funds --                   --                   --                   (74,726)          (74,726)           
Payments to suppliers (1,713,336)    (455,069)       (567,156)        (121,551)        (2,857,112)      
Payments to employees (347,140)       (498,850)       (728,392)        (144,774)        (1,719,156)      
Receipts from other funds 74,726          --                   --                   --                    74,726            

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 969,083        116,144         468,059         159,632          1,712,918       

Cash Flows from Noncapital 
Financing Activities

Transfers out --                   --                   --                   (442,008)        (442,008)         

Net Cash Used by Noncapital Financing Activities --                   --                   --                   (442,008)        (442,008)         

Cash Flows from Capital and Related
   Financing Activities

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (42,903)         (35,725)         (378,964)        (9,760)            (467,352)         
Proceeds from sale of capital assets --                   --                   8,161             --                    8,161              
Principal payments (677,722)       --                   --                   (353,211)        (1,030,933)      
Interest expense and debt related costs (470,391)       --                   --                   (156,402)        (626,793)         

Net  Cash Used by Capital and 

Related Financing Activities (1,191,016)    (35,725)         (370,803)        (519,373)        (2,116,917)      

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest earnings 220               --                   --                   --                    220                 
Purchases of investments (218)              --                   --                   --                    (218)                

Net Cash Provided by 
   Investing Activities 2                   --                   --                   --                    2                     

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (221,931)       80,419           97,256           (801,749)        (846,005)         

Cash - Beginning 221,931        1,077,257      129,708         3,392,402       4,821,298       

Cash - Ending --$                 1,157,676$    226,964$       2,590,653$     3,975,293$     

(Continued)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

23



Water
and Municipal Stormwater

Sewer Parking Sanitation Utility Totals
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net

Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Operating income (loss) 337,039$      (8,787)$       252,804$     168,210$      749,266$      

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 789,985        92,788         23,549        130,353        1,036,675     
Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in:
Receivables (95,069)         4,300           57,990        (7,144)          (39,923)         
Prepaid items (15,289)         22,431         (10,327)       (7,832)          (11,017)         
Deferred outflows - pension (23,614)         (40,028)       (47,569)       (9,708)          (120,919)       
Due from other funds --                   --                 --                 (74,726)        (74,726)         

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable (88,854)         20,945         158,500      (49,803)        40,788          
Accrued liabilities 15,842          (11,051)       (13,641)       (1,830)          (10,680)         
Unearned revenue --                   6,492           --                 --                  6,492            
Due to other funds 74,726          --                 --                 --                  74,726          
Retainage payable (80,674)         --                 --                 --                  (80,674)         
Compensated absences 3,412            1,419           (12,374)       373              (7,170)           
Net pension liability 33,226          56,672         68,323        13,665          171,886        
Net OPEB obligation 1,030            911             2,279          175              4,395            
Deferred inflows - pensions (5,100)           (8,948)         (11,475)       (2,101)          (27,624)         
Deferred inflows - parking trust fund --                   (21,000)       --                 --                  (21,000)         
Customer deposits 22,423          --                 --                 --                  22,423          

Total adjustments 632,044        124,931       215,255      (8,578)          963,652        

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 969,083$      116,144$     468,059$     159,632$      1,712,918$    

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

(Continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

24



Assets

Investments
Money market funds 345,158$         
Certificates of deposit 397,529           
U.S. Treasury securities 285,384           
U.S. Government agency bonds 592,439           
Municipal obligations 117,639           
Corporate bonds 3,680,385        
Mortgage backed securities 316,351           
Equities

Common stock and American depositary receipts and
exchange traded funds 9,846,158        

Mutual funds 1,484,142        
Real estate investment trusts 48,077             

Master limited partnerships 653,545           
Core real estate fund 996,008           

Total Investments 18,762,815      

Receivables
Accrued interest and dividends 55,454             
Employee contributions 22,146             
Other receivables 21,972             

Total Receivables 99,572             

Prepaid Expenses 1,500              

Total Assets 18,863,887      

Liabilities and Net Position

Accounts payable 80,555             
Refunds due to members 31,881             

Total Liabilities 112,436           

Net Position Restricted for Pension Benefits 18,751,451$    

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

25



Additions

Contributions
Plan members 383,619$         
Town 757,304           

1,140,923        

Investment Income 
Net appreciation in fair value of investments 1,482,313        
Interest and dividends 458,616           

1,940,929        
Less investment expenses (90,514)           

Net Investment Income 1,850,415        

Total Additions 2,991,338        

Deductions
Benefit payments 584,718           
Refunds of contributions 17,972             
Administrative expenses 130,686           

Total Deductions 733,376           

Net Increase in Net Position 2,257,962        

Net Position Restricted for Pension Benefits- Beginning 16,493,489      

Net Position Restricted for Pension Benefits - Ending 18,751,451$    

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

26





 

27 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The Town of Surfside, Florida (the Town) was incorporated on May 19, 1935.  The Town 
of Surfside’s Charter was adopted under the provisions of Chapter 27914, Laws of Florida, 
1951.  The Town is governed by an elected five-member Town Commission and operates 
under a commissioner-manager form of government.  The Town provides services to its 
approximately 6,000 residents in many areas including general government and 
administrative services, public safety (police), physical environment, solid waste collection, 
transportation (maintenance of roads and streets), culture and recreation, tourism 
development, water/sewer and stormwater utilities. 

 
The summary of the Town’s significant accounting policies is presented to assist the reader 
in interpreting the financial statements and other data in this report.  These policies are 
considered essential and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial 
statements. 

 
The financial statements of the Town have been prepared in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) as applied to governmental 
units.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  
The more significant of the Town’s accounting policies are described below: 

 
A. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY 

 
In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, these financial statements present the Town and its organizations for which the 
Town is considered financially accountable.  Financial accountability includes 1) the 
appointment of a voting majority of the organization’s governing body, 2) the ability of the 
primary government to impose its will on the organization, or 3) if there is a financial 
benefit/burden relationship.  In addition, an organization, which is fiscally dependent on the 
primary government, should be included in its reporting entity.  Based on the application of 
these criteria, there were no organizations that met the criteria described above. 

 
B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Town.  
The effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements with the exception 
of interfund services provided and used which are not eliminated.  Governmental activities, 
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported 
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and 
charges for support. 
 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

28 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 
function or segment are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are 
clearly identifiable with a specific function or identifiable activity.  Program revenues 
include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from 
goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular function or segment.  Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.  The Town does not employ an 
indirect cost allocation system. 
 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and 
the fiduciary fund, even though the latter is excluded from the government-wide financial 
statements.  Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are 
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.  All remaining nonmajor 
governmental funds are aggregated and reported as other governmental funds. 
 
Since the governmental fund financial statements are presented on a different measurement 
focus and basis of accounting than the government-wide financial statements, 
reconciliations are provided to briefly explain the adjustments necessary to reconcile the 
governmental fund financial statements to the government-wide governmental activities 
financial statements. 

 
C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

PRESENTATION 
 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and 
fiduciary fund financial statements.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.  
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and 
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by 
the provider have been met. 

 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized 
as soon as they are both measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available 
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay 
liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the Town considers revenues to be 
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

29 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
PRESENTATION (CONTINUED) 

 
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as required by accrual 
accounting, except for expenditures related to compensated absences, which are recorded 
when payment is due. 

 
Property taxes and other taxes (such as franchise taxes, utilities taxes, and sales tax), 
charges for services, intergovernmental revenue, licenses, and interest associated with the 
current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been 
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.  Revenues for expenditure driven grants 
are recognized when the qualifying expenditures are incurred.  All other revenue items are 
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the Town. 

 
The reporting practices of the proprietary fund types closely parallel comparable 
commercial financial reporting, which recognize revenue when earned and expenses when 
incurred (the accrual basis) including, in the case of the enterprise funds, depreciation on its 
exhaustible capital assets.  Earned, but unbilled service receivables have been accrued as 
revenue in the enterprise funds. 
 
GAAP sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets and deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, revenue or expenditures/expenses of 
either fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) for the determination of 
major funds.  The nonmajor funds are presented in the combining and individual fund 
statements and schedules section. 
 
The Town reports the following major governmental funds: 

 
The General Fund is the Town’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all financial 
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in 
another fund. 
 
The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the capital projects of the Town which 
have received the approval of the Town Commission.  Transfers from the general and 
other funds are made to this fund to cover such expenditures. 

 
 
 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

30 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
PRESENTATION (CONTINUED) 

 
The Town reports the following major proprietary funds: 

 
The Water and Sewer Fund is used to account for water and sewer utility operations, 
which are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises.  The 
intent of the Town is that the costs (expenses including depreciation) of providing services 
to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user 
charges. 
 
The Municipal Parking Fund accounts for all parking revenues and expenses.  Parking 
citation revenue is allocated to the General Fund. 

 
The Sanitation Fund is used to account for the activities of the Town residential, multi-
family, and commercial refuse and recycling. 

 
The Stormwater Utility Fund is used to account for the stormwater utility fees, which 
are collected to construct, operate, and maintain a stormwater management system. 

 
Additionally, the government reports the following fund type: 

 
The Pension Trust Fund is used to account for the Town’s single-employer defined 
benefit pension plan (the Plan) covering substantially all of its employees (The 
Retirement Plan for the Employees of the Town of Surfside).  

 
As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements.  Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the Town’s 
enterprise functions and various other functions of the Town for services rendered.  
Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported 
for the various functions concerned. 

 
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for 
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital 
grants and contributions, including special assessments.  Internally dedicated resources are 
reported as general revenues rather than program revenues.  The general revenues include 
all taxes. 

 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

31 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
PRESENTATION (CONTINUED) 

 
Proprietary Funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing 
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  
The principal operating revenues and expenses of the Town’s enterprise funds are charges 
to customers for services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets.  All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues 
and expenses. 
 
Implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements 
 
The Town implemented the following GASB Statements during the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2016: 
 
GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application 
 
This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting issues related to fair value 
measurements. This Statement provides guidance for determining a fair value measurement 
for financial reporting purposes. This Statement also provides guidance for applying fair 
value to certain investments and disclosures related to all fair value measurements. 
 
GASB Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants. 
 
This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain external investment 
pools and pool participants. Specifically, it establishes criteria for an external investment 
pool to qualify for making the election to measure all of its investments at amortized cost 
for financial reporting purposes. 
 
D.  ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET 

POSITION/FUND BALANCE 
 

1. Deposits and Investments 
 
The Town utilizes a pooled cash account for cash of all Town funds other than those that 
are required to be physically segregated.  The pooled cash account concept allows each 
participating fund to benefit from the economies of scale and improved yield which are 
inherent to a larger investment pool.  Formal accounting records detail the individual 
equities of the participating funds.  The pooled cash system utilizes a single checking 
account for Town receipts and disbursements with a separate checking account for payroll 
disbursements. 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

32 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

D.  ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET 

POSITION/FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED) 
 
1. Deposits and Investments (continued) 
 
The Town’s cash includes cash on hand, demand deposits, and investments with Florida 
PRIME administered by the State Board of Administration. 
 
The Town’s investment policy follows the requirements of Florida Statutes Chapter 
218.415, Local Government Investment Policies, and attempts to promote, in order of 
priority, safety of principal, adequate liquidity, and maximization of total return.  
Investments in the Town of Surfside’s local government surplus funds are governed by the 
provisions of Florida Statutes Section 218.415.  Investments in the Town’s pension trust 
fund are governed by the Plan’s investment policy and Florida Statutes Section 112.661.  
All investments of the Town and the pension trust fund, except Florida PRIME, are 
reported at fair value using quoted market prices.  The Florida PRIME is recorded at its 
value of the pool shares, which is amortized cost. 
 
2. Interfund Receivables and Payables 
 
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements 
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either due to/from other funds 
(i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or advances to/from other funds (i.e., the non-
current portion of the interfund loans). 
 
3. Receivables 
 
Receivables include amounts due from other governments and others for services provided 
by the Town.  Receivables are recorded and revenues are recognized as earned or as 
specific program expenditures/expenses are incurred.  Allowances for uncollectible 
receivables are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of receivables. 
 
4. Prepaid Items 
 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in the fund financial statements.  Prepaid items are accounted for 
under the purchases method. 

 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

33 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET 

POSITION/FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED) 
 

5. Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets include property, buildings, machinery, furniture and equipment, intangible 
and infrastructure assets (e.g., sidewalks and other similar items), which are reported in the 
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide 
financial statements. 

 
Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than 
$1,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year, except for infrastructure and 
intangible assets for which the Town utilizes a $25,000 capitalization threshold.  Capital 
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  
Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation.  The costs 
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend assets lives are not capitalized.  The Town was not required to and did not 
retroactively report infrastructure assets acquired prior to the implementation of GASB 
Statement No. 34. 
 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are 
constructed.  Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-
type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.  There 
was no capitalized interest for fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. 
 
Capital assets of the Town are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives: 

Assets  Years 
Buildings  15-50 
Machinery, furniture and equipment  5-10 
Infrastructure   10-30 
Intangibles  10-30 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

34 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET 

POSITION/FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED) 
 

6. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred 
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future 
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) 
until then. The Town reports within its government-wide statement of net position as 
deferred outflows amounts contributed during fiscal year 2016 into The Retirement Plan for 
the Employees of the Town of Surfside. The net pension liability associated with the Plan 
was measured as of September 30, 2015. The amounts paid during fiscal year 2016 to the 
Plan will be reflected within the Town’s pension expense and related liability when the net 
pension liability is measured for the next fiscal year. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, 
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a 
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that 
time.  The Town has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. The proprietary 
funds statement of net position includes a parking trust fund agreement.  These amounts are 
deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that they are earned.   
 
7. Compensated Absences 
 
The Town’s policy is to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused sick as well as 
vacation pay benefits, limited to certain maximums.  All vacation and sick pay is accrued 
when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements.  A 
liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for 
example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.  Compensated absences of 
the governmental funds are typically liquidated from the general fund. 

 
8. Long-Term Obligations 
 
In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund type financial statements, 
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable 
business-type activities or proprietary fund type statement of net position. 
 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

35 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET 

POSITION/FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED) 
 

9. Fund Balance 
 
The Town follows the criteria for classifying governmental fund balances into specifically 
defined classifications.  Classifications are hierarchical and are based primarily on the 
extent to which the Town is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which 
amounts in the funds may be spent.  The Town’s accounting and financial policies are used 
to interpret the nature and/or requirements of the funds and their corresponding 
classification of nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned. 
 
The following are the fund balance classifications: 

 
Nonspendable fund balance.  Nonspendable fund balances are amounts that are (a) not in 
spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
 
Restricted fund balance.  Restricted fund balances are amounts that can be spent only for 
specific purposes stipulated by (a) external resource providers such as creditors (by debt 
covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) 
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
 
Committed fund balance.  Committed fund balances can only be used for the specific 
purposes determined by a formal action (ordinance or resolution, which are equally 
binding) of the Town Commission, the Town’s highest level of decision making 
authority.  Commitments may be changed or lifted only by the Town Commission taking 
the same formal action (ordinance or resolution) that imposed the constraint originally.  
Resources accumulated pursuant to stabilization arrangements sometimes are reported in 
this category. 
 
Assigned fund balance. Assigned fund balances are amounts that are constrained by the 
Town’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed.  
Intent is established by management of the Town to which the Commission has delegated 
the authority to assign, modify or rescind amounts to be used for specific purposes.  
There is no formal policy through which this authority has been established.  Specific 
amounts that are not restricted or committed in a special revenue or capital projects fund 
are assigned for the purposes in accordance with the nature of their fund type.  
Assignment within the General Fund conveys that the intended use of those amounts is 
for a specific purpose that is narrower than the general purposes of the Town itself. 
 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

36 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET 

POSITION/FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED) 
 

9. Fund Balance (continued) 
 
Unassigned fund balance.  This fund balance is the residual classification for the General 
Fund.  It is also used to report negative fund balances in other governmental funds. 

 
10. Fund Balance Flow Assumptions 
 
Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted 
and unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance).  
In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned and 
unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption 
must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied.  It is the 
Town’s policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using any of 
the components of unrestricted fund balance.  Further, when the components of unrestricted 
fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, 
followed by assigned fund balance.  Unassigned fund balance is applied last, unless the 
Town Commission has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions by 
either ordinance or resolution. 
 
11. Net Position Flow Assumption 
 
Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted 
and unrestricted resources.  In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted – net 
position and unrestricted – net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund 
financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the 
resources are considered to be applied.  When both restricted and unrestricted resources are 
available for use, it is the Town’s policy to consider restricted – net position to have been 
depleted before unrestricted – net position is applied. 
 
12. Net Position 
 
Net position of the government-wide and proprietary funds is categorized as net investment 
in capital assets, restricted or unrestricted.  The net investment in capital assets consists of 
capital assets reduced by accumulated depreciation and by any outstanding related debt and 
deferred inflows/outflows of resources incurred to acquire, construct or improve those assets,  
 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

37 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET 

POSITION/FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED) 
 
12. Net Position (continued) 
 
excluding unexpended proceeds.  Restricted net position is that portion of net position that 
has been restricted for general use by external parties (creditors, grantors, contributors, or 
laws or regulations of other governments) or imposed by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation.  Unrestricted net position consists of net position that 
does not meet the definition of either of the other two components. 
 
13. Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results may differ from 
management’s estimates. 

 
 

NOTE 2 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 
DEPOSITS - TOWN 
 
In addition to insurance provided by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation, all 
deposits are held in banking institutions approved by the State Treasurer of the State of 
Florida to hold public funds.  Under Florida Statutes Chapter 280, Florida Security for 
Public Deposits Act, the State Treasurer requires all Florida qualified public depositories to 
deposit with the Treasurer, or any other banking institution, eligible collateral of the 
depository.  In the event of a failure of a qualified public depository, the remaining public 
depositories would be responsible for covering any resulting losses.  Accordingly, all 
amounts reported as deposits are insured or collateralized. 
 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

38 

NOTE 2 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
INVESTMENTS – TOWN 

 
The Town’s investment policy authorizes Town officials to invest in those instruments 
authorized by the Florida Statutes and the Town’s investment policy, including the 
certificates of deposit and money market funds (placed with “qualified public 
depositories”); U.S. Treasury and Government Agency securities; corporate bonds; 
commercial paper; mutual funds; repurchase agreements; and the Florida PRIME. 
 
Florida PRIME is governed by Chapter 19-7 of the Florida Administrative Code and 
Chapters 215 and 218 of the Florida Statutes.  These rules provide guidance and establish 
the policies and general operating procedures for the administration of the Florida PRIME.  
Florida PRIME invests in a pool of investments whereby the Town owns a share of the 
respective pool, not the underlying securities.  GASB issued Statement No. 79, Certain 
External Investment Pools and Pool Participants establishing criteria for an external 
investment pool to qualify to report at amortized cost.  Florida PRIME is exempt from the 
GASB 72 fair value hierarchy disclosures and reports at amortized cost. 
 
With regard to redemption dates, Chapter 218.409(8) (a), Florida Statutes, states, “The 
principal, and any part thereof, of each account constituting the trust fund is subject to 
payment at any time from the moneys in the trust fund  However, the Executive Director 
may, in good faith, on the occurrence of an event that has a material impact on liquidity or 
operations of the trust fund, for 48 hours limit contributions to or withdrawals from the trust 
fund to ensure that the Board can invest moneys entrusted to it in exercising its fiduciary 
responsibility.  Such action must be immediately disclosed to all participants, the Trustees, 
the Joint Legislative Auditing Committee, the Investment Advisory Council, and the 
Participant Local Government Advisory Council.  The Trustees shall convene an emergency 
meeting as soon as practicable from the time the Executive Director has instituted such 
measures and review the necessity of those measures.  If the Trustees are unable to convene 
an emergency meeting before the expiration of the 48-hour moratorium on contributions and 
withdrawals, the Executive Director may extend the moratorium until the Trustees are able 
to meet to review the necessity for the moratorium.  If the Trustees agree with such 
measures, the Trustees shall vote to continue the measures for up to an additional 15 days.  
The Trustees must convene and vote to continue any such measures before the expiration of 
the time limit set, but in no case may the time limit set be the Trustee exceed 15 days.” 
 
With regard to liquidity fees, Florida Statute 218.409(4) provides authority for the SBA to 
impose penalties for early withdrawal, subject to disclosure in the enrollment materials of 
the amount and purpose of such fees.  At present, no such disclosure has been made. 
 
As of September 30, 2016, there were no redemption fees or maximum transaction amounts, 
or any other requirements that serve to limit a participant’s daily access to 100 percent of 
their account value. 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

39 

NOTE 2 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
INVESTMENTS – TOWN (CONTINUED) 
 
The investment in the Florida PRIME is not insured by FDIC or any other governmental 
agency. 
 
As of September 30, 2016, the Town had the following investment subject to interest rate 
risk: 
 

Reported Weighted
Value Average Maturity

Investments
Florida PRIME 3,506,020$    50 days  

 
Florida PRIME is presented as investments in the financial statements. 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
The Town has an investment policy to invest in a manner that is consistent with sound 
business practices in order to protect the assets of the Town residents, provide effective 
cash management to meet anticipated obligations and earn a rate of return consistent with 
these inherent restraints.  Safety of capital and liquidity are also inherent in the Town’s 
policy.  The policy is structured to provide sufficient liquidity to pay obligations as they 
come due.  The Town’s investment policy limits the maturities to no more than 7 years for 
direct United States obligations and to no more than 5 years for United States agency 
obligations and corporate obligations.  Term repurchase agreements are limited to 
maturities of 90 days or less and certificate of deposits are limited to 2 years or less. 
 
Credit Risk 
The Town’s investment policy limits investments to the highest ratings issued by a 
nationally recognized statistical rating organization (NRSRO).  The Florida PRIME is rated 
AAAm by Standard and Poor’s. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
The Town’s investment policy states that assets shall be diversified to control the risk of 
loss resulting from concentration of assets to a specific maturity, instrument, issue, dealer, 
or bank through which these securities are bought and sold.  As of September 30, 2016, the 
Town’s portfolio did not have any investments subject to a concentration of credit risk. 
 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

40 

NOTE 2 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
INVESTMENTS – PENSION TRUST FUND 
 
The investment activity of the Plan is directed by an investment advisory firm. All 
investments made or held by the Plan shall be limited to the following: 
 

1. Cash equivalents. 

2. Obligations issued by the United States Government or obligations guaranteed as to 
principal and interest by the United States Government or by an agency of the United 
States Government. 

3. Bonds issued by the State of Israel. Foreign equity investments shall not exceed 10% 
of the Plan assets. 

4. Bonds or other evidences of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by a corporation 
organized under the laws of the United States or any state, organized territory of the 
United States, or District of Columbia provided the corporation is listed on the 
recognized national stock exchanges or on the National Market System of the 
NASDAQ stock market, the issuer has an investment quality rating within the top 
three rating classifications by at least two major services (Standard and Poor’s, 
Moody’s or Fitch).  Up to 10% of the bond portfolio may be invested in the fourth 
rating classification (by two of the above rating services). 

5. Equity investments (common stock, convertible bonds and preferred stocks) in a 
corporation listed on one or more of the recognized national exchanges or on the 
National Market System of the NASDAQ stock market and ETF exchange-traded 
funds. 

6. Commingled equity, bond, real estate, or money market funds whose investments are 
restricted to securities meeting the criteria of this section.  Investments in equities are 
not to exceed 70% of the Plan assets at market, and no more than 5% at cost of the 
equities may be invested in a single company. 

7. Master Limited Partnerships. 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

41 

NOTE 2 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
INVESTMENTS – PENSION TRUST FUND (CONTINUED) 
 
Investments held in trust for Plan benefits consist of the following at September 30, 2016: 
 

Reported Value
Investments

Money market funds 345,158$         
Certificates of deposit 397,529           
U.S. Treasury securities 285,384           
U.S. Government agency bonds 592,439           
Municipal obligations 117,639           
Corporate bonds 3,680,385        
Mortgage backed securities 316,351           
Equities

Common stock and American depositary receipts and
exchange traded funds 9,846,158        

Mutual funds 1,484,142        
Real estate investment trusts 48,077             

Master limited partnerships 653,545           
Core real estate fund 996,008           

Total 18,762,815$    

 
As of September 30, 2016, the Plan had the following investment types subject to interest 
rate risk: 
 

Sector
Investment Type Fair Value Distribution

Corporate bonds  $   3,680,385 73.7%
Municipal obligations          117,639 2.4%
U.S. Government agency bonds          592,439 11.9%
U.S. Treasury securities          285,384 5.7%

Mortgage backed securities          316,351 6.3%

Total Fair Value  $   4,992,198 

 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

42 

NOTE 2 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
INVESTMENTS – PENSION TRUST FUND (CONTINUED) 
 

Years % of Fixed Income Securities Rating % of Fixed Income Securities

0-1 2.0% AAA 2.0%
1-5 52.5% AA 44.4%
5-10 29.3% A 38.4%
10+ 16.2% BBB 10.1%

100.0% Not Rated 5.1%

100.0%

Maturity Distribution Credit Quality Distribution

 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
In accordance with its investment policy, the Plan manages its exposure to declines in the 
fair value of its securities through a conservative approach of managing portfolio exposure 
to duration, maturity and sector relative to market indices. 
 
Credit Risk 
State law limits investments in commercial paper to the two top ratings issued by nationally 
recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROs).  It is the Plan’s policy to limit its 
investments in this investment type to the top two ratings issued by NRSROs. As of 
September 30, 2016, the Plan’s investments in the U.S. Treasury Securities were rated AAA 
by Standard & Poor’s, and Aaa by Moody’s Investors Service.  The Investment Policy of the 
Plan states it is permitted to invest in corporate bonds with an investment quality rating with 
rating with the top three rating classifications by at least two major rating services 
(Standards & Poor, Moody’s or Fitch).  The corporate bonds held by the Plan were in the 
top three rating classifications.  The mortgage backed securities were rated AAA and Aaa 
by Standard & Poor’s, and Moody’s, respectively. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
The Plan’s investment policy does not allow for an investment in any one issuer, other than 
U.S. Government securities, that is in excess of five percent of the Plan’s total investments.  
No investment in any one organization represents five percent or more of total fiduciary net 
position. 
 
 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

43 

NOTE 2 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
INVESTMENTS – PENSION TRUST FUND (CONTINUED) 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the 
Plan will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are 
in the possession of an outside party.  All of the securities, whether fixed or equities are 
held in the name of the Plan. 
 
FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 
 
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The 
Plan categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by 
generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy categorizes the inputs to 
valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three levels based on the extent to 
which inputs used in measuring fair value are observable in the market. 

 
Level 1 - Investments' fair values based on prices quoted in active markets for identical 

assets. 
 
Level 2 - Investments' fair values based on observable inputs for the assets either directly or 

indirectly, other than those considered Level 1 inputs, which may include quoted 
prices for identical assets in markets that are not considered to be active, and 
quoted prices of similar assets in active or inactive markets. 

 
Level 3 - Investments' fair values based upon unobservable inputs. 
 
The following is a description of the fair value techniques for the Plan's investments. Level 
1 and 2 prices are obtained from various pricing sources by the Plan's custodian bank: 
 
Debt and equity securities classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using 
prices quoted in active markets for those securities. This includes U.S. Treasury securities, 
domestic and foreign common stock, american depository receipts (ADR), and exchange 
traded funds (ETF). 
 
 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

44 

NOTE 2 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (CONTINUED) 
 
Debt and equity securities classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using 
pricing inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants would use to price an asset or 
liability and are developed based on market data obtained from sources independent of the 
reporting entity. This includes U.S. Government Agency bonds, corporate bonds, municipal 
bonds and mortgage backed securities. 
 
Money market funds are reported at amortized cost. 
 
The following is a summary of the fair value hierarchy of investments as of September 30, 
2016: 

Quoted Prices
in Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs

9/30/2016 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Investments by Fair Value Level
Debt securities

U.S. Treasury securities 285,384$        285,384$        --$                 --$                 

Corporate bonds 3,680,385       858,767          2,821,618     --                   

Municipal obligations 117,639          --                     117,639        --                   

Mortgage backed securities 316,351          --                     316,351        --                   

U.S. Government agency bonds 592,439          --                     592,439        --                   

Total debt securities 4,992,198       1,144,151       3,848,047     --                   

Equity securities
Common stock, ADR's, and ETF's 9,846,158       9,846,158       --                   --                   

Mutual funds 1,484,142       1,484,142       

Real Estate Investment Trusts 48,077            48,077            --                   --                   

Total equity securities 11,378,377     11,378,377     --                   --                   

Total investments at fair value 16,370,575     12,522,528$   3,848,047$   --$                 

Fair Value Measurements Using

 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

45 

NOTE 2 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (CONTINUED) 
 

Quoted Prices
in Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs

9/30/2016 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Fair Value Measurements Using

Investments Measured at Net Asset Value (NAV)*

Core real estate fund 996,008          

Master limited partnerships 653,545          

Total investments measured at NAV 1,649,553       

Money market funds (exempt) 345,158          

Certificates of deposit (exempt) 397,529          

Total investments 18,762,815$   

 
 
* As required by GAAP, certain investments that are measured at net asset value have not 

been classified in the fair value hierarchy.  The fair value amounts presented in this table 
are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the total investment 
line item in the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position. 

 
The following table summarizes investments for which fair value is measured using the net 
asset value per share practical expedient, including their related unfunded commitments and 
redemption restrictions. 
 
Investments Measured at NAV Redemption Redemption

Fair Unfunded Frequency (if Notice
Value Commitments Currently Eligible) Period

Core Real Estate Fund (1) 996,008$   --$                  Quarterly N/A

Master limited partnerships  (2) 653,545$   --$                  3 Day Notice N/A

 
 

(1) Core real estate fund.  This fund is an open-end core real estate fund with a diversified portfolio of 
income producing institutional properties throughout the U.S.  This investment is valued at NAV and is 
redeemable on a quarterly basis. 

(2) Master limited partnerships.  This fund invests primarily in master limited partnerships as well as 
domestic common stocks or similar equity securities of high quality, financially secure companies listed 
on principal exchanges. This investment is valued at NAV and is redeemable with 3 day notice. 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

46 

NOTE 3 – RECEIVABLES 
 

Receivables as of September 30, 2016 for the Town’s major and nonmajor funds, including 
the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows: 
 

Water

Capital Nonmajor and Municipal Stormwater 

General Projects Governmental Sewer Parking Sanitation Utility Total

Receivables

Property taxes 59,334$    --$            --$                --$            --$            --$            --$              59,334$      

Intergovernmental 161,311    15,000      128,003        --              --              --              --                304,314      

Other 360,233    --              --                  755           505,700    --              --                866,688      

Accounts - billed --              --              --                  118,351 --              327,812 18,820       464,983      
Accounts - unbilled --              --              --                  585,307 --              --              88,852       674,159      

Gross receivables 580,878    15,000      128,003        704,413    505,700    327,812    107,672     2,369,478   

Less: allowance for 
uncollectibles --              --              --                  --              --              --              --                --                

Total Receivables, Net 580,878$  15,000$    128,003$      704,413$  505,700$  327,812$  107,672$   2,369,478$ 

 
 

NOTE 4 – PROPERTY TAXES 
 
Under Florida law, the assessment of all properties and the collection of all county, municipal 
and school board taxes are consolidated in the offices of the County Property Appraiser and 
County Tax Collector.  The laws of the State regulating tax assessments, also, are designed to 
assure a consistent property valuation method statewide.  State statutes permit municipalities 
to levy property taxes at a rate of up to 10.0 mills ($10 per $1,000 of assessed taxable 
valuation). The millage rate assessed by the Town for the fiscal year ended September 30, 
2016, was 5.0144 per $1,000. The tax levy of the Town is established by the Town 
Commission prior to October 1 each year, and the County Property Appraiser incorporates 
the millage into the total tax levy, which includes Miami-Dade County, Miami-Dade County 
School Board and special taxing districts. 
 
All property is reassessed according to its fair market value as of January 1 each year.  Each 
assessment roll is submitted to the Executive Director of the State Department of Revenue for 
review to determine if the rolls meet all of the appropriate requirements of State Statutes. 
 
All real and tangible personal property taxes are due and payable on November 1 of each 
year or as soon thereafter as the assessment roll is certified by the County Property 
Appraiser.  Miami-Dade County mails to each property owner on the assessment roll a notice 
 
 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

47 

NOTE 4 – PROPERTY TAXES (CONTINUED) 
 
of taxes due and Miami-Dade County collects the taxes for the Town.  Taxes may be paid 
upon receipt of such notice from Miami-Dade County, with discounts at the rate of four 
percent (4%) if paid in the month of November, three percent (3%) if paid in the month of 
December, two percent (2%) if paid in the month of January, and one percent (1%) if paid 
in the month of February.  Taxes paid during the month of March are without discount and 
all unpaid taxes on real and tangible personal property become delinquent and liens are 
placed on April 1 of the year following the year in which the taxes were assessed.  Procedures 
for the collection of delinquent taxes by Miami-Dade County are provided for in the laws of 
the State of Florida.  As of September 30, 2016, there were no material delinquent taxes. 
 
 

NOTE 5 – INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS 
 

The composition of the interfund balances as of September 30, 2016 is as follows: 
 
DUE TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS 

Water Transportation Police
and Surtax Forfeiture

Receivable Funds Sewer Fund Fund Total
General Fund --$               --$                  2,050 2,050$         
Stormwater Utility Fund 1,096,671 --                    --              1,096,671    

1,096,671$  --$                  2,050$      1,098,721$  

Payable Fund

 

Receivables noted above represent short-term arrangements made to cover temporary 
negative cash balances in each fund’s equity in pooled cash at year end. 
 
INTERFUND TRANSFERS 
 

Fund Transfers In Transfers Out
General Fund --$                 219,084$       
Capital Projects Fund 661,092 --                   
Stormwater Utility Fund --                   442,008         

Total Interfund Transfers 661,092$       661,092$       
 

 
Capital Projects Fund transfers in consisted of transfers from the General Fund and 
Stormwater Fund to provide funding for on-going construction projects. 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

48 

NOTE 6 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016 was as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending

Balances Increase Decrease Balances

Governmental Activities

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated

Land 1,461,229$     --$               --$                 1,461,229$     

Construction in progress 1,261,070       192,771      1,325,544     128,297          

Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 2,722,299       192,771      1,325,544     1,589,526       

Capital Assets Being Depreciated

Buildings 11,024,416     1,951          --                   11,026,367     
Machinery, furniture and equipment 2,957,119       247,968      359,790        2,845,297       
Infrastructure 4,263,220       1,325,544   --                   5,588,764       

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 18,244,755     1,575,463   359,790        19,460,428     

Less: Accumulated Depreciation for

Buildings 2,007,601       257,739      --                   2,265,340       
Machinery, furniture and equipment 1,906,091       307,241      315,429        1,897,903       
Infrastructure 1,199,145       256,909      --                   1,456,054       

Total Accumulated Depreciation 5,112,837       821,889      315,429        5,619,297       

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 13,131,918     753,574      44,361          13,841,131     

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net 15,854,217$   946,345$    1,369,905$   15,430,657$   

Business-type Activities

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated

Land 1,358,011$     --$               --$                 1,358,011$     
Construction in progress 60,715            --                 60,715          --                     

Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 1,418,726       --                 60,715          1,358,011       

Capital Assets Being Depreciated

Equipment 1,089,961       457,593      134,942        1,412,612       
Infrastructure 29,167,301     60,717        --                   29,228,018     

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 30,257,262     518,310      134,942        30,640,630     

Less: Accumulated Depreciation for

Equipment 731,121          93,740        126,781        698,080          
Infrastructure 3,779,935       942,935      --                   4,722,870       

Total Accumulated Depreciation 4,511,056       1,036,675   126,781        5,420,950       

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 25,746,206     (518,365)     8,161            25,219,680     

Business-type Activities Capital Assets, Net 27,164,932$   (518,365)$   68,876$        26,577,691$    



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

49 

NOTE 6 – CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 
 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Town as follows: 
 
Governmental Activities

General government 139,324$       
Public safety 189,955
Physical environment 362,285
Leisure services 59,199
Transportation 71,125           

Total Depreciation Expense –  Governmental Activities 821,888$       

Business-type Activities
Water and sewer 789,985$       
Municipal parking 92,788
Sanitation 23,549
Stormwater utility 130,353         

Total Depreciation Expense – Business-type Activities 1,036,675$    
 

 
 

NOTE 7 – LONG TERM LIABILITIES 
 
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
 
The following is summary of changes in long-term liabilities of the Town for governmental 
activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016: 
 

Beginning Ending Due Within

Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Governmental Activities
Capital lease 201,239$       --$                 100,013$       101,226$       49,061$         

Compensated absences 309,375         53,505           --                   362,880         36,288           

Net pension liability 953,954         2,253,828      987,349         2,220,433      --                   

Net OPEB obligation 242,285         58,496           --                   300,781         --                   

Total Governmental Activities 1,706,853$    2,365,829$    1,087,362$    2,985,320$    85,349$         

 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

50 

NOTE 7 – LONG TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 
 
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 
 
The following is summary of changes in long-term liabilities of the Town for business-type 
activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016: 
 

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Business-type Activities

Capital lease 38,123$           --$                 12,166$         25,957$            12,747$        
Revenue bonds series 2011 9,866,062        --                   599,572         9,266,490         627,869        
State revolving loan 8,591,249        --                   419,195         8,172,054         425,099        
Compensated absences 110,929           --                   7,170             103,759            10,376          
Net pension liability 126,400           302,773         130,886         298,287            --                  
Net OPEB obligation 38,562             4,395             --                   42,957              --                  

Total Business-type Activities 18,771,325$    307,168$       1,168,989$    17,909,504$     1,076,091$   

 

The General Fund is typically used to liquidate the compensated absences and the Net 
OPEB obligation. 
 
UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS SERIES 2011 
 
On April 28, 2011, the Town issued $16,000,000 Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 
2011 to finance the cost of certain construction projects, including improvements for the 
existing facilities for the water, sewer, and storm water systems.  Principal and interest is to 
be paid from the pledge of Water/Sewer and Storm Water fund revenues, plus a rate 
stabilization amount of $689,000, which is included in unrestricted net position of the 
Water/Sewer and Stormwater funds.  Principal is paid annually.  The bond bears interest of 
4.720% payable semi-annually, and it matures on May 1, 2026.  Total principal and 
interest remaining on the bond is $9,266,490, plus a rate stabilization amount of $689,000, 
which is included in unrestricted net position of the Water/Sewer and Stormwater funds..  
For the current year, debt service which is comprised of accrued interest and principal 
payments was $1,053,108.  Pledged revenues were $3,535,526. 
 

Principal Interest Total
Fiscal Year Ending September 30

2017 627,870$      437,379$      1,065,249$    
2018 657,506       407,743       1,065,249      
2019 688,540       376,709       1,065,249      
2020 721,039       344,210       1,065,249      
2021 755,072       310,177       1,065,249      
2022-2026 5,816,463    1,291,611    7,108,074      

Total 9,266,490$    3,167,829$    12,434,319$  
 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

51 

NOTE 7 – LONG TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 
 
STATE REVOLVING LOAN  
 
The Town executed a Clean Water State Revolving Fund Construction Loan Agreement 
#WW131710 with the State of Florida Department of Environmental Protection on August 
24, 2012 in the amount of $9,310,000 for the construction of Wastewater and Stormwater 
improvements.  The loan bearing an interest rate of 1.87% matures on January 15, 2033.  
No proceeds were received during the 2016 fiscal year. 
 
The principal total outstanding at September 30, 2016 is $8,172,053.  The loan is secured 
by the net water, sewer and stormwater revenues, plus a rate stabilization amount of 
$689,000, which is included in unrestricted net position of the Water/Sewer and Stormwater 
funds after payment of debt service on the Town’s existing series obligations.  Total debt 
service for fiscal year 2016 was $465,678 and the pledged revenue was $3,535,526.  The 
loan is payable in semi-annual payments over 20 years beginning on July 15, 2013 and is 
payable each January 15 and July 15. 
 

Principal Interest Total
Fiscal Year Ending September 30

2017 427,071$     150,830$       577,901$       
2018 435,095       142,806         577,901         
2019 443,269       134,632         577,901         
2020 451,597       126,304         577,901         
2021 460,081       117,820         577,901         
2022-2026 2,433,357    456,150         2,889,507      
2027-3031 2,670,691    218,816         2,889,507      
3032-3033 850,893       15,961           866,854         

Total 8,172,054$  1,363,319$    9,535,373$    
 

 
CAPITAL LEASES 
 
The Town entered into four separate lease agreements, at different dates, totaling 
approximately $472,000 for the purpose of financing the acquisition of police vehicles and 
equipment in the General Fund and Water and Sewer Fund.  These lease agreements 
qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the 
present value of its future minimum lease payments as of the inception date. One of the 
lease agreements was paid off during the year. 
 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

52 

NOTE 7 – LONG TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 
 
CAPITAL LEASES (CONTINUED) 
 
The first lease agreement was entered into on November 1, 2013.  The lease agreement was 
for the amount of $61,162 with an applicable annual interest rate of 4.30%.  The second 
lease agreement, entered on November 7, 2013, was for the amount of $82,559 with an 
applicable annual interest rate of 4.30%.  The third lease agreement, entered on October 
4, 2014, was for the amount of $82,559 with an applicable annual interest rate of 2.35%.  
All leases are payable monthly. 
 

Asset Acquired Under the Capital Lease
Machinery and equipment 687,382$       
Accumulated depreciation (467,702)       

Total Assets Acquired Under the Capital Lease 219,680$       

 
 

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease 
payments as of September 30, 2016 were as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year Ending September 30, Amount
2017            64,020 
2018            63,220 
2019              2,920 

Total minimum lease payments          130,160 
Less: interest portion              2,977 

Present Value of Future Minimum Lease Payments  $      127,183 

 
 
 

NOTE 8 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN 
 

The following brief description of the Plan is provided for general information purposes 
only.  Participants should refer to the Plan documents for more complete information. 

 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

53 

NOTE 8 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
PLAN DESCRIPTION 
 
The Plan is a contributory defined benefit single-employer retirement plan covering 
substantially all employees of the Town of Surfside.  All full-time employees are eligible to 
participate in the Plan immediately upon employment.  The administration of the Plan is 
under the responsibility of a five-member Board of Trustees, which is subject to the 
ultimate authority of the Town Commission. 
 
The Plan was established by a Town ordinance approved by the Commissioners and 
effective January 1, 1962.  The Plan is also subject to certain provisions of Chapter 112, 
Florida Statutes.  The benefit provisions and all other requirements, and amendments are 
established by Town Ordinance.  The benefits provided to the Fraternal Order of Police 
(FOP) members are subject to collective bargaining. 
 
The Plan issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information.  This report may be obtained by contacting the 
Town’s Finance Director or visiting the Town’s website. 
 
During 2011, the Town passed Ordinance 11-1580, which grants the right to Charter 
Officers to opt out of the Plan at any time.  
 
The Plan is administered by a Pension Board comprised of: 
 

 Two Town Commissioners 
 One police officer elected by a majority of police officers 
 A general employee elected by his fellow general employees 
 The Town Manager (a permanent member of the Board) 

 
Membership in the Plan as of October 1, 2015, the latest actuarial valuation, was as 
follows: 
 

Inactive plan members and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 36          

Inactive plan members entitled but not yet receiving benefits 6            

Active plan members 87          

Total Members 129        
 

 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

54 

NOTE 8 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
CONTRIBUTIONS AND FUNDING POLICY 
 
Funding of the Plan is provided by contributions from the Town and the employees.  The 
Town’s funding policy provides for annual actuarially determined periodic contributions at 
rates that, for individual employees, increase gradually over time so that sufficient assets 
will be available to pay benefits when due.  The Town contribution to the Plan which was 
determined based on the October 1, 2014 actuarial valuation, totaled $757,304 for the year 
ended September 30, 2016. 
 
General Employees 
Initially employees were required to contribute either 5% of their salary. One employee still 
contributes 5%, but all other general employees contribute 6%. 
 
Police Officers 
Certified law enforcement members of the Plan contribute eight percent (8%) of earnable 
compensation to the Plan. 
 
Deferred Retirement Option Program 
The Town maintains a Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) initially for Police 
officers and dispatchers only.  Effective August 13, 2013, the Town Commission passed an 
Ordinance, which amended the Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) to include all 
members of the retirement Plan who reach the earliest normal retirement age whereby such 
member shall be eligible to participate in the DROP.  The maximum period of participation 
in the DROP is sixty months.  No payments may be made from the DROP until the 
employee actually separates from service with the Town.  One (1) Police Officer is 
currently participating in the DROP as of September 30, 2016.  Two (2) general employees 
are currently participating in the DROP as of September 30, 2016. As of September 30, 
2016, the balance in the DROP account was $247,828.  This amount is included in the total 
investment balance presented on the statement of fiduciary net position. 
 
Basis of Accounting 
The Plan for Employees of the Town of Surfside’s financial statements are prepared on the 
accrual basis of accounting, reflecting income when earned and contributions for the year 
(regardless of when received) and  expenses and other obligations when incurred 
(regardless of when paid).  Benefit payments and refunds of contributions are recorded as 
they become due, and payable in accordance with the terms of the Plan.  Plan member 
contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due.  Employer 
contributions are recognized when due and payable, and the employer has made a formal 
commitment to provide the contributions. 

 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

55 

NOTE 8 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
Method Used to Value Investments 
The Plan investments are reported at fair value with the exception of money market funds, 
which are reported at amortized cost, as a result of having a remaining maturity at time of 
purchase of one year or less, and are managed by third-party money managers.  The Plan’s 
custodian and individual money manager price each instrument (using various third party 
pricing sources).  Investments that do not have an established market are reported at 
estimated fair value.  Performance reporting, manager fees, and the Plan’s asset valuation are 
based on the custodian’s determination of value. 
 
The net position of the Plan is the difference between the total plan assets and the total plan 
liabilities, and are held in trust for pension benefits.  Both realized and unrealized 
gains/losses are recognized under the net appreciation/depreciation in the fair value of 
investments. 
 
Investment and administrative expenses of the Plan may be paid either by the Town or by 
the Plan.  It is the policy of the Town that these expenses are to be paid by the Plan. 
 
NET PENSION LIABILITY OF THE TOWN 

 
In accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68, the net 
pension liability of the Town using a measurement date of September 30, 2015 was as 
follows: 
 

Total pension liability 19,012,209$ 
Plan fiduciary net position (16,493,489)  

Net Pension Liability 2,518,720$   

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 86.75%  
 

The above net pension liability is recorded within the government-wide and proprietary 
funds statement of net position as of September 30, 2016. 
 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

56 

NOTE 8 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 
 

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Net Pension
Liability Position Liability

(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balances at September 30, 2014 17,338,384$ 16,258,030$ 1,080,354$    

Changes for the year:
     Service cost 901,998         --                   901,998         
     Expected interest growth 1,336,817      --                   1,336,817      
     Benefit changes --                   --                   --                   
     Difference Between Actual and 

     Expected Experience 100,031         --                   100,031         
     Net investment loss --                   (132,329)        132,329         
     Contributions - Town --                   727,022         (727,022)        
     Contributions - member --                   391,213         (391,213)        
     Administrative expenses --                   (85,426)          85,426           
     Benefit payments, including 

     refunds of employee
       contributions (665,021)      (665,021)      --                  

         Net changes 1,673,825    235,459       1,438,366      

Balances at September 30, 2015 19,012,209$  16,493,489$  2,518,720$    

Increase (Decrease)

 
 
SIGNIFICANT ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS 
 
The total pension liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, 
applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 

Measurement Date: September 30, 2015

Actuarial valuation October 1, 2014
Interest rates:

Single discount rate: 7.50%
Inflation rate: 3.50%  



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

57 

NOTE 8 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
LONG-TERM EXPECTED RATE OF RETURN 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined based 
upon the historical average (means returns) which best-estimate ranges of expected future 
real rates of return.  In order to determine the real rates of return, it is necessary to subtract 
the expected inflation rate from the nominal investment return and investment expenses.  
The long-term expected rate of return for the Plan was calculated by weighting the expected 
future rates of return of each asset class by the corresponding target allocation percentages.  
The target allocation and best estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class 
included in the Plan's target asset allocation as of September 30, 2015 are summarized in 
the following table: 
 

Target Expected
Asset Long-Term

Asset Class Allocation Real Return
   Domestive equity 52.0% 8.1%

International equity 10.0% 2.7%
Fixed income 25.0% 4.4%
Real estate 10.0% 5.8%
Cash 3.0% 1.1%  

 
DISCOUNT RATE 
 
A discount rate of 7.50% was used to measure the total pension liability.  This discount rate 
was based on the expected rate of return on Plan investments of 7.50%.  The projection of 
cash flow used to determine this discount rate assumed that Plan member contributions will 
be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made at 
rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the 
member rate.  Based on these assumptions, the Plan's fiduciary net position was projected 
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.  
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on Plan investments was applied to all 
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability of the Town. 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

58 

NOTE 8 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
SENSITIVITY OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY TO CHANGES IN THE DISCOUNT RATE 
 
The following presents the net pension liability of the Town, calculated using the discount 
rate of 7.50%, as well as what the Town’s net pension liability (asset) would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.50%) or 1-percentage-
point higher (8.50%) than the current rate: 
 

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(6.50%) Rate (7.50%) (8.50%)

Net Pension Liability (Asset) of the Town  $   5,137,862  $   2,518,720  $      357,820 
 

 
PENSION EXPENSE AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS 

OF RESOURCES RELATED TO PENSIONS 
 
At September 30, 2016, the Town reported a net pension liability of $2,518,720 (September 
30, 2015, measurement date). The net pension liability was measured as of September 30, 
2015, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of October 1, 2014. For the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2016, the Town recognized pension expense of $952,643. In addition, the 
Town reported deferred outflows of resources related to the Plan from the following 
sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
Description of Resources of Resources

Differences between actual and expected experience 
   on liabilities 207,623$        --$                 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investment 915,299          

Town contributions subsequent to
the measurement date 757,304          --                   

Total 1,880,226$     --$                 
 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

59 

NOTE 8 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
PENSION EXPENSE AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS 

OF RESOURCES RELATED TO PENSIONS (CONTINUED) 
 
The deferred outflows of resources associated with the Town’s contribution to the Plan 
subsequent to the measurement date of September 30, 2015 in the amount of $757,304, will 
be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended September 
30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year Ending
September 30 Amount

2017 252,759$     
2018 252,759       
2019 252,761       
2020 311,784       
2021 38,691         

Thereafter 14,168         

Total 1,122,922$   
 
 
PAYABLE TO THE PENSION PLAN 
 
At September 30, 2016, the Town reported a payable of $22,146 for the outstanding 
amount of contributions to the pension plan required for the fiscal year ended September 
30, 2016. 
 
 

NOTE 9 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
 
The Town follows the standards for Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for 
Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (OPEB).  The standard does not require 
funding of OPEB expense, but any difference between the annual required contribution 
(ARC) and the amount funded during the year is required to be recorded in the employer’s 
Statement of Net Position as an increase (or decrease) in the Net OPEB obligation. 
 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

60 

NOTE 9 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 
 
PLAN DESCRIPTION 
 
The Town provides an optional single employer defined benefit post-employment 
healthcare plan to eligible individuals.  The Plan allows its employees and their 
beneficiaries, at their own cost, to continue to obtain health and dental insurance benefits 
upon retirement.  The benefits of the Plan conform to Florida Statutes, which are the legal 
authority for the Plan.  The Plan has no assets and does not issue a separate financial report. 
 
FUNDING POLICY AND ANNUAL OPEB COST 
 
The Town does not directly make a contribution to the Plan on behalf of retirees.  Retirees 
and their beneficiaries pay the same group rates as are charged to the Town for active 
employees by its healthcare provider.  However, the Town’s actuaries, in their actuarial 
valuation, calculate an offset to the cost of these benefits as an Employer Contribution, 
based upon an implicit rate subsidy.  This offset equals the total age-adjusted costs paid by 
the Town or its active employees for coverage of the retirees and their dependents for the 
year net of the retiree’s own payments for the year. 
 
The annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost is calculated based on the annual 
required contribution of the employer, an amount actuarially determined.  The annual 
required contribution represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is 
projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities 
over a period not to exceed thirty years. 
 
The annual OPEB cost for the Town for the current year and the related information is as 
follows: 
 
Required contribution rates:

Employer  Pay-as-you-go 
Plan members N/A

Annual required contribution  $          64,887 
Interest on normal cost              11,233 

Adjustment to the annual required contribution             (11,162)

Annual OPEB cost 64,958             

Estimated employer contribution               (2,067)

Increase in net OPEB obligation              62,891 

Net OPEB obligation - Beginning of Year            280,847 

Net OPEB Obligation - End of Year 343,738$         

 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

61 

NOTE 9 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 
 
THREE YEAR TREND INFORMATION 
 
The annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan and the 
net OPEB obligation are as follows: 
 

2016 2015 2014
Annual OPEB cost 64,958$         68,356$         62,759$         
Percentage of OPEB cost contributed 3.2% 7.0% 11.6%
Net OPEB obligation 343,738         280,847         217,276         
 

FUNDED STATUS AND FUNDING PROGRESS 
 
The funded status of the plan as of October 1, 2015, the latest actuarial valuation, was as 
follows: 
Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded UAAL as a %
Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Assets Liability (AAL) - (UAAL) Ratio  Payroll Payroll

(a) (b) (b) - (a) (a) / (b) (c) ((b - a) / c)
--$         374,338$              374,338$    0.0% 5,829,862$    6.4%

 

The actuarial valuation for the calculation of OPEB involves estimates of the value of 
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events in the future.  Amounts 
determined regarding the funded status of the Plan and the annual required contributions of 
the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past 
expectations and new estimates are made about the future.  The required schedule of 
funding progress presented as required supplementary information is designed to provide 
multi-year trend information to show whether the actuarial value of Plan assets is 
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.  
However, the Town has not contributed assets to the Plan at this time. 
 
ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS 
 
Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the 
employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date 
and the pattern of sharing benefit costs between the Town and the plan members to that 
point.  Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods and 
assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities 
and the actuarial value of assets.  Significant methods and assumptions were as follows: 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

62 

NOTE 9 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 
 
ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED) 
 
Actuarial valuation date 10/1/2015
Actuarial cost method Entry Age
Amortization method Level percent, open
Remaining amortization period 30 years
Asset valuation method Unfunded

Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return* 4.0%
Projected salary increases* 4.0% - 8.0%
Payroll growth assumptions 3.0%
Initial trend rate 8.0%
Ultimate trend rate 4.4%
* Includes inflation at 2.8%

 
 

NOTE 10 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Town is exposed to various risks and losses related to torts, theft of or damage to and 
destruction of assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters.  The 
Town participates with other municipalities and governmental units in a public entity risk 
pool administered by the Florida League of Cities Public Risk Services known as the Florida 
Municipal Insurance Trust (FMIT).  The Town pays annual premiums to the FMIT for its 
general liability insurance, commercial real and personal property, including electronic data 
processing equipment, automobile, liability, and physical damage insurance coverage. 
 
The Town also participates in the Florida League of Cities public risk pool known as the 
Florida Municipal Self Insurers Fund (FMSIF) to which it pays annual premiums for its 
workers’ compensation insurance.  The agreement with these public risk pools provides that 
the pools will be self-sustaining through member premiums and will re-insure through 
commercial companies for workers’ compensation and liability insurance for claims in excess 
of $1,000,000.  All policies are issued by FMIT and FMSIF on a non-assessable basis. 
 
The Town maintains commercial insurance for corporate fiduciary liability, flood, and 
windstorm coverage.  There were no reductions, only increases in insurance coverage from 
the prior year and there were no settlements that exceeded insurance coverage for each of 
the past three years. 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

63 

NOTE 10 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 
 

LITIGATION 
 

The Town is a defendant in various lawsuits incidental to its operations. As a result of the Red 
Light Camera ongoing litigation, the Town may have to pay back, in the future, to certain 
persons that received citations an amount that could exceed $500,000. This matter is still 
pending in the courts. It is the opinion of Town Management and Town Legal Counsel, that the 
ultimate resolution of all other matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial 
position and results of operations of the Town. 

 
 

NOTE 11– EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS 
 

In the Public Safety Department, expenditures exceeded appropriations by $130,039.  This was 
covered by excess of revenues over estimated revenues. 
 
 

 
 

 
 





Variance
with Final

Budgetary Budget -
Basis Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues

Property taxes 7,179,916$    7,179,916$    7,276,466$    96,550$         
Resort taxes 1,284,000      1,284,000      1,226,351      (57,649)         
Utility taxes 569,000         569,000         577,872         8,872             
Communications services tax 265,000         265,000         234,542         (30,458)         
Franchise taxes 448,000         448,000         424,878         (23,122)         
Licenses and permits 525,050         702,491         939,870         237,379         
Intergovernmental 697,100         697,100         717,252         20,152           
Charges for services 263,200         263,200         293,325         30,125           
Fines and forfeitures 680,000         760,200         1,140,065      379,865         
Interest earnings 5,500             5,500             17,913           12,413           
Miscellaneous 236,225         303,125         571,559         268,434         

Total Revenues 12,152,991    12,477,532    13,420,093    942,561         

Expenditures
Current:

General government 3,685,742      3,879,783      3,436,143      443,640         
Public safety 5,290,649      5,390,949      5,520,988      (130,039)       
Public works 1,280,924      1,320,688      1,113,789      206,899         
Leisure services 1,960,498      1,970,499      1,841,022      129,477         

Total Expenditures 12,217,813    12,561,919    11,911,942    649,977         

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
over Expenditures (64,822)         (84,387)         1,508,151      1,592,538      

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Fund balance (59,319)         --                   --                   --                   
Transfers in 276,841         276,841         276,841         --                   
Transfers out (152,700)       (219,084)       (219,084)       --                   

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 64,822           57,757           57,757           --                   

Net Change in Fund Balance --$                 (26,630)$       1,565,908$    292,584$       

Appropriated Beginning Fund Balance --$                 26,630$         

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA

Budgeted Amounts

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

GENERAL FUND

See notes to budgetary comparison schedule.

64



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

65 

NOTE 1 – BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 
 

Annual appropriated budgets for the governmental (except for the capital projects fund) and 
proprietary funds are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States, except for general fund debt service payments and transfers. 

 
1. Prior to August 1, the Town Manager submits to the Town Commission a proposed 

operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following October 1.  The budget 
includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. 

2. The Town Commission holds a public workshop on the proposed budget.  Formal public 
hearings are conducted in September to obtain taxpayers’ comments. 

3. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally adopted by resolution. 
 

Budgets are monitored at the department level.  Budgetary control over expenditures, including 
capital outlay and transfers, is maintained at the fund level whereby management cannot 
transfer or over expend appropriations at the individual fund level.   
 
Budgets in governmental funds are encumbered upon issuance of purchase orders, contracts or 
other forms of legal commitments.  While appropriations lapse at the end of each year, the 
succeeding year’s budget ordinance specifically provides for the reappropriation of year end 
encumbrances. 
 
The Town Manager is authorized to transfer part or all of an encumbered appropriation balance 
within a particular department or fund; however, any revisions that alter the total appropriations 
of any department (general fund) or fund must be approved by the Town Commission. 

 
If during the course of the fiscal year, it becomes evident that a particular fund is unable to 
provide the required level of services to the Town because of higher costs of providing services, 
or unforeseen circumstances, the budget may be amended.  The Town Manager submits to the 
Town Commission a request to amend the budget.  The request contains explanations, and 
includes a proposal for financing if additional appropriations are requested.  The amendment 
requires the Town Commission approval and adoption.  All necessary supplemental 
appropriations are adopted by the Town Commission as part of the budget review process and 
are included in the Final Budget columns on the budgetary comparison schedule.  There were 
supplemental appropriations in the amount of $284,786 in the General Fund for the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 2016. 
 
 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

66 

NOTE 2 – RECONCILIATION OF GAAP BASIS TO BUDGETARY BASIS 
 
Expenditures Reported on a GAAP Basis  $   11,738,327 

Transfers recorded as a reduction of expenditures            276,841 

Debt service not budgeted           (103,226)

Expenditures on a Budgetary Basis 11,911,942$    
 

 
 
 



Actuarial UAAL
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded as a %

Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio  Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b) - (a) (a) ÷ (b) (c) ((b - a) ÷ c)

October 1, 2009 --$              315,926$         315,926$       0.0% 4,364,293$    7.2%
October 1, 2012 --                271,313           271,313         0.0% 4,359,957      6.2%
October 1, 2015 --                374,338           374,338         0.0% 5,829,862      6.4%

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

67



Measurement Date, September 30, 2016 2015 2014
Total Pension Liability

Service cost 932,365$       901,998$       888,988$       
Interest 1,458,652      1,336,817      1,227,596      
Benefit changes --                    --                    35,244           
Difference between actual and expected experience (35,527)          100,031         170,264         
Changes of assumptions 402,655         --                    --                    
Benefit payments, including refunds of member 

contributions (602,692)        (665,021)        (545,746)        

Net Change in Total Pension Liability 2,155,453      1,673,825      1,776,346      

Total Pension Liability - Beginning 19,012,209    17,338,384    15,562,038    

Total Pension Liability - Ending (a) 21,167,662$  19,012,209$  17,338,384$  

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - Town 757,304$       727,022$       631,584$       
Contributions - Members 383,619         387,678         349,600         
Net Investment income 1,850,415      (128,796)        1,396,431      
Benefit payments, including refunds of member 

contributions (602,690)        (665,019)        (545,746)        
Administrative expense (130,686)        (85,426)          (80,194)          

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 2,257,962      235,459         1,751,675      

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 16,493,489    16,258,030    14,506,355    

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b) 18,751,451$  16,493,489$  16,258,030$  

Net Pension Liability - Ending (a) - (b) 2,416,211$    2,518,720$    1,080,354$    

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the 

Total Pension Liability 88.59% 86.75% 93.77%

Covered Employee Payroll 5,710,172$    5,321,296$    5,103,795$    

Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered-

Employee Payroll 42.31% 47.33% 21.17%

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA

This schedule is presented as required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, however, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years available.

TOWN'S NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

68



Actuarially Contribution Actual Contribution
Fiscal Year Determined Actual Deficiency Covered as a % of
End 9/30 Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Covered Payroll

2006 203,274$     230,812$         (27,538)$      3,170,278$    7.28%
2007 264,370       264,370           --                  3,653,048      7.24%
2008 384,905       384,416           489              3,978,291      9.66%
2009 423,747       423,747           --                  4,568,544      9.28%
2010 553,919       553,919           --                  4,059,522      13.64%
2011 625,963       625,963           --                  4,016,852      15.58%
2012 515,440       515,440           --                  4,053,208      12.72%
2013 534,209       534,209           --                  4,359,957      12.25%
2014 631,584       631,584           --                  5,305,109      11.91%
2015 727,022       727,022           --                  5,321,296      13.66%
2016 757,304       757,304           --                  5,710,172      13.26%

Notes to the schedule
Valuation date:   October 1, 2014

Actuarial cost method Entry age
Amortization method Level dollar, closed
Asset valuation method 5 year smoothed market
Salary increases 4.0% - 13.5%
Inflation 3.5%
Cost of living adjustments 1.5%
Investment rate of return 7.5%

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Generational Mortality Table for healthy Males or
Females, as appropriate, with adjustments for mortality improvements based on Scale AA.

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of October 1, two years prior to the 
end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.

Significant methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates for fiscal year ended
September 30, 2016:

SCHEDULE OF TOWN CONTRIBUTIONS

69





 

 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 

 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

 
Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to 
expenditures for particular purposes. 
 
Tourism Fund – This fund is used to account for the 34 percent portion of the resort tax 
collections, which are restricted to promote tourism related activities of the Town which are 
restricted to approved functions and activities. 
 
Transportation Surtax Fund – This fund is used to account for the restricted proceeds of the 
Town’s allocable share of the Miami-Dade County Transit System Surtax.  The expenditures 
from this fund are restricted to specific purposes. 
 
Police Forfeiture Fund – This fund is used to account for the restricted proceeds of police 
forfeitures and confiscations, and expenditures, which are restricted to approved functions and 
activities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Total
Nonmajor

Transportation Police Governmental 
Tourism Surtax Forfeiture Funds

Assets
Cash 413,236$       304,326$         132,395$       849,957$       
Investments --                    --                      12,483 12,483           
Receivables 51,903           76,100              --                    128,003         
Prepaid items 2,801              --                      353                 3,154              

Total Assets 467,940$       380,426$         145,231$       993,597$       

Liabilities
Accounts payable 99,968$         26,162$           1,073$           127,203$       
Accrued liabilities 1,164              --                      --                    1,164              
Due to other funds --                    --                      2,050              2,050              
Unearned revenue 600                 --                      --                    600                 

Total Liabilities 101,732         26,162              3,123              131,017         

Fund Balances
Non-spendable:

Prepaid items 2,801              --                      353                 3,154              
Restricted for:
  Tourism 363,407         --                      --                    363,407         
  Transportation surtax --                    354,264           --                    354,264         
  Police forfeiture --                    --                      141,755         141,755         

Total Fund Balances 366,208         354,264           142,108         862,580         

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 467,940$       380,426$         145,231$       993,597$       

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

Special Revenue Funds

70



Total
Nonmajor

Transportation Police Governmental 
Tourism Surtax Forfeiture Funds

Revenues
Resort taxes 639,875$       --$                 --$                 639,875$         
Intergovernmental --                   230,428         --                   230,428           
Fines and forfeitures --                   --                   70,624           70,624             
Interest earnings --                   --                   406                406                  
Miscellaneous 7,500           --                 --                  7,500              

Total Revenues 647,375       230,428       71,030          948,833          

Expenditures
Public safety --                   --                   33,153           33,153             
Leisure services 620,862         --                   --                   620,862           
Transportation --                   310,767         --                   310,767           
Capital outlay 1,951           6,059           9,200            17,210            

Total Expenditures 622,813       316,826       42,353          981,992          

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 24,562           (86,398)          28,677           (33,159)            

Fund Balances - Beginning 341,646       440,662       113,431       895,739          

Fund Balances - Ending 366,208$      354,264$      142,108$      862,580$        

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

71



Variance
with Final
Budget -

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues
Resort taxes 658,870$       658,870$       639,875$       (18,995)$       
Miscellaneous 3,000          3,000          7,500           4,500          

Total Revenues 661,870       661,870       647,375        (14,495)       

Expenditures
Current:

General government 661,870         661,870         620,862         41,008           
Capital outlay --                 --                 1,951           (1,951)         

Total Expenditures 661,870       661,870       622,813        39,057         

Net Change in Fund Balance --$                --$                24,562$         24,562$        

Budgeted Amounts

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
TOURISM FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

 SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

72



Variance
with Final
Budget -

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues
Intergovernmental $      217,000 $      217,000 $      230,428  $        13,428 
Miscellaneous 43,350         149,769       --                  (149,769)       

Total Revenues 260,350       366,769       230,428       (136,341)       

Expenditures
Current:

Transportation 249,500         355,919         310,767         45,152           
Capital outlay --                 --                 6,059            (6,059)           

Total Expenditures 249,500       355,919       316,826       39,093          

Excess of Revenues

    over Expenditures 10,850           10,850           (86,398)          97,248           

Other Financing Uses
   Transfers out (10,850)        (10,850)        --                  (10,850)         

Net Change in Fund Balance --$                --$                (86,398)$        (97,248)$       

Budgeted Amounts

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA

 BUDGET AND ACTUAL
TRANSPORTATION SURTAX  FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

 SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

73



Variance
with Final
Budget -

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues
Fines and forfeitures --$                 38,015$         70,624$         32,609$         
Miscellaneous 80,000         41,985         406               (41,579)         

Total Revenues 80,000         80,000         71,030          (8,970)           

Expenditures
Current:

Public safety 58,000           58,000 33,153           24,847           
Capital outlay 22,000         22,000         9,200            12,800          

Total Expenditures 80,000         80,000         42,353          37,647          

Net Change in Fund Balance --$                --$                28,677$         28,677$        

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA

Budgeted Amounts

POLICE FORFEITURE FUND 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

74





Contents Exhibits

Financial Trends
These tables contain trend information that may assist the reader in assessing the Town's current
financial performance by placing it in historical perspective. I - XII

Revenue Capacity
These tables contain information that may assist the reader in assessing the viability of the Town's
most significant "own-source" revenue source, property taxes.  XIII - XVII

Debt Capacity
These tables present information that may assist the reader in analyzing the affordability of the
Town's current levels of outstanding debt and the Town's ability to issue additional debt in the
future.  However, the Town does not have any outstanding general obligation bonded debt.

XVIII - XX

Demographic and Economic Information
These tables present demographic and economic information intended (1) to assist users in
understanding the socioeconomic environment within which the Town operates and (2) to provide
information that facilitates comparisons of financial statement information over time and among
towns. XXI - XXIV

Operating Information
These tables contain service and infrastructure indicators that can inform one's understanding how
the information in the Town's financial statements relates to the services the Town provides and the
activities it performs. XXV

Data Source:

This part of the Town of Surfside, Florida's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding this year's financial statements, note disclosures, and
supplementary information.  This information is unaudited.  

Unless otherwise noted, the information in these tables is derived from the financial
statements/comprehensive annual financial report for the applicable year.

Introduction to Statistical Section
Town of Surfside, Florida 

(Unaudited)



E
xh

ib
it 

I

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

E
xp

en
se

s:
  G

en
er

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t 
3,

58
6,

29
4

$ 
   

 
3,

93
3,

15
5

$ 
   

2,
84

4,
24

6
$ 

   
2,

40
4,

06
7

$ 
   

 
2,

79
1,

91
7

$ 
  

3,
11

7,
75

0
$ 

   
3,

55
5,

19
7

$ 
   

 
3,

32
9,

27
5

$ 
   

3,
43

2,
50

0
$ 

   
  

3,
29

5,
20

8
$ 

   
  

  P
ub

lic
 s

af
et

y
3,

59
9,

07
2

   
   

 
3,

70
3,

96
1

   
   

4,
09

4,
09

3
   

   
3,

78
6,

48
5

   
   

 
4,

09
9,

67
8

   
  

4,
41

8,
68

0
   

   
4,

40
4,

89
7

   
   

 
5,

00
3,

62
8

   
   

5,
62

4,
87

5
   

   
  

5,
87

1,
19

6
   

   
  

  P
ub

lic
 w

or
ks

95
9,

70
5

   
   

   
 

84
8,

33
4

   
   

   
96

1,
38

1
   

   
   

80
3,

14
7

   
   

   
 

82
9,

38
3

   
   

   
98

0,
59

0
   

   
   

1,
03

4,
89

0
   

   
 

1,
26

6,
81

0
   

   
1,

51
6,

32
9

   
   

  
1,

48
7,

59
0

   
   

  
  L

ei
su

re
 s

er
vi

ce
s

1,
23

8,
17

4
   

   
 

1,
74

8,
55

6
   

   
1,

55
8,

00
0

   
   

1,
08

6,
07

1
   

   
 

1,
13

9,
46

0
   

  
1,

69
1,

57
2

   
   

1,
76

7,
78

7
   

   
 

1,
68

8,
94

5
   

   
2,

35
0,

26
6

   
   

  
2,

53
4,

02
2

   
   

  
  T

ou
ri

sm
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

89
,6

35
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

38
1,

89
1

   
   

   
  

  T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
17

3,
75

9
   

   
   

11
4,

12
1

   
   

   
10

5,
68

2
   

   
   

 
12

4,
50

0
   

   
   

13
8,

81
5

   
   

   
16

8,
41

7
   

   
   

 
20

9,
37

3
   

   
   

27
1,

28
4

   
   

   
  

3,
21

3
   

   
   

   
   

  I
nt

er
es

t
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
75

4
   

   
   

   
 

6,
04

5
   

   
   

   
  

5,
78

7
   

   
   

   
 

5,
47

5
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

T
ot

al
 E

xp
en

se
s

9,
47

2,
88

0
   

   
 

10
,4

07
,7

65
   

 
9,

57
1,

84
1

   
   

8,
18

5,
45

2
   

   
 

8,
98

4,
93

8
   

  
10

,3
52

,1
61

   
 

10
,9

37
,2

33
   

  
11

,5
03

,8
18

   
 

13
,2

00
,7

29
   

   
13

,5
73

,1
20

   
   

P
ro

gr
am

 R
ev

en
u

es
:

C
ha

rg
es

 f
or

 s
er

vi
ce

s:
G

en
er

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t
34

0,
59

7
   

   
   

 
16

9,
74

9
   

   
   

19
8,

50
4

   
   

   
37

4,
55

6
   

   
   

 
45

9,
54

9
   

   
   

1,
27

4,
94

6
   

   
1,

39
5,

99
3

   
   

 
2,

20
5,

97
4

   
   

1,
00

3,
52

1
   

   
  

1,
23

3,
19

5
   

   
  

P
ub

lic
 s

af
et

y
20

5,
69

2
   

   
   

 
28

7,
32

4
   

   
   

19
9,

61
4

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

47
9,

79
5

   
   

   
62

6,
37

2
   

   
   

64
5,

80
3

   
   

   
 

77
7,

29
3

   
   

   
94

0,
38

0
   

   
   

  
1,

14
0,

06
5

   
   

  
L

ei
su

re
 s

er
vi

ce
s

16
2,

54
9

   
   

   
 

12
5,

12
0

   
   

   
12

3,
32

7
   

   
   

14
4,

75
7

   
   

   
 

16
6,

57
0

   
   

   
38

7,
17

0
   

   
   

40
4,

44
3

   
   

   
 

60
8,

31
6

   
   

   
60

1,
90

4
   

   
   

  
63

9,
87

5
   

   
   

  
   

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

51
6

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
O

pe
ra

ti
ng

 g
ra

nt
s 

an
d 

co
nt

ri
bu

ti
on

s
31

6,
54

7
   

   
   

 
32

5,
30

9
   

   
   

26
9,

31
7

   
   

   
38

2,
63

5
   

   
   

 
40

1,
30

0
   

   
   

24
5,

30
5

   
   

   
27

1,
58

8
   

   
   

 
52

3,
43

2
   

   
   

27
7,

33
1

   
   

   
  

30
1,

05
2

   
   

   
  

C
ap

it
al

 g
ra

nt
s 

an
d 

co
nt

ri
bu

ti
on

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

27
5

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

35
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

1,
39

5,
00

0
   

   
14

1,
21

7
   

   
   

  
55

4,
44

6
   

   
   

  

T
ot

al
 P

ro
gr

am
 R

ev
en

u
es

1,
02

5,
38

5
   

   
 

90
7,

50
2

   
   

   
79

0,
76

2
   

   
   

90
1,

94
8

   
   

   
 

1,
50

9,
00

5
   

  
2,

53
3,

79
3

   
   

3,
06

7,
82

7
   

   
 

5,
51

0,
01

5
   

   
2,

96
4,

35
3

   
   

  
3,

86
8,

63
3

   
   

  

N
et

 (
E

xp
en

se
) 

R
ev

en
u

e
(8

,4
47

,4
95

)
   

  
(9

,5
00

,2
63

)
   

  
(8

,7
81

,0
79

)
   

 
(7

,2
83

,5
04

)
   

  
(7

,4
75

,9
33

)
   

 
(7

,8
18

,3
68

)
   

  
(7

,8
69

,4
06

)
   

   
(5

,9
93

,8
03

)
   

 
(1

0,
23

6,
37

6)
   

 
(9

,7
04

,4
87

)
   

   

G
en

er
al

 R
ev

en
u

es
:

T
ax

es
:

  P
ro

pe
rt

y 
ta

xe
s

7,
37

7,
05

6
   

   
 

6,
29

2,
75

5
   

   
6,

32
5,

72
1

   
   

5,
32

3,
72

8
   

   
 

5,
61

9,
49

4
   

  
5,

26
4,

38
7

   
   

5,
25

7,
72

6
   

   
 

5,
66

0,
55

1
   

   
6,

52
6,

26
7

   
   

  
7,

27
6,

46
6

   
   

  
  R

es
or

t t
ax

es
47

7,
56

3
   

   
   

 
42

4,
27

9
   

   
   

36
6,

86
7

   
   

   
39

0,
87

3
   

   
   

 
43

5,
17

5
   

   
   

34
4,

06
3

   
   

   
34

3,
73

3
   

   
   

 
67

7,
07

9
   

   
   

1,
15

4,
04

1
   

   
  

1,
22

6,
35

1
   

   
  

  F
ra

nc
hi

se
 f

ee
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 g
ro

ss
 r

ec
ei

pt
s

45
3,

90
1

   
   

   
 

46
3,

82
3

   
   

   
41

6,
72

8
   

   
   

41
4,

83
5

   
   

   
 

41
6,

27
7

   
   

   
39

9,
62

1
   

   
   

39
4,

61
3

   
   

   
 

44
2,

57
2

   
   

   
45

1,
45

0
   

   
   

  
42

4,
87

8
   

   
   

  
  U

til
ity

 ta
xe

s
45

7,
90

5
   

   
   

 
43

8,
33

5
   

   
   

66
,8

25
   

   
   

  
12

0,
30

7
   

   
   

 
47

0,
35

0
   

   
   

47
1,

99
4

   
   

   
50

3,
59

2
   

   
   

 
55

3,
40

7
   

   
   

56
8,

46
2

   
   

   
  

57
7,

87
2

   
   

   
  

  C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ta

x
27

2,
87

0
   

   
   

 
33

7,
34

8
   

   
   

38
5,

48
6

   
   

   
34

3,
44

0
   

   
   

 
35

3,
66

7
   

   
   

32
5,

10
2

   
   

   
29

8,
01

9
   

   
   

 
28

2,
16

9
   

   
   

26
8,

85
9

   
   

   
  

23
4,

54
2

   
   

   
  

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
in

te
rg

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l r

ev
en

ue
s

58
4,

21
9

   
   

   
 

51
9,

83
7

   
   

   
86

2,
13

7
   

   
   

90
5,

25
5

   
   

   
 

65
7,

12
0

   
   

   
63

9,
58

2
   

   
   

63
8,

94
4

   
   

   
 

68
1,

95
6

   
   

   
71

3,
91

4
   

   
   

  
71

7,
25

2
   

   
   

  
U

nr
es

tr
ic

te
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t e

ar
ni

ng
s 

(l
os

se
s)

63
9,

61
6

   
   

   
 

19
4,

69
5

   
   

   
(3

6,
04

9)
   

   
   

98
,2

08
   

   
   

   
37

,3
68

   
   

   
  

62
,7

82
   

   
   

  
30

,3
99

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
28

,7
83

   
   

   
   

 
26

,9
88

   
   

   
   

 
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s

57
,9

41
   

   
   

   
49

,5
03

   
   

   
  

81
,2

80
   

   
   

  
56

,4
81

   
   

   
   

13
8,

28
3

   
   

   
20

5,
83

2
   

   
   

24
1,

93
0

   
   

   
 

39
6,

13
8

   
   

   
61

3,
36

7
   

   
   

  
57

1,
55

9
   

   
   

  

T
ot

al
 G

en
er

al
 R

ev
en

u
es

10
,3

21
,0

71
   

  
8,

72
0,

57
5

   
   

8,
46

8,
99

5
   

   
7,

65
3,

12
7

   
   

 
8,

12
7,

73
4

   
  

7,
71

3,
36

3
   

   
7,

70
8,

95
6

   
   

 
8,

69
3,

87
2

   
   

10
,3

25
,1

43
   

   
11

,0
55

,9
08

   
   

N
et

 T
ra

n
sf

er
s 

In
 (

O
ut

)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

(1
10

,9
40

)
   

   
  

12
1,

89
3

   
   

   
20

8,
50

2
   

   
   

 
21

2,
17

2
   

   
   

26
,3

29
   

   
   

  
40

2,
27

8
   

   
   

 
18

9,
77

0
   

   
   

(1
9,

27
2)

   
   

   
  

44
2,

00
8

   
   

   
  

T
ot

al
 G

en
er

al
 R

ev
en

u
es

 a
n

d
  N

et
 T

ra
n

sf
er

s
10

,3
21

,0
71

   
  

8,
60

9,
63

5
   

   
8,

59
0,

88
8

   
   

7,
86

1,
62

9
   

   
 

8,
33

9,
90

6
   

  
7,

73
9,

69
2

   
   

8,
11

1,
23

4
   

   
 

8,
88

3,
64

2
   

   
10

,3
05

,8
71

   
   

11
,4

97
,9

16
   

   

C
h

an
ge

 in
 N

et
 P

os
it

io
n

1,
87

3,
57

6
$ 

   
 

(8
90

,6
28

)
$ 

   
 

(1
90

,1
91

)
$ 

   
57

8,
12

5
$ 

   
   

86
3,

97
3

$ 
   

 
(7

8,
67

6)
$ 

   
   

24
1,

82
8

$ 
   

   
2,

88
9,

83
9

$ 
  

69
,4

95
$ 

   
   

   
1,

79
3,

42
9

$ 
   

 

D
at

a 
S

ou
rc

e:
A

pp
lic

ab
le

 y
ea

rs
' c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 a
nn

ua
l f

in
an

ci
al

 r
ep

or
t.

N
ot

e:
 T

er
m

in
ol

og
y 

fo
r 

al
l y

ea
rs

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

up
da

te
d 

w
it

h 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

 o
f 

G
A

S
B

 S
ta

te
m

en
t N

o.
 6

3.

F
or

 t
h

e 
F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

ed
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,

T
ow

n
 o

f 
S

u
rf

si
d

e,
 F

lo
ri

d
a 

C
h

an
ge

s 
in

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

 -
 G

ov
er

n
m

en
ta

l A
ct

iv
iti

es
 

L
as

t T
en

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
rs

 
(a

cc
ru

al
 b

as
is

 o
f 

ac
co

u
n

ti
n

g)

75



E
xh

ib
it

 I
I

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

E
xp

en
se

s:
  G

en
er

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t 
37

.9
%

37
.8

%
29

.7
%

29
.4

%
31

.1
%

30
.1

%
32

.5
%

28
.9

%
26

.0
%

24
.3

%
  P

ub
li

c 
sa

fe
ty

38
.0

%
35

.6
%

42
.8

%
46

.3
%

45
.6

%
42

.7
%

40
.3

%
43

.5
%

42
.6

%
43

.3
%

  P
ub

li
c 

w
or

ks
10

.1
%

8.
2%

10
.0

%
9.

8%
9.

2%
9.

5%
9.

5%
11

.0
%

11
.5

%
11

.0
%

  L
ei

su
re

 s
er

vi
ce

s
13

.1
%

16
.8

%
16

.3
%

13
.3

%
12

.7
%

16
.3

%
16

.2
%

14
.7

%
17

.8
%

18
.7

%
  T

ou
ri

sm
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

0.
9%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

2.
8%

  T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n

0.
0%

1.
7%

1.
2%

1.
3%

1.
4%

1.
4%

1.
5%

1.
8%

2.
1%

0.
1%

T
ot

al
 E

xp
en

se
s

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

P
ro

gr
am

 R
ev

en
u

es
:

C
ha

rg
es

 f
or

 s
er

vi
ce

s:
G

en
er

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t
33

.2
%

18
.7

%
25

.1
%

41
.5

%
30

.5
%

50
.3

%
45

.5
%

40
.0

%
33

.9
%

31
.9

%
P

ub
li

c 
sa

fe
ty

20
.1

%
31

.7
%

25
.2

%
0.

0%
31

.8
%

24
.7

%
21

.1
%

14
.1

%
31

.7
%

29
.5

%
L

ei
su

re
 s

er
vi

ce
s

15
.9

%
13

.8
%

15
.6

%
16

.0
%

11
.0

%
15

.3
%

13
.2

%
11

.0
%

20
.3

%
16

.5
%

O
pe

ra
ti

ng
 g

ra
nt

s 
an

d 
co

nt
ri

bu
ti

on
s 

30
.9

%
35

.8
%

34
.1

%
42

.5
%

26
.7

%
9.

7%
8.

9%
9.

6%
9.

5%
7.

9%
C

ap
it

al
 g

ra
nt

s 
an

d 
co

nt
ri

bu
ti

on
s

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

11
.4

%
25

.3
%

4.
8%

14
.3

%

T
ot

al
 P

ro
gr

am
 R

ev
en

u
e s

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
1%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

G
en

er
al

 R
ev

en
u

es
:

T
ax

es
:

  P
ro

pe
rt

y 
ta

xe
s

71
.5

%
72

.2
%

74
.7

%
69

.6
%

69
.1

%
68

.3
%

68
.2

%
65

.1
%

63
.2

%
65

.8
%

  R
es

or
t t

ax
es

4.
6%

4.
9%

4.
3%

5.
1%

5.
4%

4.
5%

4.
5%

7.
8%

11
.2

%
11

.1
%

  F
ra

nc
hi

se
 f

ee
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 g
ro

ss
 r

ec
ei

pt
s

4.
4%

5.
3%

4.
9%

5.
4%

5.
1%

5.
2%

5.
1%

5.
1%

4.
4%

3.
8%

  U
ti

li
ty

 ta
xe

s
4.

4%
5.

0%
0.

8%
1.

6%
5.

8%
6.

1%
6.

5%
6.

4%
5.

5%
5.

2%
  C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ta
x

2.
6%

3.
9%

4.
6%

4.
5%

4.
4%

4.
2%

3.
9%

3.
2%

2.
6%

2.
1%

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
in

te
rg

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l r

ev
en

ue
s

5.
7%

6.
0%

10
.2

%
11

.8
%

8.
1%

8.
3%

8.
3%

7.
8%

6.
9%

6.
5%

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

t e
ar

ni
ng

s 
(l

os
se

s)
6.

2%
2.

2%
-0

.4
%

1.
3%

0.
5%

0.
8%

0.
4%

0.
0%

0.
3%

0.
2%

M
is

ce
ll

an
eo

us
0.

6%
0.

5%
0.

9%
0.

7%
1.

6%
2.

6%
3.

1%
4.

6%
5.

9%
5.

3%

T
ot

al
 G

en
er

al
 R

ev
en

u
es

10
0.

0%
99

.9
%

99
.9

%
10

0.
0%

99
.9

%
99

.9
%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

D
at

a 
S

ou
rc

e:
A

pp
li

ca
bl

e 
ye

ar
s'

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 a

nn
ua

l f
in

an
ci

al
 r

ep
or

t.

F
or

 t
h

e 
F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

ed
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,

T
ow

n
 o

f 
S

u
rf

si
d

e,
 F

lo
ri

d
a 

C
h

an
ge

s 
in

 N
et

 P
os

it
io

n
- 

G
ov

er
n

m
en

ta
l A

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
- 

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

 o
f 

T
ot

al
 

L
as

t T
en

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
rs

 
(a

cc
ru

al
 b

as
is

 o
f 

ac
co

u
n

ti
n

g)

76



E
xh

ib
it

 I
II

S
ou

rc
e

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

E
xp

en
se

s:
  W

at
er

 a
nd

 s
ew

er
1,

42
8,

25
8

$ 
   

 
1,

78
8,

32
4

$ 
   

  
1,

66
9,

47
7

$ 
   

 
1,

99
0,

70
2

$ 
   

 
1,

81
8,

76
2

$ 
   

 
1,

73
0,

30
0

$ 
   

 
1,

83
7,

64
5

$ 
   

 
2,

93
6,

82
2

$ 
  

2,
98

7,
80

0
$ 

   
 

3,
15

0,
57

0
$ 

   
   

  
  M

un
ic

ip
al

 p
ar

ki
ng

17
6,

71
5

   
   

   
 

18
8,

08
6

   
   

   
  

17
4,

68
0

   
   

   
 

22
2,

10
8

   
   

   
 

36
8,

49
7

   
   

   
 

62
2,

20
8

   
   

   
 

88
8,

50
2

   
   

   
 

89
8,

12
1

   
   

  
95

4,
12

9
   

   
   

 
1,

09
5,

55
0

   
   

   
  

  S
an

it
at

io
n

1,
17

2,
07

5
   

   
 

1,
13

9,
61

9
   

   
  

1,
01

8,
57

9
   

   
 

94
9,

50
5

   
   

   
 

1,
02

2,
89

7
   

   
 

1,
07

3,
28

1
   

   
 

1,
13

1,
68

0
   

   
 

1,
34

7,
71

4
   

  
1,

33
4,

38
1

   
   

 
1,

45
2,

81
3

   
   

   
  

  S
to

rm
w

at
er

 u
ti

li
ty

10
0,

97
0

   
   

   
 

11
5,

72
3

   
   

   
  

12
8,

91
0

   
   

   
 

11
4,

08
6

   
   

   
 

12
2,

20
7

   
   

   
 

13
0,

32
3

   
   

   
 

14
4,

99
9

   
   

   
 

34
9,

43
4

   
   

  
47

1,
51

7
   

   
   

 
49

2,
59

9
   

   
   

   
  

T
ot

al
 E

xp
en

se
s

2,
87

8,
01

8
   

   
 

3,
23

1,
75

2
   

   
  

2,
99

1,
64

6
   

   
 

3,
27

6,
40

1
   

   
 

3,
33

2,
36

3
   

   
 

3,
55

6,
11

2
   

   
 

4,
00

2,
82

6
   

   
 

5,
53

2,
09

1
   

  
5,

74
7,

82
7

   
   

 
6,

19
1,

53
2

   
   

   
  

P
ro

gr
am

 R
ev

en
u

es
:

C
ha

rg
es

 f
or

 s
er

vi
ce

s:
  W

at
er

 a
nd

 s
ew

er
1,

51
2,

75
7

   
   

 
1,

35
2,

24
7

   
   

  
1,

96
6,

91
5

   
   

 
2,

51
8,

21
8

   
   

 
2,

87
6,

01
0

   
   

 
2,

78
5,

34
8

   
   

 
2,

63
2,

04
6

   
   

 
2,

91
7,

35
7

   
  

3,
43

0,
61

9
   

   
 

3,
02

7,
47

9
   

   
   

  
  M

un
ic

ip
al

 p
ar

ki
ng

28
8,

95
9

   
   

   
 

29
6,

60
0

   
   

   
  

39
4,

97
5

   
   

   
 

40
4,

29
3

   
   

   
 

67
9,

97
0

   
   

   
 

89
3,

02
6

   
   

   
 

1,
05

6,
46

7
   

   
 

1,
02

8,
74

0
   

  
1,

04
7,

50
6

   
   

 
1,

08
6,

76
3

   
   

   
  

  S
an

it
at

io
n

79
8,

02
8

   
   

   
 

78
2,

02
4

   
   

   
  

1,
25

1,
69

5
   

   
 

1,
24

4,
54

7
   

   
 

1,
23

1,
88

7
   

   
 

1,
21

9,
68

9
   

   
 

1,
23

8,
94

2
   

   
 

1,
21

7,
68

1
   

  
1,

38
1,

36
1

   
   

 
1,

70
5,

61
7

   
   

   
  

  S
to

rm
w

at
er

 u
ti

li
ty

11
4,

13
4

   
   

   
 

11
4,

21
9

   
   

   
  

24
3,

77
5

   
   

   
 

24
7,

00
2

   
   

   
 

50
1,

65
5

   
   

   
 

50
2,

97
2

   
   

   
 

49
9,

70
5

   
   

   
 

49
7,

30
0

   
   

  
49

3,
10

7
   

   
   

 
50

7,
82

7
   

   
   

   
  

C
ap

it
al

 g
ra

nt
s 

an
d 

co
nt

ri
bu

ti
on

s
76

1
   

   
   

   
   

  
12

,5
00

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
56

7,
71

0
   

   
   

 
27

6,
84

4
   

   
   

 
1,

08
6,

00
0

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

T
ot

al
 P

ro
gr

am
 R

ev
en

u
es

2,
71

4,
63

9
   

   
 

2,
55

7,
59

0
   

   
  

3,
85

7,
36

0
   

   
 

4,
41

4,
06

0
   

   
 

5,
85

7,
23

2
   

   
 

5,
67

7,
87

9
   

   
 

6,
51

3,
16

0
   

   
 

5,
66

1,
07

8
   

  
6,

35
2,

59
3

   
   

 
6,

32
7,

68
6

   
   

   
  

N
et

 (
E

xp
en

se
) 

R
ev

en
u

e
(1

63
,3

79
)

   
   

   
(6

74
,1

62
)

   
   

   
86

5,
71

4
   

   
   

 
1,

13
7,

65
9

   
   

 
2,

52
4,

86
9

   
   

 
2,

12
1,

76
7

   
   

 
2,

51
0,

33
4

   
   

 
12

8,
98

7
   

   
  

60
4,

76
6

   
   

   
 

13
6,

15
4

   
   

   
   

  

G
en

er
al

 R
ev

en
u

es
:

In
ve

st
m

en
t e

ar
ni

ng
s

20
1,

05
2

   
   

   
 

10
1,

30
7

   
   

   
  

2,
56

9
   

   
   

   
  

15
,6

22
   

   
   

   
15

,1
30

   
   

   
   

14
,7

90
   

   
   

   
(1

3,
81

1)
   

   
   

 
13

9
   

   
   

   
   

1,
40

6
   

   
   

   
  

22
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

ap
it

al
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

8,
94

7
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

M
is

ce
ll

an
eo

us
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
36

1
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

N
et

 T
ra

ns
fe

rs
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
0,

94
0

   
   

   
  

(1
21

,8
93

)
   

   
   

(2
08

,5
02

)
   

   
   

(2
12

,1
72

)
   

   
   

(2
6,

32
9)

   
   

   
  

(4
02

,2
78

)
   

   
  

(1
89

,7
70

)
   

   
 

19
,2

72
   

   
   

   
(4

42
,0

08
)

   
   

   
   

T
ot

al
 G

en
er

al
 R

ev
en

u
es

  N
et

 T
ra

n
sf

er
s

20
1,

05
2

   
   

   
 

21
2,

24
7

   
   

   
  

(1
19

,3
24

)
   

   
   

(8
3,

93
3)

   
   

   
  

(1
97

,0
42

)
   

   
   

(1
1,

53
9)

   
   

   
  

(4
16

,0
89

)
   

   
  

(1
87

,2
70

)
   

   
 

20
,6

78
   

   
   

   
(4

41
,7

88
)

   
   

   
   

C
h

an
ge

 in
 N

et
 P

os
it

io
n

37
,6

73
$ 

   
   

   
(4

61
,9

15
)

$ 
   

  
74

6,
39

0
$ 

   
   

1,
05

3,
72

6
$ 

   
2,

32
7,

82
7

$ 
   

2,
11

0,
22

8
$ 

   
 

2,
09

4,
24

5
$ 

   
(5

8,
28

3)
$ 

   
  

62
5,

44
4

$ 
   

   
(3

05
,6

34
)

$ 
   

   
   

D
at

a 
S

ou
rc

e:
A

pp
li

ca
bl

e 
ye

ar
s'

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 a

nn
ua

l f
in

an
ci

al
 r

ep
or

t.

N
ot

e:
 T

er
m

in
ol

og
y 

fo
r 

al
l y

ea
rs

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

up
da

te
d 

w
it

h 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

 o
f 

G
A

S
B

 S
ta

te
m

en
t N

o.
 6

3.

F
or

 t
h

e 
F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

ed
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,

T
ow

n
 o

f 
S

u
rf

si
d

e,
 F

lo
ri

d
a 

C
h

an
ge

s 
in

 N
et

 P
os

it
io

n
 -

 B
u

si
n

es
s-

ty
pe

 A
ct

iv
it

ie
s

L
as

t T
en

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
rs

 
(a

cc
ru

al
 b

as
is

 o
f 

ac
co

u
n

ti
n

g)

77



E
xh

ib
it

 I
V

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

E
xp

en
se

s:
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l a

ct
iv

it
ie

s
9,

47
2,

88
0

$ 
   

10
,4

07
,7

65
$ 

  
9,

57
1,

84
1

$ 
   

8,
18

5,
45

2
$ 

   
8,

98
4,

93
8

$ 
   

10
,3

52
,1

61
$ 

   
10

,9
37

,2
33

$ 
   

11
,4

67
,9

85
$ 

   
13

,2
00

,7
29

$ 
   

13
,5

73
,1

20
$ 

 
B

us
in

es
s-

ty
pe

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s

2,
87

8,
01

8
   

  
3,

23
1,

75
2

   
   

 
2,

99
1,

64
6

   
  

3,
27

6,
40

1
   

  
3,

33
2,

36
3

   
  

3,
55

6,
11

2
   

   
  

4,
00

2,
82

6
   

   
  

5,
53

2,
09

1
   

   
  

5,
74

7,
82

7
   

   
  

6,
19

1,
53

2
   

   

T
ot

al
 E

xp
en

se
s

12
,3

50
,8

98
   

 
13

,6
39

,5
17

   
  

12
,5

63
,4

87
   

 
11

,4
61

,8
53

   
 

12
,3

17
,3

01
   

 
13

,9
08

,2
73

   
   

14
,9

40
,0

59
   

   
17

,0
00

,0
76

   
   

18
,9

48
,5

56
   

   
19

,7
64

,6
52

   
 

P
ro

gr
am

 R
ev

en
u

es
:

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l a
ct

iv
it

ie
s

1,
02

5,
38

5
   

  
90

7,
50

2
   

   
   

 
79

0,
76

2
   

   
  

90
1,

94
8

   
   

  
1,

50
9,

00
5

   
  

2,
53

3,
79

3
   

   
  

3,
06

7,
82

7
   

   
  

5,
51

0,
01

5
   

   
  

2,
96

4,
35

3
   

   
  

3,
86

8,
63

3
   

   
B

us
in

es
s-

ty
pe

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s

2,
71

4,
63

9
   

  
2,

55
7,

59
0

   
   

 
3,

85
7,

36
0

   
  

4,
41

4,
06

0
   

  
5,

85
7,

23
2

   
  

5,
67

7,
87

9
   

   
  

6,
51

3,
16

0
   

   
  

5,
66

1,
07

8
   

   
  

6,
35

2,
59

3
   

   
  

6,
32

7,
68

6
   

   

T
ot

al
 P

ro
gr

am
 R

ev
en

u
es

3,
74

0,
02

4
   

  
3,

46
5,

09
2

   
   

 
4,

64
8,

12
2

   
  

5,
31

6,
00

8
   

  
7,

36
6,

23
7

   
  

8,
21

1,
67

2
   

   
  

9,
58

0,
98

7
   

   
  

11
,1

71
,0

93
   

   
9,

31
6,

94
6

   
   

  
10

,1
96

,3
19

   
 

N
et

 (
E

xp
en

se
) 

R
ev

en
u

e
(8

,6
10

,8
74

)
   

 
(1

0,
17

4,
42

5)
   

 
(7

,9
15

,3
65

)
   

 
(6

,1
45

,8
45

)
   

 
(4

,9
51

,0
64

)
   

 
(5

,6
96

,6
01

)
   

   
(5

,3
59

,0
72

)
   

   
(5

,8
28

,9
83

)
   

   
(9

,6
31

,6
10

)
   

   
 

(9
,5

68
,3

33
)

   
  

G
en

er
al

 R
ev

en
u

es
 a

n
d

 T
ra

n
sf

er
s:

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l a
ct

iv
it

ie
s

10
,3

21
,0

71
   

 
8,

60
9,

63
5

   
   

 
8,

59
0,

88
8

   
  

7,
86

1,
62

9
   

  
8,

33
9,

90
6

   
  

7,
73

9,
69

2
   

   
  

8,
11

1,
23

4
   

   
  

8,
84

7,
80

9
   

   
  

10
,3

05
,8

71
   

   
11

,4
97

,9
16

   
 

B
us

in
es

s-
ty

pe
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s
20

1,
05

2
   

   
  

21
2,

24
7

   
   

   
 

(1
19

,3
24

)
   

   
 

(8
3,

93
3)

   
   

  
 

(1
97

,0
42

)
   

   
 

(1
1,

53
9)

   
   

   
  

(4
16

,0
89

)
   

   
  

 
(1

87
,2

70
)

   
   

  
 

20
,6

78
   

   
   

   
 

(4
41

,7
88

)
   

   
  

T
ot

al
 G

en
er

al
 R

ev
en

u
es

10
,5

22
,1

23
   

 
8,

82
1,

88
2

   
   

 
8,

47
1,

56
4

   
  

7,
77

7,
69

6
   

  
8,

14
2,

86
4

   
  

7,
72

8,
15

3
   

   
  

7,
69

5,
14

5
   

   
  

8,
66

0,
53

9
   

   
  

10
,3

26
,5

49
   

   
11

,0
56

,1
28

   
 

C
h

an
ge

 in
 N

et
 P

os
it

io
n

1,
91

1,
24

9
$ 

   
(1

,3
52

,5
43

)
$ 

   
55

6,
19

9
$ 

   
 

1,
63

1,
85

1
$ 

  
3,

19
1,

80
0

$ 
  

2,
03

1,
55

2
$ 

   
  

2,
33

6,
07

3
$ 

   
 

2,
83

1,
55

6
$ 

   
 

69
4,

93
9

$ 
   

   
 

1,
48

7,
79

5
$ 

   

N
ot

e:
 T

er
m

in
ol

og
y 

fo
r 

al
l y

ea
rs

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

up
da

te
d 

w
it

h 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

 o
f 

G
A

S
B

 S
ta

te
m

en
t N

o.
 6

3.

F
or

 t
h

e 
F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

ed
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 

T
ow

n
 o

f 
S

u
rf

si
d

e,
 F

lo
ri

d
a 

C
h

an
ge

s 
in

 T
ot

al
 N

et
 P

os
it

io
n

L
as

t T
en

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
rs

 
(a

cc
ru

al
 b

as
is

 o
f 

ac
co

u
n

ti
n

g)

78



E
xh

ib
it

 V

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

G
ov

er
n

m
en

ta
l A

ct
iv

it
ie

s
N

et
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n

 c
ap

it
al

 a
ss

et
s

8,
01

4,
19

7
$ 

   
 

9,
10

2,
08

5
$ 

   
 

9,
20

5,
41

2
$ 

   
   

9,
59

6,
67

2
$ 

   
  

14
,0

39
,2

38
$ 

   
13

,5
28

,0
97

$ 
   

   
13

,5
62

,4
57

$ 
   

   
   

14
,5

38
,5

78
$ 

   
15

,6
52

,9
78

$ 
   

 
15

,3
29

,4
31

$ 
   

R
es

tr
ic

te
d

78
8,

41
2

   
   

   
 

81
9,

42
7

   
   

   
 

72
4,

12
2

   
   

   
   

66
7,

36
0

   
   

   
  

54
2,

51
6

   
   

   
  

41
6,

07
0

   
   

   
   

  
36

4,
11

5
   

   
   

   
   

  
73

6,
44

1
   

   
   

  
89

3,
48

9
   

   
   

   
85

9,
42

6
   

   
   

  
U

nr
es

tr
ic

te
d

9,
94

5,
44

6
   

   
 

7,
93

5,
91

5
   

   
 

7,
73

7,
70

2
   

   
   

7,
98

1,
32

9
   

   
  

4,
52

7,
58

0
   

   
  

5,
08

6,
49

1
   

   
   

  
5,

34
5,

91
4

   
   

   
   

  
6,

88
7,

30
6

   
   

  
5,

14
7,

90
1

   
   

   
7,

29
8,

94
0

   
   

  

S
u

b
to

ta
l G

ov
er

n
m

en
ta

l
A

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
N

et
 P

os
it

io
n

18
,7

48
,0

55
   

  
17

,8
57

,4
27

   
  

17
,6

67
,2

36
   

   
 

18
,2

45
,3

61
   

   
19

,1
09

,3
34

   
   

19
,0

30
,6

58
   

   
   

19
,2

72
,4

86
   

   
   

   
22

,1
62

,3
25

   
   

21
,6

94
,3

68
   

   
 

23
,4

87
,7

97
   

   

B
u

si
n

es
s-

ty
p

e 
A

ct
iv

it
ie

s
N

et
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n

 c
ap

it
al

 a
ss

et
s

74
0,

13
3

   
   

   
 

96
3,

19
5

   
   

   
 

1,
27

8,
82

5
   

   
   

2,
03

7,
30

8
   

   
  

4,
10

2,
67

5
   

   
  

11
,2

39
,6

64
   

   
   

12
,8

32
,6

72
   

   
   

   
9,

87
3,

87
1

   
   

  
8,

61
5,

95
5

   
   

   
9,

11
3,

55
0

   
   

  
R

es
tr

ic
te

d 
34

3,
86

8
   

   
   

 
1,

68
9,

81
5

   
   

 
1,

35
8,

81
1

   
   

   
1,

82
2,

85
8

   
   

  
1,

82
2,

85
8

   
   

  
1,

28
3,

91
6

   
   

   
  

1,
60

7,
91

6
   

   
   

   
  

1,
60

7,
91

6
   

   
  

2,
11

2,
45

9
   

   
   

59
0,

24
5

   
   

   
  

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d
4,

03
9,

11
3

   
   

 
2,

00
8,

18
9

   
   

 
2,

76
9,

95
3

   
   

   
2,

60
1,

14
9

   
   

  
2,

86
3,

60
9

   
   

  
(1

,6
24

,2
10

)
   

   
   

 
(1

,4
46

,9
73

)
   

   
   

   
 

1,
45

3,
54

5
   

   
  

2,
77

5,
45

3
   

   
   

3,
49

4,
43

8
   

   
  

S
u

b
to

ta
l B

u
si

n
es

s-
ty

p
e 

A
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

N
et

 P
os

it
io

n
5,

12
3,

11
4

   
   

 
4,

66
1,

19
9

   
   

 
5,

40
7,

58
9

   
   

   
6,

46
1,

31
5

   
   

  
8,

78
9,

14
2

   
   

  
10

,8
99

,3
70

   
   

   
12

,9
93

,6
15

   
   

   
   

12
,9

35
,3

32
   

   
13

,5
03

,8
67

   
   

 
13

,1
98

,2
33

   
   

P
ri

m
ar

y 
G

ov
er

n
m

en
t

N
et

 in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n
 c

ap
it

al
 a

ss
et

s
8,

75
4,

33
0

   
   

 
10

,0
65

,2
80

   
  

10
,4

84
,2

37
   

   
 

11
,6

33
,9

80
   

   
18

,1
41

,9
13

   
   

24
,7

67
,7

61
   

   
   

26
,3

95
,1

29
   

   
   

   
24

,4
12

,4
49

   
   

24
,2

68
,9

33
   

   
 

24
,4

42
,9

81
   

   
R

es
tr

ic
te

d
1,

13
2,

28
0

   
   

 
2,

50
9,

24
2

   
   

 
2,

08
2,

93
3

   
   

   
2,

49
0,

21
8

   
   

  
2,

36
5,

37
4

   
   

  
1,

69
9,

98
6

   
   

   
  

1,
97

2,
03

1
   

   
   

   
  

2,
34

4,
35

7
   

   
  

3,
00

5,
94

8
   

   
   

1,
44

9,
67

1
   

   
  

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
13

,9
84

,5
59

   
  

9,
94

4,
10

4
   

   
 

10
,5

07
,6

55
   

   
 

10
,5

82
,4

78
   

   
7,

39
1,

18
9

   
   

  
3,

46
2,

28
1

   
   

   
  

3,
89

8,
94

1
   

   
   

   
  

8,
34

0,
85

1
   

   
  

7,
92

3,
35

4
   

   
   

10
,7

93
,3

78
   

   

T
ot

al
 P

ri
m

ar
y

G
ov

er
n

m
en

t 
N

et
 P

os
it

io
n

23
,8

71
,1

69
$ 

  
22

,5
18

,6
26

$ 
  

23
,0

74
,8

25
$ 

   
24

,7
06

,6
76

$ 
  

27
,8

98
,4

76
$ 

  
29

,9
30

,0
28

$ 
   

   
32

,2
66

,1
01

$ 
   

   
  

35
,0

97
,6

57
$ 

  
35

,1
98

,2
35

$ 
   

36
,6

86
,0

30
$ 

  

N
ot

e:
 T

er
m

in
ol

og
y 

fo
r 

al
l y

ea
rs

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

up
da

te
d 

w
it

h 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

 o
f 

G
A

S
B

 S
ta

te
m

en
t N

o.
 6

3.

T
ow

n
 o

f 
S

u
rf

si
d

e,
 F

lo
ri

d
a 

G
ov

er
n

m
en

t-
w

id
e 

N
et

 P
os

it
io

n
 b

y 
C

at
eg

or
y

 L
as

t T
en

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
rs

(a
cc

ru
al

 b
as

is
 o

f 
ac

co
u

n
ti

n
g)

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 3
0,

79



E
xh

ib
it

 V
I

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

R
ev

en
u

e 
S

ou
rc

e

T
ax

es
9,

03
9,

29
5

$ 
   

 
7,

95
6,

54
0

$ 
   

  
7,

56
1,

62
7

$ 
  

6,
93

6,
62

3
$ 

   
7,

29
4,

96
3

$ 
   

  
6,

98
4,

74
7

$ 
   

   
 

6,
97

7,
94

9
$ 

   
 

7,
96

9,
54

0
$ 

   
   

9,
57

0,
98

3
$ 

   
   

10
,3

79
,9

84
$ 

   
 

In
te

rg
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l
85

8,
40

5
   

   
   

 
88

7,
50

7
   

   
   

  
1,

13
1,

45
4

   
  

74
5,

54
0

   
   

   
96

7,
98

8
   

   
   

  
83

0,
87

8
   

   
   

   
 

84
4,

89
1

   
   

   
 

1,
12

6,
41

2
   

   
   

94
2,

30
5

   
   

   
   

94
7,

68
0

   
   

   
   

L
ic

en
se

s 
an

d 
pe

rm
it

s
34

0,
59

7
   

   
   

 
16

9,
74

9
   

   
   

  
19

8,
50

4
   

   
  

37
4,

55
6

   
   

   
45

9,
54

9
   

   
   

  
1,

27
4,

94
6

   
   

   
 

1,
39

5,
99

3
   

   
 

2,
20

5,
97

4
   

   
   

71
5,

65
7

   
   

   
   

93
9,

87
0

   
   

   
   

C
ha

rg
es

 f
or

 s
er

vi
ce

s
16

2,
54

9
   

   
   

 
12

5,
12

0
   

   
   

  
12

3,
32

7
   

   
  

14
4,

75
7

   
   

   
16

6,
18

3
   

   
   

  
20

7,
56

3
   

   
   

   
 

22
4,

17
7

   
   

   
 

25
4,

55
4

   
   

   
   

28
7,

86
4

   
   

   
   

29
3,

32
5

   
   

   
   

F
in

es
 a

nd
 f

or
fe

it
ur

es
20

5,
69

2
   

   
   

 
28

7,
32

4
   

   
   

  
19

9,
61

4
   

   
  

19
0,

24
3

   
   

   
57

0,
22

7
   

   
   

  
67

8,
56

7
   

   
   

   
 

71
1,

44
4

   
   

   
 

85
6,

26
9

   
   

   
   

98
9,

32
0

   
   

   
   

1,
21

0,
68

9
   

   
   

D
ev

el
op

er
 f

ee
s

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

35
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

1,
39

5,
00

0
   

   
   

76
,9

80
   

   
   

   
  

55
4,

44
6

   
   

   
   

In
ve

st
m

en
t e

ar
ni

ng
s 

63
9,

61
6

   
   

   
 

19
4,

69
5

   
   

   
  

(3
6,

04
9)

   
   

   
10

3,
57

6
   

   
   

39
,5

45
   

   
   

   
 

58
,8

19
   

   
   

   
   

30
,3

99
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
28

,7
83

   
   

   
   

  
26

,9
88

   
   

   
   

  
M

is
ce

ll
an

eo
us

 
57

,9
41

   
   

   
   

49
,5

03
   

   
   

   
 

96
,2

89
   

   
   

 
59

,7
81

   
   

   
  

13
8,

28
3

   
   

   
  

21
1,

63
6

   
   

   
   

 
24

4,
23

4
   

   
   

 
39

9,
35

9
   

   
   

   
61

5,
87

2
   

   
   

   
57

1,
55

9
   

   
   

   

T
ot

al
 R

ev
en

u
es

11
,3

04
,0

95
$ 

  
9,

67
0,

43
8

$ 
   

  
9,

27
4,

76
6

$ 
 

8,
55

5,
07

6
$ 

  
9,

63
6,

73
8

$ 
   

 
10

,2
47

,1
56

$ 
   

  
10

,7
79

,0
87

$ 
 

14
,2

07
,1

08
$ 

   
13

,2
27

,7
64

$ 
   

14
,9

24
,5

41
$ 

   

%
 c

h
an

ge
 f

ro
m

 p
ri

or
 y

ea
r

7.
5%

-1
4.

5%
-4

.1
%

-7
.8

%
12

.6
%

6.
3%

5.
2%

31
.8

%
-6

.9
%

12
.8

%

T
ax

es
80

.0
%

82
.3

%
81

.5
%

81
.1

%
75

.7
%

68
.2

%
64

.7
%

56
.1

%
72

.4
%

69
.5

%
In

te
rg

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l

7.
6%

9.
2%

12
.2

%
8.

7%
10

.0
%

8.
1%

7.
8%

7.
9%

7.
1%

6.
3%

L
ic

en
se

s 
an

d 
pe

rm
it

s
3.

0%
1.

8%
2.

1%
4.

4%
4.

8%
12

.4
%

13
.0

%
15

.5
%

5.
4%

6.
3%

C
ha

rg
es

 f
or

 s
er

vi
ce

s
1.

4%
1.

3%
1.

3%
1.

7%
1.

7%
2.

0%
2.

1%
1.

8%
2.

2%
2.

0%
F

in
es

 a
nd

 f
or

fe
it

ur
es

1.
8%

3.
0%

2.
3%

2.
2%

5.
9%

6.
6%

6.
6%

6.
0%

7.
5%

8.
1%

D
ev

el
op

er
 f

ee
s

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

3.
2%

9.
8%

0.
6%

3.
7%

In
ve

st
m

en
t e

ar
ni

ng
s

5.
7%

2.
0%

-0
.4

%
1.

2%
0.

4%
0.

6%
0.

3%
0.

0%
0.

2%
0.

2%
M

is
ce

ll
an

eo
us

0.
5%

0.
4%

1.
0%

0.
7%

1.
4%

2.
1%

2.
3%

2.
9%

4.
7%

3.
9%

T
ot

al
 R

ev
en

u
es

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

D
at

a 
S

ou
rc

e:
A

pp
li

ca
bl

e 
ye

ar
s'

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 a

nn
ua

l f
in

an
ci

al
 r

ep
or

t.

A
m

ou
n

ts

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

s

T
ow

n
 o

f 
S

u
rf

si
d

e,
 F

lo
ri

d
a 

G
en

er
al

 G
ov

er
n

m
en

ta
l R

ev
en

u
es

 b
y 

S
ou

rc
e 

L
as

t T
en

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
rs

(m
od

if
ie

d 
ac

cr
u

al
 b

as
is

 o
f 

ac
co

u
n

ti
n

g)

F
or

 t
h

e 
F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

ed
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,

80



E
xh

ib
it

 V
II

F
or

 T
h

e
F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r
C

om
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

s

E
n

d
ed

 S
ep

te
m

b
er

 3
0,

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

es
or

t
U

ti
li

ty
F

ra
n

ch
is

e
S

er
vi

ce
T

ot
al

20
07

7,
37

7,
05

6
$ 

   
  

47
7,

56
3

$ 
   

   
  

45
7,

90
5

$ 
   

   
  

45
3,

90
1

$ 
   

   
   

27
2,

87
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
9,

03
9,

29
5

$ 
   

  
20

08
6,

29
2,

75
5

   
   

  
42

4,
27

9
   

   
   

  
43

8,
33

5
   

   
   

  
46

3,
82

3
   

   
   

   
33

7,
34

8
   

   
   

   
  

7,
95

6,
54

0
   

   
  

20
09

6,
32

5,
72

1
   

   
  

36
6,

86
7

   
   

   
  

66
,8

25
   

   
   

   
 

41
6,

72
8

   
   

   
   

38
5,

48
6

   
   

   
   

  
7,

56
1,

62
7

   
   

  
20

10
5,

32
3,

72
8

   
   

  
39

0,
87

3
   

   
   

  
46

3,
74

7
   

   
   

  
41

4,
83

5
   

   
   

   
34

3,
44

0
   

   
   

   
  

6,
93

6,
62

3
   

   
  

20
11

5,
61

9,
49

4
   

   
  

43
5,

17
5

   
   

   
  

47
0,

35
0

   
   

   
  

41
6,

27
7

   
   

   
   

35
3,

66
7

   
   

   
   

  
7,

29
4,

96
3

   
   

  
20

12
5,

26
4,

38
7

   
   

  
52

3,
64

3
   

   
   

  
47

1,
99

4
   

   
   

  
39

9,
62

1
   

   
   

   
32

5,
10

2
   

   
   

   
  

6,
98

4,
74

7
   

   
  

20
13

5,
25

7,
72

6
   

   
  

52
3,

99
9

   
   

   
  

50
3,

59
2

   
   

   
  

39
4,

61
3

   
   

   
   

29
8,

01
9

   
   

   
   

  
6,

97
7,

94
9

   
   

  
20

14
5,

66
0,

55
1

   
   

  
1,

03
0,

84
1

   
   

  
55

3,
40

7
   

   
   

  
44

2,
57

2
   

   
   

   
28

2,
16

9
   

   
   

   
  

7,
96

9,
54

0
   

   
  

20
15

6,
52

6,
26

7
   

   
  

1,
75

5,
94

5
   

   
  

56
8,

46
2

   
   

   
  

45
1,

45
0

   
   

   
   

26
8,

85
9

   
   

   
   

  
9,

57
0,

98
3

   
   

  
20

16
7,

27
6,

46
6

   
   

  
1,

86
6,

22
6

   
   

  
57

7,
87

2
   

   
   

  
42

4,
87

8
   

   
   

   
23

4,
54

2
   

   
   

   
  

10
,3

79
,9

84
   

   
\

%
 C

h
an

ge
 in

 D
ol

la
rs

O
ve

r 
10

 Y
ea

rs
-1

.4
%

29
0.

8%
26

.2
%

-6
.4

%
-1

4.
0%

14
.8

%

20
07

81
.6

%
5.

3%
5.

1%
5.

0%
3.

0%
10

0.
0%

20
08

79
.1

%
5.

3%
5.

5%
5.

8%
4.

2%
10

0.
0%

20
09

83
.7

%
4.

9%
0.

9%
5.

5%
5.

1%
10

0.
0%

20
10

76
.7

%
5.

6%
6.

7%
6.

0%
5.

0%
10

0.
0%

20
11

77
.0

%
6.

0%
6.

4%
5.

7%
4.

8%
10

0.
0%

20
12

75
.4

%
7.

5%
6.

8%
5.

7%
4.

6%
10

0.
0%

20
13

75
.3

%
7.

5%
7.

2%
5.

7%
4.

3%
10

0.
0%

20
14

71
.0

%
12

.9
%

6.
9%

5.
6%

3.
6%

10
0.

0%
20

15
68

.2
%

18
.3

%
5.

9%
4.

7%
2.

8%
10

0.
0%

20
16

70
.0

%
18

.0
%

5.
6%

4.
1%

2.
3%

10
0.

0%

D
at

a 
S

ou
rc

e:
A

pp
li

ca
bl

e 
ye

ar
s'

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 a

nn
ua

l f
in

an
ci

al
 r

ep
or

t.

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

 o
f 

T
ot

al

T
ax

 R
ev

en
u

es
 b

y 
S

ou
rc

e 
- 

G
ov

er
n

m
en

ta
l F

u
n

ds
 

T
ow

n
 o

f 
S

u
rf

si
d

e,
 F

lo
ri

d
a 

L
as

t T
en

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
rs

(m
od

if
ie

d 
ac

cr
u

al
 b

as
is

 o
f 

ac
co

u
n

ti
n

g)

A
m

ou
n

ts

81



E
xh

ib
it

 V
II

I

F
u

n
ct

io
n

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

C
u

rr
en

t:
  G

en
er

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t 
3,

54
9,

72
9

$ 
   

3,
82

8,
84

0
$ 

   
  

2,
70

3,
86

8
$ 

   
2,

31
5,

55
4

$ 
   

2,
30

3,
52

3
$ 

   
  

2,
91

7,
76

5
$ 

   
  

3,
38

8,
04

6
$ 

   
  

3,
07

2,
34

6
$ 

   
  

3,
24

1,
32

6
$ 

   
 

3,
15

9,
30

2
$ 

   
 

  P
ub

li
c 

sa
fe

ty
3,

50
1,

36
7

   
   

3,
58

4,
29

5
   

   
  

3,
92

8,
49

1
   

   
3,

64
8,

76
6

   
   

3,
95

7,
26

5
   

   
  

3,
99

0,
27

4
   

   
  

4,
50

7,
84

0
   

   
  

4,
84

2,
49

1
   

   
  

5,
42

6,
58

7
   

   
 

5,
55

4,
14

1
   

   
 

  P
ub

li
c 

w
or

ks
83

3,
63

1
   

   
   

 
74

9,
35

8
   

   
   

  
85

5,
52

6
   

   
   

69
5,

64
2

   
   

   
72

0,
88

8
   

   
   

  
87

3,
54

9
   

   
   

  
92

5,
18

9
   

   
   

  
1,

00
0,

59
9

   
   

  
1,

19
0,

02
2

   
   

 
1,

11
3,

78
9

   
   

 
  L

ei
su

re
 s

er
vi

ce
s

1,
14

4,
26

2
   

   
1,

28
7,

62
2

   
   

  
1,

45
1,

16
3

   
   

97
7,

44
9

   
   

   
1,

12
3,

44
6

   
   

  
1,

52
9,

60
8

   
   

  
1,

58
1,

99
2

   
   

  
1,

62
9,

39
2

   
   

  
2,

29
0,

75
3

   
   

 
2,

46
1,

88
4

   
   

 
  T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n
76

,7
22

   
   

   
   

15
9,

97
9

   
   

   
  

99
,4

76
   

   
   

  
91

,0
37

   
   

   
  

10
6,

29
2

   
   

   
  

11
7,

04
4

   
   

   
  

12
3,

25
4

   
   

   
  

14
2,

27
2

   
   

   
  

17
4,

62
0

   
   

   
  

31
0,

76
7

   
   

   
  

T
ot

al
 C

u
rr

en
t

9,
10

5,
71

1
   

   
9,

61
0,

09
4

   
   

  
9,

03
8,

52
4

   
   

7,
72

8,
44

8
   

   
8,

21
1,

41
4

   
   

  
9,

42
8,

24
0

   
   

  
10

,5
26

,3
21

   
   

10
,6

87
,1

00
   

   
12

,3
23

,3
08

   
  

12
,5

99
,8

83
   

  

%
 C

h
an

ge
 F

ro
m

 P
ri

or
 Y

ea
r

-3
.4

%
5.

5%
-5

.9
%

-1
4.

5%
6.

2%
14

.8
%

11
.6

%
1.

5%
15

.3
%

2.
2%

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
C

ap
it

al
 O

u
tl

ay
 

32
1,

28
7

   
   

   
 

1,
90

3,
72

7
   

   
  

61
1,

48
6

   
   

   
87

7,
37

2
   

   
   

5,
15

7,
66

6
   

   
  

65
0,

97
9

   
   

   
  

59
1,

07
7

   
   

   
  

1,
61

9,
23

5
   

   
  

1,
80

6,
34

5
   

   
 

26
2,

46
8

   
   

   
  

%
 C

h
an

ge
 F

ro
m

 P
ri

or
 Y

ea
r

-8
3.

8%
49

2.
5%

-6
7.

9%
43

.5
%

48
7.

9%
-8

7.
4%

-9
.2

%
17

3.
9%

11
.6

%
-8

5.
5%

D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

  P
ri

nc
ip

al
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

72
,9

44
   

   
   

   
 

12
3,

38
0

   
   

   
  

13
8,

23
6

   
   

   
  

16
9,

27
9

   
   

   
  

10
0,

01
3

   
   

   
  

  I
nt

er
es

t
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
75

4
   

   
   

   
   

6,
04

5
   

   
   

   
   

5,
78

7
   

   
   

   
   

5,
47

5
   

   
   

   
   

3,
21

3
   

   
   

   
   

T
ot

al
 D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

77
,6

98
   

   
   

   
 

12
9,

42
5

   
   

   
  

14
4,

02
3

   
   

   
  

17
4,

75
4

   
   

   
  

10
3,

22
6

   
   

   
  

%
 C

h
an

ge
 F

ro
m

 P
ri

or
 Y

ea
r

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%

T
ot

al
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s
9,

42
6,

99
8

$ 
   

11
,5

13
,8

21
$ 

   
9,

65
0,

01
0

$ 
  

8,
60

5,
82

0
$ 

  
13

,3
69

,0
80

$ 
  

10
,1

56
,9

17
$ 

   
11

,2
46

,8
23

$ 
  

12
,4

50
,3

58
$ 

  
14

,3
04

,4
07

$ 
 

12
,9

65
,5

77
$ 

 

%
 C

h
an

ge
 F

ro
m

 P
ri

or
 Y

ea
r

-1
7.

3%
22

.1
%

-1
6.

2%
-1

0.
8%

55
.3

%
-2

4.
0%

10
.7

%
10

.7
%

14
.9

%
-9

.4
%

D
eb

t 
S

er
vi

ce
 a

s 
a

%
 o

f 
N

on
ca

p
it

al
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

8%
1.

2%
1.

5%
1.

2%
0.

8%

D
at

a 
S

ou
rc

e:
A

pp
li

ca
bl

e 
ye

ar
s'

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 a

nn
ua

l f
in

an
ci

al
 r

ep
or

t.

T
ow

n
 o

f 
S

u
rf

si
d

e,
 F

lo
ri

d
a 

G
en

er
al

 G
ov

er
n

m
en

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s 

by
 F

u
n

ct
io

n
L

as
t T

en
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

rs
(m

od
if

ie
d 

ac
cr

u
al

 b
as

is
 o

f 
ac

co
u

n
ti

n
g)

F
or

 t
h

e 
F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

ed
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,

82



E
xh

ib
it

 I
X

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

F
u

n
ct

io
n

C
u

rr
en

t:
  G

en
er

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t 
3,

54
9,

72
9

$ 
   

3,
82

8,
84

0
$ 

   
 

2,
70

3,
86

8
$ 

   
 

2,
31

5,
55

4
$ 

   
 

2,
30

3,
52

3
$ 

   
 

2,
91

7,
76

5
$ 

  
3,

38
8,

04
6

$ 
   

   
3,

07
2,

34
6

$ 
   

   
3,

24
1,

32
6

$ 
   

   
3,

15
9,

30
2

$ 
   

   
  

  P
ub

li
c 

sa
fe

ty
3,

50
1,

36
7

   
   

3,
58

4,
29

5
   

   
 

3,
92

8,
49

1
   

   
 

3,
64

8,
76

6
   

   
 

3,
95

7,
26

5
   

   
 

3,
99

0,
27

4
   

  
4,

50
7,

84
0

   
   

   
4,

84
2,

49
1

   
   

   
5,

42
6,

58
7

   
   

   
5,

55
4,

14
1

   
   

   
  

  P
hy

si
ca

l e
nv

ir
on

m
en

t
83

3,
63

1
   

   
   

74
9,

35
8

   
   

   
 

85
5,

52
6

   
   

   
 

69
5,

64
2

   
   

   
 

72
0,

88
8

   
   

   
 

87
3,

54
9

   
   

  
92

5,
18

9
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0,

59
9

   
   

   
1,

19
0,

02
2

   
   

   
1,

11
3,

78
9

   
   

   
  

  L
ei

su
re

 s
er

vi
ce

s
1,

14
4,

26
2

   
   

1,
28

7,
62

2
   

   
 

1,
45

1,
16

3
   

   
 

97
7,

44
9

   
   

   
 

1,
12

3,
44

6
   

   
 

1,
52

9,
60

8
   

  
1,

58
1,

99
2

   
   

   
1,

62
9,

39
2

   
   

   
2,

29
0,

75
3

   
   

   
2,

46
1,

88
4

   
   

   
  

  T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n

76
,7

22
   

   
   

  
15

9,
97

9
   

   
   

 
99

,4
76

   
   

   
   

91
,0

37
   

   
   

   
10

6,
29

2
   

   
   

 
11

7,
04

4
   

   
  

12
3,

25
4

   
   

   
   

14
2,

27
2

   
   

   
   

17
4,

62
0

   
   

   
   

31
0,

76
7

   
   

   
   

  

T
ot

al
 C

u
rr

en
t

9,
10

5,
71

1
$ 

   
9,

61
0,

09
4

$ 
   

 
9,

03
8,

52
4

$ 
   

7,
72

8,
44

8
$ 

   
8,

21
1,

41
4

$ 
   

9,
42

8,
24

0
$ 

  
10

,5
26

,3
21

$ 
   

10
,6

87
,1

00
$ 

   
12

,3
23

,3
08

$ 
   

12
,5

99
,8

83
$ 

   
   

C
u

rr
en

t:
  G

en
er

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t 
39

.0
%

39
.8

%
29

.9
%

30
.0

%
28

.1
%

30
.9

%
32

.2
%

28
.7

%
26

.3
%

25
.1

%
  P

ub
li

c 
sa

fe
ty

38
.5

%
37

.3
%

43
.5

%
47

.2
%

48
.2

%
42

.3
%

42
.8

%
45

.3
%

44
.0

%
44

.1
%

  P
hy

si
ca

l e
nv

ir
on

m
en

t
9.

2%
7.

8%
9.

5%
9.

0%
8.

8%
9.

3%
8.

8%
9.

4%
9.

7%
8.

8%
  L

ei
su

re
 s

er
vi

ce
s

12
.6

%
13

.4
%

16
.1

%
12

.6
%

13
.7

%
16

.2
%

15
.0

%
15

.2
%

18
.6

%
19

.5
%

  T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n

0.
7%

1.
7%

1.
0%

1.
2%

1.
3%

1.
3%

1.
3%

1.
4%

1.
4%

2.
5%

T
ot

al
 C

u
rr

en
t

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

D
at

a 
S

ou
rc

e:
A

pp
li

ca
bl

e 
ye

ar
s'

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 a

nn
ua

l f
in

an
ci

al
 r

ep
or

t.

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

 o
f 

T
ot

al

T
ow

n
 o

f 
S

u
rf

si
d

e,
 F

lo
ri

d
a 

G
en

er
al

 G
ov

er
n

m
en

ta
l C

u
rr

en
t E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s 

by
 F

u
n

ct
io

n
L

as
t T

en
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

rs
(m

od
if

ie
d 

ac
cr

u
al

 b
as

is
 o

f 
ac

co
u

n
ti

n
g)

F
or

 t
h

e 
F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

ed
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 

83



E
xh

ib
it

 X

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

T
ot

al
 R

ev
en

u
es

11
,3

04
,0

95
$ 

   
   

9,
67

0,
43

8
$ 

   
   

 
9,

27
4,

76
6

$ 
   

8,
55

5,
07

6
$ 

   
 

9,
63

6,
73

8
$ 

   
  

10
,2

47
,1

56
$ 

   
 

10
,7

79
,0

87
$ 

   
   

   
14

,2
07

,1
08

$ 
   

13
,2

27
,7

64
$ 

   
14

,9
24

,5
41

$ 
   

T
ot

al
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
9,

42
6,

99
8

   
   

   
  

11
,5

13
,8

21
   

   
  

9,
65

0,
01

0
   

   
8,

60
5,

82
0

   
   

 
13

,3
69

,0
80

   
   

10
,1

56
,9

17
   

   
 

11
,2

46
,8

23
   

   
   

   
12

,4
50

,3
58

   
   

14
,3

04
,4

07
   

   
12

,9
65

,5
77

   
   

E
xc

es
s 

(D
ef

ic
ie

n
cy

) 
of

 R
ev

en
u

es
  O

ve
r 

(U
n

d
er

) 
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
.

1,
87

7,
09

7
   

   
   

  
(1

,8
43

,3
83

)
   

   
   

(3
75

,2
44

)
   

   
  

(5
0,

74
4)

   
   

   
 

(3
,7

32
,3

42
)

   
   

 
90

,2
39

   
   

   
   

  
(4

67
,7

36
)

   
   

   
   

   
1,

75
6,

75
0

   
   

  
(1

,0
76

,6
43

)
   

   
1,

95
8,

96
4

   
   

  

O
th

er
 F

in
an

ci
n

g 
S

ou
rc

es
 (

U
se

s)
In

ce
pt

io
n 

of
 c

ap
it

al
 le

as
es

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0,
07

4
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
82

,5
59

   
   

   
   

  
12

7,
78

4
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
T

ra
ns

fe
rs

 in
16

1,
73

8
   

   
   

   
  

2,
66

5,
10

1
   

   
   

 
23

2,
87

8
   

   
   

5,
23

9,
46

1
   

   
 

35
6,

53
2

   
   

   
  

39
4,

56
5

   
   

   
   

41
1,

56
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

65
4,

77
0

   
   

   
  

1,
03

4,
19

1
   

   
  

66
1,

09
2

   
   

   
  

T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 o

ut
(1

61
,7

38
)

   
   

   
   

(2
,7

76
,0

41
)

   
   

   
(1

10
,9

85
)

   
   

  
(5

,0
30

,9
59

)
   

  
(1

44
,3

60
)

   
   

   
 

(3
68

,2
36

)
   

   
   

  
(9

,2
82

)
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(4
65

,0
00

)
   

   
   

 
(1

,0
53

,4
63

)
   

   
(2

19
,0

84
)

   
   

   
 

T
ot

al
 O

th
er

 F
in

an
ci

n
g 

  S
ou

rc
es

 (
U

se
s)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(1

10
,9

40
)

   
   

   
   

12
1,

89
3

   
   

   
20

8,
50

2
   

   
   

 
21

2,
17

2
   

   
   

  
52

6,
40

3
   

   
   

   
40

2,
27

8
   

   
   

   
   

  
27

2,
32

9
   

   
   

  
10

8,
51

2
   

   
   

  
44

2,
00

8
   

   
   

  

N
et

 C
h

an
ge

 in
 F

u
n

d
 B

al
an

ce
s

1,
87

7,
09

7
$ 

   
   

  
(1

,9
54

,3
23

)
$ 

   
   

(2
53

,3
51

)
$ 

   
 

15
7,

75
8

$ 
   

   
(3

,5
20

,1
70

)
$ 

   
61

6,
64

2
$ 

   
   

   
(6

5,
45

8)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
2,

02
9,

07
9

$ 
   

 
(9

68
,1

31
)

$ 
   

  
2,

40
0,

97
2

$ 
   

 

D
at

a 
S

ou
rc

e:
A

pp
li

ca
bl

e 
ye

ar
s'

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 a

nn
ua

l f
in

an
ci

al
 r

ep
or

t.

T
ow

n
 o

f 
S

u
rf

si
d

e,
 F

lo
ri

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

of
 C

h
an

ge
s 

in
 F

u
n

d 
B

al
an

ce
s 

- 
G

ov
er

n
m

en
ta

l F
u

n
ds

 
L

as
t T

en
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

rs
(m

od
if

ie
d 

ac
cr

u
al

 b
as

is
 o

f 
ac

co
u

n
ti

n
g)

F
or

 t
h

e 
F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

ed
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,

84



E
xh

ib
it

 X
I

20
07

20
08

20
09

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

R
es

er
ve

d
10

4,
24

0
$ 

   
   

  
 

10
1,

99
6

$ 
   

   
11

7,
01

3
$ 

   
   

U
nr

es
er

ve
d

7,
22

3,
22

8
   

   
 

6,
78

6,
54

0
   

   
7,

17
8,

52
2

   
 

T
ot

al
 G

en
er

al
 F

u
n

d
7,

32
7,

46
8

   
   

 
6,

88
8,

53
6

   
   

7,
29

5,
53

5
   

 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d 

%
 C

h
an

ge
F

ro
m

 P
ri

or
 Y

ea
r

37
.3

%
-6

.0
%

5.
9%

A
ll

 O
th

er
 G

ov
er

n
m

en
ta

l F
u

n
d

s 
R

es
er

ve
d 

1
3,

91
9

   
   

   
   

   
 

8,
59

0
   

   
   

   
 

- 
U

nr
es

er
ve

d
S

pe
ci

al
 R

ev
en

ue
 F

un
ds

1,
02

3,
42

6
   

   
 

78
3,

70
1

   
   

  
72

4,
12

2
   

   
 

C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
F

un
ds

2,
41

3,
85

8
   

   
  

 
1,

13
3,

52
1

   
   

54
1,

34
0

   
   

  
 

T
ot

al
 A

ll
 O

th
er

 
  G

ov
er

n
m

en
ta

l F
u

n
d

s
3,

44
1,

20
3

   
   

 
1,

92
5,

81
2

   
   

1,
26

5,
46

2
   

 

A
ll

 O
th

er
 G

ov
er

n
m

en
ta

l F
u

n
ds

%
 C

h
an

ge
 F

ro
m

 P
ri

or
 Y

ea
r

23
.0

%
-4

4.
0%

-3
4.

3%

T
ot

al
 G

ov
er

n
m

en
ta

l F
u

n
d

s
R

es
er

ve
d

10
8,

15
9

   
   

   
  

 
11

0,
58

6
   

   
  

 
11

7,
01

3
   

   
  

 
U

nr
es

er
ve

d
10

,6
60

,5
12

   
  

8,
70

3,
76

2
   

   
8,

44
3,

98
4

   
 

T
ot

al
 G

ov
er

n
m

en
ta

l F
u

n
d

s
10

,7
68

,6
71

$ 
   

8,
81

4,
34

8
$ 

   
8,

56
0,

99
7

$ 
  

A
ll

 G
ov

er
n

m
en

ta
l F

u
n

ds
 %

 C
h

an
ge

 F
ro

m
 P

ri
or

 Y
ea

r
32

.4
%

-1
8.

1%
-2

.9
%

N
ot

es
:

D
at

a 
S

ou
rc

e:
A

pp
li

ca
bl

e 
ye

ar
s'

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 a

nn
ua

l f
in

an
ci

al
 r

ep
or

t.

T
he

T
ow

n
im

pl
em

en
te

d
G

A
S

B
S

ta
te

m
en

t
N

o.
54

,
F

un
d

B
al

an
ce

R
ep

or
ti

ng
an

d
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l

F
un

d
D

ef
in

it
io

ns
, i

n 
F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 
20

10
 (

se
e 

E
xh

ib
it

 X
II

).
  T

he
 T

ow
n 

di
d 

no
t r

es
ta

te
 th

e 
pr

io
r 

ye
ar

s.

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 3
0,

T
ow

n
 o

f 
S

u
rf

si
d

e,
 F

lo
ri

d
a 

F
u

n
d 

B
al

an
ce

s 
- 

G
ov

er
n

m
en

ta
l F

u
n

ds
 

F
is

ca
l Y

ea
rs

 2
00

7 
- 

20
09

(m
od

if
ie

d 
ac

cr
u

al
 b

as
is

 o
f 

ac
co

u
n

ti
n

g)

85



Exhibit XII

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
General Fund:
  Assigned to:

    Emergencies and cash flows 2,000,000$   2,000,000$   2,000,000$   2,000,000$   2,000,000$   2,000,000$     2,000,000$    
    Subsequent years' expenditures -                95,175          -                -                -                -                  -                

  Nonspendable:
    Prepaid items 107,171        109,532        144,738        152,767        162,118        183,442          198,405         
    Asset held for resale 188,000        -                -                -                -                -                  -                

  Unassigned 867,867        2,051,608   3,121,636   3,151,275   4,204,273   3,722,284       5,170,003    

Total General Fund 3,163,038     4,256,315     5,266,374     5,304,042     6,366,391     5,905,726       7,368,408      

General Fund % Change
From Prior Year -56.5% 34.6% 23.7% 0.7% 20.0% -7.2% 24.8%

All Other Governmental Funds:

  Nonspendable:
    Prepaid items -                -                -                -                222               2,250              6154

  Restricted for:
    Tourism 179,035        184,867        171,496        94,497          180,075        339,396          363407
    Transportation surtax 416,500        239,760        122,302        131,475        396,740        440,662          354264
    Police forfeiture 71,825          117,889        122,272        138,143        159,626        113,431          141755

  Committed to:
    Capital projects 4,201,479     -              -              -              -               -                  -              

  Assigned to:
    Capital projects 686,878        399,754        132,783        255,263        849,445        182,903          1151352

Total All Other Governmental Funds: 5,555,717     942,270      548,853      619,378      1,586,108   1,078,642       2016932

All Other Governmental Funds
% Change From Prior Year 339.0% -100.0% -41.8% 12.8% 156.1% -32.0% 87.0%

Total Governmental Funds 8,718,755$   5,198,585$  5,815,227$  5,923,420$  7,952,499$  6,984,368$     9,385,340$   

All Governmental Funds
 % Change From Prior Year 1.8% -100.0% 11.9% 1.9% 34.3% -12.2% 34.4%

Notes:

Data Source:
Applicable years' comprehensive annual financial report.

The Town implemented GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund
Definitions , in Fiscal Year 2010.  The Town did not restate the prior years.

Town of Surfside, Florida 
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

Fiscal Years 2010 - 2016
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

September 30,

86



E
xh

ib
it

 X
II

I

T
ot

al
T

ot
al

T
ot

al
 T

ax
ab

le
D

ir
ec

t
A

n
n

u
al

F
is

ca
l

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

A
ss

es
se

d
T

ax
P

er
ce

n
ta

ge
Y

ea
r

A
m

ou
n

t
C

h
an

ge
A

m
ou

n
t

C
h

an
ge

V
al

u
e1

R
at

e 
2

C
h

an
ge

20
07

1,
43

4,
50

1,
84

2
$ 

   
 

26
.9

%
15

,7
20

,5
79

$ 
   

-7
.3

%
1,

45
0,

22
2,

42
1

$ 
   

  
5.

60
00

  
26

.4
%

20
08

1,
64

4,
73

0,
37

1
   

   
 

14
.7

%
15

,7
02

,1
11

   
   

-0
.1

%
1,

66
0,

43
2,

48
2

   
   

  
4.

25
00

  
14

.5
%

20
09

1,
51

3,
23

5,
32

4
   

   
 

-8
.0

%
18

,4
34

,0
95

   
   

17
.4

%
1,

53
1,

66
9,

41
9

   
   

  
5.

35
80

  
-7

.8
%

20
10

1,
27

0,
68

0,
30

1
   

   
 

-1
6.

0%
12

,7
20

,9
30

   
   

-3
1.

0%
1,

28
3,

40
1,

23
1

   
   

  
4.

73
32

  
-1

6.
2%

20
11

1,
05

0,
69

5,
13

1
   

   
 

-1
7.

3%
12

,2
64

,4
92

   
   

-3
.6

%
1,

06
2,

95
9,

62
3

   
   

  
5.

94
99

  
-1

7.
2%

20
12

1,
00

5,
24

6,
01

4
   

   
 

-4
.3

%
12

,4
12

,2
60

   
   

1.
2%

1,
01

7,
65

8,
27

4
   

   
  

5.
50

00
  

-4
.3

%
20

13
1,

04
9,

86
4,

04
1

   
   

 
4.

4%
12

,3
50

,1
85

   
   

-0
.5

%
1,

06
2,

21
4,

22
6

   
   

  
5.

30
00

  
4.

4%
20

14
1,

13
0,

93
7,

10
4

   
   

 
7.

7%
13

,1
34

,1
46

   
   

6.
3%

1,
14

4,
07

1,
25

0
   

   
  

5.
20

00
  

7.
7%

20
15

1,
31

4,
58

4,
53

8
   

   
 

16
.2

%
22

,2
91

,4
69

   
   

69
.7

%
1,

33
6,

87
6,

00
7

   
   

  
5.

20
00

  
16

.9
%

20
16

1,
47

6,
29

6,
05

4
   

   
 

12
.3

%
26

,4
59

,1
66

   
   

18
.7

%
1,

50
2,

75
5,

21
9

   
   

  
5.

02
93

  
12

.4
%

*
1,

28
9,

07
7,

07
2

$ 
   

 
16

,1
48

,9
43

$ 
   

1,
30

5,
22

6,
01

5
$ 

   
  

**
2.

9%
68

.3
%

3.
6%

*
D

ol
la

r 
av

er
ag

e 
fo

r 
te

n 
ye

ar
s.

**
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
ch

an
ge

 in
 d

ol
la

rs
 o

ve
r 

te
n 

ye
ar

s.

1
 A

ll
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

is
 a

ss
es

se
d 

at
 1

00
%

 o
f 

fa
ir

 m
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

.
2

 T
ax

 r
at

es
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 in
 r

at
e 

pe
r 

$1
,0

00

D
at

a 
S

ou
rc

e:
 

M
ia

m
i-

D
ad

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

A
pp

ra
is

er

N
ot

es
: 

T
ow

n
 o

f 
S

u
rf

si
d

e,
 F

lo
ri

d
a 

T
ax

ab
le

 A
ss

es
se

d 
V

al
u

e 
- 

R
ea

l a
n

d 
P

er
so

n
al

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
L

as
t T

en
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

rs

R
ea

l P
ro

p
er

ty
P

er
so

n
al

 P
ro

p
er

ty

87



E
xh

ib
it

 X
IV

T
ot

al
D

ir
ec

t
D

ir
ec

t
C

it
y

D
eb

t
T

ot
al

D
eb

t
T

ot
al

W
at

er
an

d
F

is
ca

l
O

p
er

at
in

g
O

p
er

at
in

g
S

er
vi

ce
C

ou
n

ty
O

p
er

at
in

g
S

er
vi

ce
S

ch
oo

l
M

an
ag

em
en

t
E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

ta
l

S
p

ec
ia

l
C

h
il

d
re

n
's

F
ir

e 
an

d
F

ir
e

O
ve

rl
ap

p
in

g

Y
ea

r
M

il
la

ge
M

il
la

ge
M

il
la

ge
M

il
la

ge
M

il
la

ge
M

il
la

ge
M

il
la

ge
D

is
tr

ic
t

P
ro

je
ct

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
2

T
ru

st
R

es
cu

e
D

eb
t

M
il

la
ge

20
07

5.
60

00
   

   
   

  
5.

61
50

   
   

   
  

0.
28

50
   

  
5.

90
00

   
   

   
 

7.
69

10
   

   
   

  
0.

41
40

   
  

8.
10

50
   

  
0.

59
70

0.
10

00
0.

03
85

0.
42

23
2.

60
90

   
   

   
   

0.
04

20
23

.4
13

8
   

   
 

20
08

4.
25

00
   

   
   

  
4.

57
96

   
   

   
  

0.
28

50
   

  
4.

86
46

   
   

   
 

7.
57

00
   

   
   

  
0.

37
80

   
  

7.
94

80
   

  
0.

53
46

0.
08

94
0.

03
45

0.
42

23
2.

20
67

   
   

   
   

0.
04

20
20

.3
92

1
   

   
 

20
09

4.
73

32
   

   
   

  
4.

83
79

   
   

   
  

0.
28

50
   

  
5.

12
29

   
   

   
 

7.
53

30
   

   
   

  
0.

26
40

   
  

7.
79

70
   

  
0.

53
46

0.
08

94
0.

03
45

0.
42

12
2.

18
51

   
   

   
   

0.
04

20
20

.9
59

9
   

   
 

20
10

4.
73

32
   

   
   

  
4.

83
79

   
   

   
  

0.
28

50
   

  
5.

12
29

   
   

   
 

7.
69

80
   

   
   

  
0.

29
70

   
  

7.
99

50
   

  
0.

53
46

0.
08

94
0.

03
45

0.
50

00
2.

18
51

   
   

   
   

0.
04

20
21

.2
36

7
   

   
 

20
11

5.
50

00
   

   
   

  
4.

80
50

   
   

   
  

0.
28

50
   

  
5.

09
00

   
   

   
 

7.
76

50
   

   
   

  
0.

24
00

   
  

8.
00

50
   

  
0.

37
39

0.
06

24
0.

03
45

0.
50

00
2.

44
96

   
   

   
   

0.
01

31
22

.0
28

5
   

   
 

20
12

5.
30

00
   

   
   

  
4.

70
35

   
   

   
  

0.
28

50
   

  
4.

98
85

   
   

   
 

7.
76

50
   

   
   

  
0.

23
30

   
  

7.
99

80
   

  
0.

36
76

0.
06

13
0.

03
45

0.
50

00
2.

44
96

   
   

   
   

0.
01

31
21

.7
12

6
   

   
 

20
13

5.
20

00
   

   
   

  
4.

70
35

   
   

   
  

0.
42

20
   

  
5.

12
55

   
   

   
 

7.
64

40
   

   
   

  
0.

33
30

   
  

7.
97

70
   

  
0.

35
23

0.
05

87
0.

03
45

0.
50

00
2.

44
96

   
   

   
   

0.
01

27
21

.7
10

3
   

   
 

20
14

5.
02

93
   

   
   

  
4.

66
69

   
   

   
  

0.
45

00
   

  
5.

11
69

   
   

   
 

7.
77

50
   

   
   

  
0.

19
90

   
  

7.
97

40
   

  
0.

15
77

0.
05

48
0.

20
62

0.
50

00
2.

42
07

   
   

   
   

0.
01

14
21

.4
71

0
   

   
 

20
15

5.
02

93
   

   
   

  
4.

66
69

   
   

   
  

0.
45

00
   

  
5.

11
69

   
   

   
 

7.
41

30
   

   
   

  
0.

19
90

   
  

7.
61

20
   

  
0.

14
59

0.
05

06
0.

19
06

0.
50

00
2.

42
07

   
   

   
   

0.
00

75
21

.0
73

5
   

   
 

20
16

5.
01

44
   

   
   

  
4.

66
69

   
   

   
  

0.
40

00
   

  
5.

06
69

   
   

   
 

7.
13

80
   

   
   

  
0.

18
40

   
  

7.
32

20
   

  
0.

13
59

0.
04

71
0.

00
00

0.
50

00
2.

42
07

   
   

   
   

0.
00

75
20

.5
14

5
   

   
 

\

D
at

a 
S

ou
rc

e:
 

N
ot

es
:

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.m
ia

m
id

ad
e.

go
v/

pa
/m

illa
ge

_t
ab

le
s.

as
p

L
as

t T
en

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
rs

D
ir

ec
t a

n
d 

O
ve

rl
ap

pi
n

g 
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

T
ax

 R
at

es
 

1  O
ve

rl
ap

pi
ng

 r
at

es
 a

re
 th

os
e 

of
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ts
 th

at
 o

ve
rl

ap
 th

e 
T

ow
n'

s 
ge

og
ra

ph
ic

 b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s

2 
B

eg
in

ni
ng

 in
 f

is
ca

l y
ea

r 
20

14
, t

hi
s 

cl
as

si
fi

ca
ti

on
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

 F
IN

D
 a

nd
 th

e 
O

ke
ec

ho
be

e 
B

as
in

.

T
ow

n
 o

f 
S

u
rf

si
d

e,
 F

lo
ri

d
a 

M
ia

m
i-

D
ad

e 
C

ou
n

ty
S

ch
oo

l B
oa

rd
M

ia
m

i-
D

ad
e 

C
ou

n
ty

O
ve

rl
ap

p
in

g 
R

at
es

 1

(r
at

e 
pe

r 
$1

,0
00

 o
f 

as
se

ss
ed

 ta
xa

bl
e 

va
lu

e)

88



E
xh

ib
it

 X
V

T
ax

es
 L

ev
ie

d
F

is
ca

l
fo

r 
th

e
P

er
ce

n
ta

ge
P

er
ce

n
ta

ge
Y

ea
r

F
is

ca
l Y

ea
r

A
m

ou
n

t
of

 L
ev

y
A

m
ou

n
t

of
 L

ev
y

20
07

7,
67

5,
73

4
$ 

   
   

   
 

7,
37

7,
05

6
$ 

   
  

96
.1

1%
29

8,
67

8
$ 

   
   

 
3.

89
%

20
08

6,
70

2,
90

4
   

   
   

   
 

6,
29

2,
75

5
   

   
  

93
.8

8%
41

0,
14

9
   

   
   

 
6.

12
%

20
09

7,
50

3,
53

0
   

   
   

   
 

6,
32

5,
72

1
   

   
  

84
.3

0%
1,

17
7,

80
9

   
   

 
15

.7
0%

20
10

5,
55

0,
92

5
   

   
   

   
 

5,
32

3,
72

8
   

   
  

95
.9

1%
22

7,
19

7
   

   
   

 
4.

09
%

20
11

6,
36

4,
75

8
   

   
   

   
 

5,
61

9,
49

4
   

   
  

88
.2

9%
74

5,
26

4
   

   
   

 
11

.7
1%

20
12

5,
59

7,
12

1
   

   
   

   
 

5,
26

4,
38

7
   

   
  

94
.0

6%
33

2,
73

4
   

   
   

 
5.

94
%

20
13

5,
34

8,
24

9
   

   
   

   
 

5,
25

7,
72

6
   

   
  

98
.3

1%
90

,5
23

   
   

   
   

1.
69

%
20

14
5,

65
1,

71
2

   
   

   
   

 
5,

66
0,

55
1

   
   

  
10

0.
16

%
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
20

15
6,

38
7,

37
3

   
   

   
   

 
6,

52
6,

26
7

   
   

  
10

2.
17

%
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
20

16
7,

17
9,

91
6

   
   

   
   

 
7,

14
7,

99
7

   
   

  
99

.5
6%

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

N
ot

es
: 

C
ur

re
nt

ly
, t

he
 ta

x 
co

ll
ec

ti
on

s 
ar

e 
no

t a
va

il
ab

le
 f

or
 th

e 
ye

ar
 to

 w
hi

ch
 th

ey
 a

pp
ly

.

D
at

a 
S

ou
rc

e:
  

T
ow

n 
F

in
an

ce
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t

T
ot

al
 T

ax
es

 C
ol

le
ct

ed
U

n
co

ll
ec

te
d

 T
ax

es
 

T
ow

n
 o

f 
S

u
rf

si
d

e,
 F

lo
ri

d
a 

T
ot

al
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

T
ax

 L
ev

ie
s 

an
d 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n

s 
L

as
t T

en
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

rs

T
ot

al

89



E
xh

ib
it 

X
V

I

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

of
 T

ot
al

 
of

 T
ot

al
 

T
ax

ab
le

T
ax

ab
le

T
ax

ab
le

T
ax

ab
le

A
ss

es
se

d
A

ss
es

se
d

A
ss

es
se

d
A

ss
es

se
d

P
ri

n
ci

p
al

 T
ax

p
ay

er
V

al
u

e 
R

an
k

V
al

u
e

P
ri

n
ci

p
al

 T
ax

p
ay

er
V

al
u

e 
R

an
k

V
al

u
e

S
C

 R
es

id
en

ce
s 

C
on

do
m

in
iu

m
 L

L
C

68
,7

92
,1

11
$ 

   
   

1
4.

66
%

T
he

 S
ur

f 
C

lu
b

40
,3

73
,9

60
$ 

   
   

1
3.

18
%

B
ea

ch
 H

ou
se

 P
ro

pe
rt

y,
 L

L
C

52
,0

00
,0

00
   

   
   

2
3.

52
%

93
79

 R
ea

lt
y 

G
ro

up
13

,9
70

,0
00

   
   

   
2

1.
10

%
C

ha
te

au
 O

ce
an

 L
L

C
27

,4
65

,5
90

   
   

   
3

1.
86

%
B

ea
ch

 H
ou

se
 P

ro
pe

rt
y,

 L
L

C
9,

00
0,

00
0

   
   

   
  

3
0.

71
%

F
or

t C
ap

it
al

 M
an

ag
em

en
t L

L
C

 T
rs

25
,0

97
,4

03
   

   
   

4
1.

70
%

P
ub

li
x 

S
up

er
 M

ar
ke

ts
, I

nc
.

8,
38

0,
00

0
   

   
   

  
4

0.
66

%
S

ur
fs

id
e 

B
al

 H
ar

bo
ur

 L
L

C
24

,5
00

,0
00

   
   

   
5

1.
66

%
O

hi
o 

S
av

in
gs

 B
an

k
5,

73
6,

36
0

   
   

   
  

5
0.

45
%

T
he

 S
ur

f 
C

lu
b 

A
pa

rt
m

en
ts

 I
nc

19
,6

36
,1

00
   

   
   

6
1.

33
%

T
ra

ns
ac

ta
a 

L
an

ai
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t L

T
D

5,
69

5,
00

0
   

   
   

  
6

0.
45

%
B

lu
eg

re
en

 V
ac

at
io

ns
 U

nl
im

it
ed

 I
nc

11
,2

55
,2

86
   

   
   

7
0.

76
%

C
ol

li
ns

 A
ve

nu
e 

In
ve

st
m

en
t G

ro
up

3,
80

0,
00

0
   

   
   

  
7

0.
30

%
P

ub
li

x 
S

up
er

 M
ar

ke
ts

, I
nc

.
8,

33
5,

04
2

   
   

   
  

8
0.

56
%

95
01

 C
ol

li
ns

 A
ve

nu
e,

 L
L

C
 

3,
28

9,
00

0
   

   
   

  
8

0.
26

%
H

D
P

 T
L

D
 P

ar
tn

er
s 

L
L

C
7,

36
5,

63
3

   
   

   
  

9
0.

50
%

R
ob

er
t a

nd
 R

it
a 

S
w

er
dl

ow
2,

99
3,

14
8

   
   

   
  

9
0.

24
%

90
40

 L
L

C
6,

52
4,

00
0

   
   

   
  

10
0.

44
%

Y
or

am
 a

nd
 Y

le
an

a 
Iz

ha
k

2,
61

4,
25

9
   

   
   

  
10

0.
21

%

T
ot

al
 P

ri
n

ci
p

al
 T

ax
p

ay
er

s
25

0,
97

1,
16

5
   

   
 

17
.0

0%
T

ot
al

 P
ri

n
ci

p
al

 T
ax

p
ay

er
s

95
,8

51
,7

27
   

   
   

7.
54

%

A
ll

 O
th

er
 T

ax
p

ay
er

s
1,

22
5,

32
4,

88
9

   
 

83
.0

0%
A

ll
 O

th
er

 T
ax

p
ay

er
s

1,
17

4,
82

8,
57

4
   

 
92

.4
6%

T
ot

al
 

1,
47

6,
29

6,
05

4
$ 

 
10

0.
00

%
T

ot
al

 
1,

27
0,

68
0,

30
1

$ 
10

0.
00

%

D
at

a 
S

ou
rc

e:
T

ow
n 

re
co

rd
s.

N
ot

e:
 P

ri
nc

ip
al

 r
ea

l p
ro

pe
rt

y 
ta

xp
ay

er
s 

no
t a

va
il

ab
le

 p
ri

or
 to

 2
01

0.

T
ow

n
 o

f 
S

u
rf

si
d

e,
 F

lo
ri

d
a 

P
ri

n
ci

pa
l R

ea
l P

ro
pe

rt
y 

T
ax

pa
ye

rs
 

F
is

ca
l Y

ea
rs

 E
n

de
d 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

30
, 2

01
6 

an
d 

20
10

20
10

20
16

90



E
xh

ib
it 

X
V

II

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

of
 T

ot
al

 
of

 T
ot

al
 

T
ax

ab
le

T
ax

ab
le

T
ax

ab
le

T
ax

ab
le

A
ss

es
se

d
A

ss
es

se
d

A
ss

es
se

d
A

ss
es

se
d

P
ri

n
ci

p
al

 T
ax

p
ay

er
V

al
u

e 
R

an
k

V
al

u
e

P
ri

n
ci

p
al

 T
ax

p
ay

er
V

al
u

e 
R

an
k

V
al

u
e

F
lo

ri
da

 P
ow

er
 a

nd
 L

ig
ht

 C
om

pa
ny

 $
   

   
  5

,8
59

,1
49

 
1

22
.1

4%
F

lo
ri

da
 P

ow
er

 a
nd

 L
ig

ht
 C

om
pa

ny
5,

24
2,

89
3

$ 
   

   
  

1
41

.2
1%

B
el

ls
ou

th
 T

el
ec

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 I

nc
1,

03
7,

79
7

2
3.

92
%

A
tl

an
ti

c 
B

ro
ad

ba
nd

1,
20

9,
12

7
   

   
   

  
2

9.
51

%
P

eo
pl

es
 G

as
 S

ys
te

m
89

2,
19

1
3

3.
37

%
B

el
l S

ou
th

 T
el

ec
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

, I
nc

.
85

7,
15

4
   

   
   

   
  

3
6.

74
%

A
tl

an
ti

c 
B

ro
ad

ba
nd

 (
M

ia
m

i)
 L

L
C

84
2,

08
5

4
3.

18
%

P
ub

li
x 

S
up

er
 M

ar
ke

ts
, I

nc
.

81
4,

42
1

   
   

   
   

  
4

6.
40

%
P

ub
li

x 
S

up
er

 M
ar

ke
ts

 I
nc

48
3,

30
0

5
1.

83
%

P
eo

pl
e'

s 
G

as
 S

ys
te

m
65

2,
83

8
   

   
   

   
  

5
5.

13
%

H
ol

id
ay

 C
V

S
 L

L
C

29
4,

54
1

6
1.

11
%

T
he

 S
ur

f 
C

lu
b

33
2,

06
3

   
   

   
   

  
6

2.
61

%
C

ha
m

pl
ai

n 
T

ow
er

s 
N

or
th

18
8,

70
5

7
0.

71
%

C
af

é 
R

ag
az

zi
25

8,
97

2
   

   
   

   
  

7
2.

04
%

F
la

ni
ga

n'
s 

S
ea

fo
od

 B
ar

 &
 G

ri
ll

15
6,

50
6

8
0.

59
%

C
V

S
19

6,
80

7
   

   
   

   
  

8
1.

55
%

Y
ud

ah
 A

ri
 B

en
m

er
gu

i D
D

S
14

1,
60

7
9

0.
54

%
M

od
ul

ar
 S

pa
ce

 C
or

po
ra

ti
on

14
8,

27
5

   
   

   
   

  
9

1.
17

%
JP

 M
or

ga
n 

C
ha

se
 B

an
k 

N
A

13
5,

14
1

10
0.

51
%

F
oo

d 
G

an
g 

R
es

ta
ur

an
t

14
7,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
10

1.
16

%

T
ot

al
 P

ri
n

ci
p

al
 T

ax
p

ay
er

s
10

,0
31

,0
22

   
   

   
37

.9
1%

T
ot

al
 P

ri
n

ci
p

al
 T

ax
p

ay
er

s
9,

85
9,

55
0

   
   

   
  

77
.5

1%

A
ll

 O
th

er
 T

ax
p

ay
er

s
16

,4
28

,1
44

   
   

   
62

.0
9%

A
ll

 O
th

er
 T

ax
p

ay
er

s
2,

86
1,

38
0

   
   

   
  

22
.4

9%

T
ot

al
 

26
,4

59
,1

66
$ 

   
   

10
0.

00
%

T
ot

al
 

12
,7

20
,9

30
$ 

   
  

10
0.

00
%

D
at

a 
S

ou
rc

e:
T

ow
n 

re
co

rd
s.

N
ot

e:
 P

ri
nc

ip
al

 p
er

so
n 

pr
op

er
ty

 ta
xp

ay
er

s 
no

t a
va

il
ab

le
 p

ri
or

 to
 2

01
0.

T
ow

n
 o

f 
S

u
rf

si
d

e,
 F

lo
ri

d
a 

P
ri

n
ci

pa
l P

er
so

n
al

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
T

ax
pa

ye
rs

 
F

is
ca

l Y
ea

rs
 E

n
de

d 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
30

, 2
01

6 
an

d 
20

10

20
16

20
10

91



E
xh

ib
it

 X
V

II
I

G
ov

er
n

m
en

ta
l 

G
ra

n
d

A
ct

iv
it

ie
s

T
ot

al
T

ot
al

 D
eb

t
F

is
ca

l
C

ap
it

al
R

ev
en

u
e

N
ot

es
 

L
oa

n
s

C
ap

it
al

P
er

Y
ea

r
L

ea
se

s
B

on
d

s
P

ay
ab

le
P

ay
ab

le
L

ea
se

s
T

ot
al

 
T

ot
al

 
P

op
u

la
ti

on
 

C
ap

it
a 

20
07

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

5,
77

5
-

$ 
   

   
  

20
08

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
78

9
-

   
   

   
  

20
09

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
83

8
-

   
   

   
  

20
10

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
74

4
-

   
   

   
  

20
11

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
,0

00
,0

00
   

  
24

0,
00

0
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
16

,2
40

,0
00

   
   

16
,2

40
,0

00
   

   
5,

76
0

2,
81

9
   

   
  

20
12

42
7,

13
0

   
   

   
  

11
,5

07
,4

45
   

  
16

0,
00

0
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

,6
67

,4
45

   
   

12
,0

94
,5

75
   

   
5,

77
6

2,
09

4
   

   
  

20
13

30
3,

74
9

   
   

   
  

10
,9

85
,3

48
   

  
80

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
7,

25
5,

84
4

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
18

,3
21

,1
92

   
   

18
,6

24
,9

41
   

   
5,

92
4

3,
14

4
   

   
  

20
14

24
2,

73
4

   
   

   
  

10
,4

38
,6

08
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

82
1,

72
0

   
   

  
49

,7
78

   
   

   
   

 
19

,3
10

,1
06

   
   

19
,5

52
,8

40
   

   
5,

95
4

3,
28

4
   

   
  

20
15

20
1,

23
9

   
   

   
  

9,
86

6,
06

2
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8,
59

1,
24

9
   

   
  

38
,1

23
   

   
   

   
 

18
,4

95
,4

34
   

   
18

,6
96

,6
73

   
   

5,
95

4
3,

14
0

   
   

  
20

16
10

1,
26

6
   

   
   

  
9,

26
6,

49
0

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

17
2,

05
4

   
   

  
25

,9
57

   
   

   
   

 
17

,4
64

,5
01

   
   

17
,5

65
,7

67
   

   
5,

80
0

3,
02

9
   

   
  

D
at

a 
S

ou
rc

es
:

T
ow

n'
s 

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts

N
ot

es
:

T
he

re
 a

re
 n

o 
pu

bl
ic

 s
ch

oo
ls

 lo
ca

te
d 

w
it

hi
n 

th
e 

T
ow

n.
T

he
re

 is
 n

o 
pe

rs
on

al
 in

co
m

e 
da

ta
 f

or
 th

e 
T

ow
n 

to
 c

al
cu

la
te

 "
de

bt
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
pe

rs
on

al
 in

co
m

e.
"

T
ow

n
 o

f 
S

u
rf

si
d

e,
 F

lo
ri

d
a

R
at

io
s 

of
 T

ot
al

 D
eb

t O
u

ts
ta

n
di

n
g 

by
 T

yp
e

L
as

t T
en

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
rs

B
u

si
n

es
s-

ty
p

e 
A

ct
iv

it
ie

s

92



E
xh

ib
it 

X
IX

T
ra

n
sf

er
 f

ro
m

 (
to

)
L

es
s

N
et

F
is

ca
l

R
at

e 
S

ta
b

il
iz

at
io

n
O

p
er

at
in

g
A

va
il

ab
le

C
ov

er
ag

e
C

ov
er

ag
e

E
xc

es
s

Y
ea

r1
R

ev
en

u
es

 2
F

u
n

d
E

xp
en

se
s 

3
R

ev
en

u
es

P
ri

n
ci

p
al

 
In

te
re

st
T

ot
al

R
at

io
 

R
eq

u
ir

ed
C

ov
er

ag
e

20
13

3,
13

4,
62

0
$ 

   
   

   
81

,7
19

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

90
2,

64
6

$ 
  

1,
31

3,
69

3
$ 

   
52

2,
09

7
$ 

   
  

62
0,

24
5

$ 
   

  
1,

14
2,

34
2

$ 
  

1.
15

   
   

   
   

1.
15

0.
00

20
14

3,
41

4,
65

7
   

   
   

   
27

,4
18

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

84
3,

02
6

   
  

1,
59

9,
04

9
   

   
73

5,
93

6
   

   
  

65
4,

54
1

   
   

  
1,

39
0,

47
7

   
  

1.
15

   
   

   
   

1.
15

0.
00

20
15

3,
92

3,
72

6
   

   
   

   
(1

09
,1

37
)

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
60

3,
36

7
   

  
2,

21
1,

22
2

   
   

80
3,

01
7

   
   

  
65

7,
31

1
   

   
  

1,
46

0,
32

8
   

  
1.

51
   

   
   

   
1.

15
0.

36

20
16

 4,
 5

P
ri

m
ar

y 
D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
 C

ov
er

ag
e

1,
42

5,
58

7
$ 

  
In

ve
st

m
en

t E
ar

ni
ng

s
22

0
   

   
   

   
   

N
et

 tr
an

sf
er

 f
ro

m
 (

to
) 

R
at

e 
S

ta
bi

li
za

ti
on

 F
un

d
41

0,
55

3
   

   
  

N
et

 r
ev

en
ue

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r 

de
bt

 s
er

vi
ce

1,
83

6,
36

0
$ 

  
D

eb
t s

er
vi

ce
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

1,
06

5,
24

9
$ 

  
A

ct
ua

l c
ov

er
ag

e
1.

72
   

   
   

   
  

R
eq

ui
re

d 
co

ve
ra

ge
1.

10
   

   
   

   
  

S
ta

te
 R

ev
ol

vi
n

g 
F

u
n

d 
L

oa
n

 D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

 C
ov

er
ag

e
N

et
 r

ev
en

ue
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r 
de

bt
 s

er
vi

ce
1,

83
6,

36
0

$ 
  

L
es

s 
re

ve
nu

e 
re

qu
ir

ed
 f

or
 p

ri
m

ar
y 

de
bt

 s
er

vi
ce

1,
17

1,
77

4
   

  
A

dj
us

te
d 

ne
t r

ev
en

ue
s

66
4,

58
6

$ 
   

  
D

eb
t s

er
vi

ce
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

57
7,

90
1

$ 
   

  
A

ct
ua

l c
ov

er
ag

e
1.

15
   

   
   

   
  

R
eq

ui
re

d 
co

ve
ra

ge
1.

15
   

   
   

   
  

N
ot

es
:

2 
In

cl
ud

es
, w

at
er

, s
ew

er
 a

nd
 s

to
rm

w
at

er
 r

ev
en

ue
s.

3  E
xc

lu
de

s 
de

pr
ec

ia
ti

on
 e

xp
en

se
.

4 
R

at
io

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 f

or
 th

e 
20

11
 U

ti
li

ty
 B

on
ds

 a
re

 1
.1

0 
an

d 
1.

15
 f

or
 th

e 
S

ta
te

 R
ev

ol
vi

ng
 F

un
d 

L
oa

n.
5 

T
he

 T
ow

n 
ch

an
ge

d 
th

e 
fo

rm
at

 o
f 

th
ei

r 
pl

ed
ge

 r
ev

en
ue

 c
ov

er
ag

e 
in

 2
01

6

1 
B

on
ds

 f
ir

st
 is

su
ed

 in
 f

is
ca

l y
ea

r 
20

11
.

N
et

 O
pe

ra
ti

ng
 R

ev
en

ue
s

T
ow

n
 o

f 
S

u
rf

si
d

e,
 F

lo
ri

d
a

P
le

dg
ed

 R
ev

en
u

e 
C

ov
er

ag
e

L
as

t F
ou

r 
F

is
ca

l Y
ea

rs

93



Exhibit XX

Estimated
Estimated Share of

Debt Percentage Underlying

Outstanding Applicable 1 Debt

Direct Debt
Capital leases 101,266$           100% 101,266$     

Overlapping Debt

Miami-Dade County 2 337,019,000       0.40% 1,348,076$   

Miami-Dade County School Board 3 1,528,306           0.40% 6,113            

Total Overlapping Debt 1,354,189$   

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt 1,455,455$   

Notes:

Data Source:
Each specific government

3 As of June 30, 2016

Town of Surfside, Florida 
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 

 September 30, 2016

Governmental Unit

1 Applicable percentage was estimated by determining the portion of the Town's assessed value of $1,336,876,007
for 2014-15 that is within the County's geographic boundaries.
2 As of September 30, 2016

94



E
xh

ib
it

 X
X

I

P
er

C
ap

it
a

C
al

en
d

ar
P

er
so

n
al

S
ta

te
 o

f
U

n
it

ed

Y
ea

r
P

op
u

la
ti

on
 1

In
co

m
e 

2
C

ou
n

ty
 3

F
lo

ri
d

a 
4

S
ta

te
s 

5

20
07

5,
77

5
 

35
,7

91
$ 

   
   

   
 

3.
6%

5.
5%

5.
0%

20
08

5,
78

9
 

37
,2

64
   

   
   

   
 

5.
3%

6.
5%

7.
3%

20
09

5,
83

8
 

37
,9

09
   

   
   

   
 

8.
9%

9.
3%

9.
9%

20
10

5,
74

4
 

35
,9

72
   

   
   

   
 

12
.0

%
9.

4%
9.

3%
20

11
5,

76
0

 
38

,8
70

   
   

   
   

 
12

.7
%

10
.2

%
8.

5%
20

12
5,

77
6

 
39

,4
66

   
   

   
   

 
9.

7%
9.

0%
7.

9%
20

13
5,

92
4

 
40

,6
80

   
   

   
   

 
8.

9%
8.

5%
6.

7%
20

14
5,

95
4

 
43

,1
24

   
   

   
   

 
7.

2%
7.

8%
5.

6%
20

15
5,

70
3

 
43

,9
17

   
   

   
   

 
6.

2%
5.

4%
4.

9%
20

16
5,

54
4

 
43

,9
17

   
   

   
   

 
5.

8%
5.

1%
4.

9%

N
ot

es
:

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

no
t p

re
se

nt
ed

, n
ot

 r
ea

di
ly

 a
va

il
ab

le
T

he
re

 a
re

 n
o 

pu
bl

ic
 s

ch
oo

ls
 lo

ca
te

d 
w

it
hi

n 
th

e 
T

ow
n.

1 
B

ur
ea

u 
of

 E
co

no
m

ic
 a

nd
 B

us
in

es
s 

R
es

ea
rc

h,
 U

ni
ve

rs
it

y 
of

 F
lo

ri
da

, A
pr

il
 1

 o
f 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r

3 
 M

ia
m

i-
D

ad
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 a

nn
ua

l f
in

an
ci

al
 r

ep
or

t
4

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

C
en

te
r,

 h
tt

p:
//

re
ce

nt
er

.ta
m

u.
ed

u/
da

ta
/e

m
p/

em
ps

/s
t1

2.
as

p
5 

U
.S

. D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
L

ab
or

, B
ur

ea
u 

of
 L

ab
or

 S
ta

ti
st

ic
s,

 

2 
 M

ia
m

i-
D

ad
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 a

nn
ua

l f
in

an
ci

al
 r

ep
or

t

T
ow

n
 o

f 
S

u
rf

si
d

e,
 F

lo
ri

d
a 

D
em

og
ra

ph
ic

 a
n

d 
E

co
n

om
ic

 S
ta

ti
st

ic
s 

L
as

t T
en

 C
al

en
da

r 
Y

ea
rs

D
at

a 
S

ou
rc

es
: 

U
n

em
p

lo
ym

en
t 

R
at

e

95



Exhibit XXII

Type of Number of
Employer Business Employees Rank

Beach House Hotel D/B/A Grand Beach Hotel 250            1
Publix Super Market, Inc. Supermarket 103            2
Town of Surfside Government 99              3
Flanigan's Seafood Bar & Grill Restaurant 51              4
Harding Realty Real Estate Agency 31              5
M. Kotler Realty Real Estate Agency 29              6
CVS, LLC. Pharmacy 27              7
Gray & Sons South FL Gold & Silver Exchange Jewelry 18              8
Harbor Pita D/B/A Harbor Grill Restaurant 3                9
The Surf Club Resort -             10

Total Principal Employers 611            

Type of Number of
Employer Business Employees Rank

Public Supermarkets Retail 159 1
Surf Club Resort 132 2
Town of Surfside Government 118 3
CVS Pharmacy Retail 19 4
Best Western Hotels Hotel 35 5
Solara Apartment Rentals 28 6
Flanigans Restaurant 68 7
Wachovia Bank 8
Rolling Pin Bakery Retail 9
Emergency Dental Center Retail 10

Total Principal Employers

Data Source: 
Town records.

7
4

576

Town of Surfside, Florida 
Principal Employers

For the Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 2016 and 2007

2016

2007

7

96



E
xh

ib
it

 X
X

II
I

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

F
u

n
ct

io
n

/p
ro

gr
am

G
en

er
al

 G
ov

er
n

m
en

t
L

eg
is

la
ti

ve
5.

00
   

   
   

 
5.

00
   

   
   

 
5.

00
   

   
   

 
5.

00
   

   
   

  
5.

00
   

   
   

 
5.

00
   

   
   

   
 

5.
00

   
   

   
   

 
5.

00
   

   
   

 
5.

00
   

   
   

   
 

5.
00

   
   

   
   

 
T

ow
n 

A
tt

or
ne

y
1.

00
   

   
   

 
1.

00
   

   
   

 
2.

00
   

   
   

 
2.

00
   

   
   

  
2.

00
   

   
   

 
2.

00
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
   

   
   

 
3.

00
   

   
   

   
 

3.
00

   
   

   
   

 
E

xe
cu

ti
ve

10
.0

0
   

   
  

6.
00

   
   

   
 

5.
00

   
   

   
 

4.
00

   
   

   
  

4.
00

   
   

   
 

4.
00

   
   

   
   

 
5.

00
   

   
   

   
 

5.
00

   
   

   
 

5.
00

   
   

   
   

 
5.

00
   

   
   

   
 

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

up
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
s

-
   

   
   

   
3.

00
   

   
   

 
3.

00
   

   
   

 
3.

00
   

   
   

  
3.

00
   

   
   

 
4.

00
   

   
   

   
 

4.
00

   
   

   
   

 
4.

00
   

   
   

 
4.

00
   

   
   

   
 

4.
00

   
   

   
   

 
T

ow
n 

C
le

rk
1.

00
   

   
   

 
1.

00
   

   
   

 
1.

00
   

   
   

 
2.

00
   

   
   

  
2.

00
   

   
   

 
2.

00
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
   

   
   

 
2.

00
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

   
   

   
   

 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

S
er

vi
ce

s
3.

00
   

   
   

 
3.

00
   

   
   

 
3.

00
   

   
   

 
2.

00
   

   
   

  
3.

00
   

   
   

 
3.

00
   

   
   

   
 

4.
00

   
   

   
   

 
4.

00
   

   
   

 
4.

00
   

   
   

   
 

4.
00

   
   

   
   

 

T
ot

al
 G

en
er

al
 G

ov
er

n
m

en
t

20
.0

0
   

   
19

.0
0

   
   

19
.0

0
   

   
18

.0
0

   
   

 
19

.0
0

   
   

  
20

.0
0

   
   

   
22

.0
0

   
   

   
22

.0
0

   
   

23
.0

0
   

   
   

23
.0

0
   

   
   

 

P
u

bl
ic

 S
af

et
y

P
ub

li
c 

S
af

et
y

42
.0

0
   

   
  

44
.0

0
   

   
  

44
.0

0
   

   
  

34
.5

0
   

   
   

33
.0

0
   

   
  

31
.7

5
   

   
   

  
32

.2
5

   
   

   
  

33
.2

5
   

   
  

34
.2

5
   

   
   

  
34

.2
5

   
   

   
  

M
un

ic
ip

al
 P

ar
ki

ng
2.

00
   

   
   

 
2.

00
   

   
   

 
2.

00
   

   
   

 
2.

50
   

   
   

  
3.

00
   

   
   

 
5.

00
   

   
   

   
 

6.
75

   
   

   
   

 
6.

75
   

   
   

 
6.

75
   

   
   

   
 

6.
75

   
   

   
   

 

T
ot

al
 P

u
bl

ic
 S

af
et

y
44

.0
0

   
   

46
.0

0
   

   
46

.0
0

   
   

37
.0

0
   

   
 

36
.0

0
   

   
  

36
.7

5
   

   
   

39
.0

0
   

   
   

40
.0

0
   

   
41

.0
0

   
   

   
41

.0
0

   
   

   
 

P
u

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
P

ub
li

c 
W

or
ks

9.
00

   
   

   
 

8.
00

   
   

   
 

7.
25

   
   

   
 

5.
25

   
   

   
  

6.
25

   
   

   
 

5.
25

   
   

   
   

 
6.

25
   

   
   

   
 

6.
65

   
   

   
 

6.
65

   
   

   
   

 
6.

65
   

   
   

   
 

W
at

er
/S

ew
er

5.
00

   
   

   
 

5.
00

   
   

   
 

5.
25

   
   

   
 

5.
25

   
   

   
  

5.
25

   
   

   
 

5.
75

   
   

   
   

 
5.

25
   

   
   

   
 

4.
55

   
   

   
 

4.
55

   
   

   
   

 
4.

55
   

   
   

   
 

S
ol

id
 W

as
te

12
.0

0
   

   
  

12
.0

0
   

   
  

12
.2

5
   

   
  

10
.2

5
   

   
   

10
.2

5
   

   
  

10
.2

5
   

   
   

  
10

.2
5

   
   

   
  

11
.2

5
   

   
  

10
.2

5
   

   
   

  
10

.2
5

   
   

   
  

S
to

rm
w

at
er

1.
00

   
   

   
 

1.
00

   
   

   
 

1.
25

   
   

   
 

1.
25

   
   

   
  

1.
25

   
   

   
 

1.
25

   
   

   
   

 
1.

25
   

   
   

   
 

1.
55

   
   

   
 

1.
55

   
   

   
   

 
1.

55
   

   
   

   
 

T
ot

al
 P

u
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

27
.0

0
   

   
26

.0
0

   
   

26
.0

0
   

   
22

.0
0

   
   

 
23

.0
0

   
   

  
22

.5
0

   
   

   
23

.0
0

   
   

   
24

.0
0

   
   

23
.0

0
   

   
   

23
.0

0
   

   
   

 

L
ei

su
re

 S
er

vi
ce

s
L

ei
su

re
 S

er
vi

ce
s

23
.0

0
   

   
  

17
.0

0
   

   
  

17
.0

0
   

   
  

7.
00

   
   

   
  

10
.0

0
   

   
  

10
.7

5
   

   
   

  
11

.3
2

   
   

   
  

11
.3

2
   

   
  

11
.3

2
   

   
   

  
11

.3
2

   
   

   
  

T
ou

ri
sm

1.
00

   
   

   
 

1.
00

   
   

   
 

2.
00

   
   

   
 

1.
00

   
   

   
  

1.
00

   
   

   
 

1.
00

   
   

   
   

 
0.

68
   

   
   

   
 

0.
68

   
   

   
 

0.
68

   
   

   
   

 
0.

68
   

   
   

   
 

L
ib

ra
ry

 S
er

vi
ce

s
3.

00
   

   
   

 
3.

00
   

   
   

 
3.

00
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   

T
ot

al
 L

ei
su

re
 S

er
vi

ce
s

27
.0

0
   

   
  

21
.0

0
   

   
  

22
.0

0
   

   
  

8.
00

   
   

   
  

11
.0

0
   

   
  

11
.7

5
   

   
   

  
12

.0
0

   
   

   
  

12
.0

0
   

   
  

12
.0

0
   

   
   

  
12

.0
0

   
   

   
  

T
ot

al
11

8.
00

   
 

11
2.

00
   

 
11

3.
00

   
 

85
.0

0
   

   
 

89
.0

0
   

   
  

89
.0

0
   

   
   

96
.0

0
   

   
   

98
.0

0
   

   
99

.0
0

   
   

   
99

.0
0

   
   

   
 

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

 C
h

an
ge

 F
ro

m
 P

ri
or

 Y
ea

r
0.

9%
-5

.1
%

0.
9%

-2
4.

8%
4.

7%
0.

0%
7.

9%
2.

1%
1.

0%
0.

0%

D
at

a 
S

ou
rc

e:
T

ow
n 

R
ec

or
ds

T
ow

n
 o

f 
S

u
rf

si
d

e,
 F

lo
ri

d
a 

F
u

ll
-t

im
e 

F
u

n
de

d 
P

os
it

io
n

s 
by

 F
u

n
ct

io
n

/P
ro

gr
am

 
L

as
t T

en
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

rs
 

F
or

 t
h

e 
F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

ed
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 

97



E
xh

ib
it

 X
X

IV

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

F
u

n
ct

io
n

/p
ro

gr
am

32
32

28
27

27
27

27
29

39
39

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
14

15
11

7
9

9
12

6
1

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
18

,1
09

23
,6

40
19

,7
51

16
,5

45
19

,8
00

23
,0

97
   

  
31

,3
37

   
  

20
,3

10
   

   
22

,9
78

   
   

   
  

20
,7

98
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
  

7,
96

8
6,

78
2

5,
75

2
5,

28
9

4,
81

4
   

   
 

5,
47

5
   

   
 

4,
63

7
   

   
  

4,
65

9
   

   
   

   
 

5,
05

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

T
ra

ff
ic

 w
ar

ni
ng

s 
is

su
ed

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
  

4,
33

3
4,

06
7

5,
13

9
   

   
 

3,
86

7
   

   
 

3,
80

8
   

   
  

3,
83

9
   

   
   

   
 

3,
62

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
30

4
6,

86
3

7,
40

7
6,

06
0

9,
83

3
11

,8
84

   
  

19
,6

07
   

  
13

,9
63

   
   

14
,2

04
   

   
   

  
13

,8
61

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
,

,
,

,

1,
17

7
77

9
70

0
92

3
1,

07
3

93
1

   
   

   
 

1,
07

2
1,

03
7

1,
61

8
1,

59
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
$4

0,
04

5
$5

,7
97

$6
,5

59
$1

6,
14

7
$8

4,
80

6
36

,3
92

$ 
  

$7
1,

79
0

$6
9,

50
0

$2
59

,1
52

,4
89

5,
88

4,
37

1,
36

9
$ 

   

15
44

15
47

15
49

15
51

1,
55

1
   

 
1,

64
7

   
   

 
1,

68
0

1,
68

7
1,

68
7

1,
64

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

33
5,

78
9

29
8,

10
2

31
4,

30
4

30
7,

72
3

32
8,

51
9

27
6,

65
0

   
2,

63
1,

27
7

2,
90

3,
21

3
31

5,
64

4,
50

0
33

1,
96

9,
10

0
   

   
   

40
58

40
59

40
59

40
61

40
61

40
61

40
61

40
61

40
61

4,
06

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

13
45

13
46

13
48

13
49

13
44

13
44

13
44

13
44

13
44

1,
34

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
%

10
%

10
%

10
%

10
%

10
%

10
%

10
%

10
%

10
%

5.
22

%
5.

22
%

5.
22

%
5.

22
%

5.
22

%
5.

22
%

5.
22

%
5.

22
%

5.
22

%
5.

22
%

5%
5%

5%
5%

5%
5%

5%
5%

5%
5%

6%
6%

6%
5.

90
%

5.
90

%
5.

90
%

5.
90

%
5.

90
%

5.
90

%
5.

90
%

**
**

**
**

**
**

**
**

**
**

6%
6%

6%
6%

6%
6%

6%
6%

6%
6%

5%
5%

5%
5%

5%
5%

5%
5%

5%
5%

S
u

rf
si

d
e 

B
u

s 
S

er
vi

ce
T

ot
al

 n
um

be
r 

of
 p

as
se

ng
er

s
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

  
16

,1
73

  
18

,8
13

  
21

,5
43

  
12

,9
47

   
  

21
,5

14
   

  
24

,0
83

   
   

28
,8

68
   

   
   

  
33

,0
29

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
A

ve
ra

ge
 n

um
be

r 
of

 p
as

se
ng

er
s 

pe
r 

m
on

th
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

  
1,

34
8

   
 

1,
56

8
   

 
1,

79
5

   
 

1,
07

9
   

   
 

1,
79

2
   

   
 

2,
00

6
   

   
  

2,
40

6
   

   
   

   
 

2,
75

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

T
ot

al
 n

um
be

r 
of

 m
il

es
 d

ri
ve

n
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

  
23

,6
48

  
29

,2
60

  
32

,4
01

  
30

,7
75

   
  

34
,8

05
   

  
34

,9
06

   
   

24
,7

42
   

   
   

  
19

,4
65

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
A

ve
ra

ge
 n

um
be

r 
of

 m
il

es
 d

ri
ve

n 
pe

r 
m

on
th

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
  

1,
97

1
   

 
2,

43
8

   
 

2,
70

0
   

 
2,

56
5

   
   

 
2,

90
0

   
   

 
2,

90
9

   
   

  
2,

06
1

   
   

   
   

 
1,

62
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

C
u

lt
u

re
 a

n
d

 r
ec

re
at

io
n

:
  P

ar
ti

ci
pa

ti
on

:
   

 Y
ou

th
 p

ro
gr

am
s

65
0

   
   

 
40

3
   

   
 

55
1

   
   

 
65

8
   

   
 

96
0

   
   

 
1,

00
5

   
   

 
1,

04
3

   
   

 
2,

82
5

   
   

  
5,

28
0

   
   

   
   

 
1,

42
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

 A
du

lt
 p

ro
gr

am
s

45
5

   
   

 
22

8
   

   
 

23
4

   
   

 
46

3
   

   
 

55
5

   
   

 
78

1
   

   
   

 
1,

23
2

   
   

 
1,

34
9

   
   

  
1,

52
1

   
   

   
   

 
1,

52
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

 S
pe

ci
al

 e
ve

nt
s

2,
99

0
   

 
3,

39
0

   
 

3,
30

0
   

 
3,

34
0

   
 

4,
28

0
   

 
4,

63
0

   
   

 
5,

72
7

   
   

 
7,

73
4

   
   

  
7,

84
0

   
   

   
   

 
4,

57
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

 C
om

m
un

it
y 

C
en

te
r

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
  

17
,5

17
  

29
,0

28
   

  
24

,8
30

   
  

22
,8

26
   

   
24

,7
05

   
   

   
  

22
,3

65
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

N
ot

es
:

D
at

a 
no

t a
va

il
ab

le
 f

or
 it

em
s 

no
t p

re
se

nt
ed

.

D
at

a 
S

ou
rc

e
V

ar
io

us
 T

ow
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

P
u

b
li

c 
sa

fe
ty

:
P

ol
ic

e

T
ow

n
 o

f 
S

u
rf

si
d

e,
 F

lo
ri

d
a

O
pe

ra
ti

n
g 

S
ta

ti
st

ic
s 

by
 F

u
n

ct
io

n
/P

ro
gr

am
L

as
t T

en
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

rs
 

F
is

ca
l Y

ea
r

U
ni

fo
rm

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s
N

on
-u

ni
fo

rm
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s

D
is

pa
tc

he
d 

re
sp

on
se

s
T

ra
ff

ic
 c

it
at

io
ns

 is
su

ed

P
ar

ki
ng

 v
io

la
ti

on
s 

is
su

ed

B
u

il
d

in
g 

p
er

m
it

s:

M
et

er
 s

al
es

 (
in

 m
il

li
on

 g
al

lo
ns

)

P
er

m
it

s 
is

su
ed

E
st

im
at

ed
 v

al
ue

s 
(i

n 
m

il
li

on
s)

U
ti

li
ty

:
M

u
n

ic
ip

al
 w

at
er

 s
ys

te
m

A
ct

iv
e 

w
at

er
 a

cc
ou

nt
s

N
ew

 a
ct

iv
e 

ac
co

un
ts

M
u

n
ic

ip
al

 s
ew

er
 s

ys
te

m
A

ct
iv

e 
ac

co
un

ts
/u

ni
ts

S
ol

id
 w

as
te

 s
er

vi
ce

s
A

ct
iv

e 
ac

co
un

ts

G
en

er
al

 g
ov

er
n

m
en

t:
T

ax
 r

at
es

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

se
rv

ic
e

G
as

C
ab

le
 te

le
vi

si
on

   
U

ti
li

ty
 s

er
vi

ce
s:

E
le

ct
ri

c
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
se

rv
ic

e
G

as
   

F
ra

n
ch

is
es

:
E

le
ct

ri
c

98



E
xh

ib
it

 X
X

V

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

A
re

a:
L

an
d 

ex
cl

ud
in

g 
ai

rp
or

t (
sq

. m
il

es
)

0.
5

0.
5

0.
5

0.
5

0.
5

0.
5

0.
5

0.
5

0.
5

0.
5

W
at

er
0.

14
0.

14
0.

14
0.

14
0.

14
0.

14
0.

14
0.

14
0.

14
0.

14

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
:

P
av

ed
 s

tr
ee

ts
10

10
10

10
10

10
25

25
25

25
Si

de
w

al
ks

1 
m

il
e

1 
m

il
e

1 
m

il
e

1 
m

il
e

1 
m

il
e

1 
m

il
e

6 
m

il
e

6 
m

il
e

6 
m

il
e

6 
m

il
e

C
an

al
s 

&
 w

at
er

w
ay

s
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
 

- 
- 

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
St

or
m

 D
ra

in
ag

e 
(c

at
ch

 b
as

in
s)

38
8

38
8

38
8

38
8

38
8

38
8

38
8

38
8

38
8

38
8

T
ow

n 
ow

ne
d 

st
re

et
 li

gh
ts

37
37

37
37

37
37

37
37

37
37

FP
&

L
 o

w
ne

d 
st

re
et

 li
gh

ts
29

3
29

3
29

3
29

3
29

3
29

3
29

3
29

3
29

3
29

3

P
ub

li
c 

Sa
fe

ty
:

Fi
re

 S
ta

ti
on

s
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
 

- 
- 

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
P

ol
ic

e 
St

at
io

ns
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1

R
ec

re
at

io
n:

P
ub

li
c 

B
ea

ch
 (

m
il

es
)

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

M
un

ic
ip

al
 P

ar
ks

3
3

3
3

3
3

3
3

3
3

M
un

ic
ip

al
 S

w
im

m
in

g 
P

oo
l

1
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

 
2

1
1

1
R

ec
re

at
io

n 
A

cr
es

 (
w

it
ho

ut
-w

it
h 

B
ea

ch
)

53
-9

0
53

-9
0

53
-9

0
53

-9
0

53
-9

0
53

-9
0

53
-9

0
53

-9
0

53
-9

0
53

-9
0

C
om

m
un

it
y 

C
en

te
r

1
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

1
1

1
1

1
1

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

 
- 

-  
1

1

M
un

ic
i p

al
 W

at
er

/S
ew

er
 S

ys
te

m
:

W
at

er
 m

ai
ns

 (
m

il
es

)
15

.7
15

.7
15

.7
15

.7
15

.7
15

.7
25

25
25

25
R

eu
se

 w
at

er
 m

ai
ns

 (
m

il
es

)
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
 

- 
-  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
Fi

re
 h

yd
ra

nt
s

84
84

84
84

84
84

84
84

84
84

Fi
re

 h
yd

ra
nt

s 
(r

eu
se

 w
at

er
)

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

 
- 

-  
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

G
ra

vi
ty

 S
ew

er
 (

m
il

es
)

9.
25

9.
25

9.
25

9.
25

9.
25

9.
25

9.
25

9.
25

9.
25

9.
25

W
as

te
w

at
er

 f
or

ce
 m

ai
n 

(m
il

es
)

0.
3

0.
3

0.
3

0.
3

0.
3

0.
3

1
1

1
1

W
as

te
w

at
er

 li
ft

 s
ta

ti
on

s
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2

M
un

ic
ip

al
 P

ar
ki

ng
:

6
6

6
6

6
6

7
7

8
8

57
2

57
2

57
2

57
2

57
2

57
2

57
2

57
2

62
9

62
9

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

29
29

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

50
50

M
et

er
ed

 P
ay

 S
ta

ti
on

s
Si

ng
le

 S
pa

ce
 M

et
er

s

T
ow

n 
of

 S
u

rf
si

d
e,

 F
lo

ri
d

a 
C

ap
it

al
 A

ss
et

 S
ta

ti
st

ic
s 

by
 F

un
ct

io
n/

P
ro

gr
am

 
L

as
t T

en
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

rs
 

P
ar

ki
ng

 lo
ts

P
ay

 S
ta

ti
on

 P
ar

ki
ng

 S
pa

ce
s

F
un

ct
io

n/
P

ro
gr

am

T
en

ni
s 

C
ou

rt
s

F
is

ca
l Y

ea
r 

99







Marcum LLP n One Southeast Third Avenue n Suite 1100 n Miami, Florida 33131 n Phone 305.995.9600 n Fax 305.995.9601 n www.marcumllp.com

 

100 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED 

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 

To the Honorable Mayor, Town Commission and Town Manager 
Town of Surfside, Florida 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the Town of Surfside, Florida (the Town) as of and for the fiscal 
year ended September 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon 
dated June 30, 2017. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s 
internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the Town’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  



 

101 

Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Town’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances 
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Town’s internal control or compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town’s internal control 
and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
Miami, FL 
June 30, 2017 
 





Marcum LLP n One Southeast Third Avenue n Suite 1100 n Miami, Florida 33131 n Phone 305.995.9600 n Fax 305.995.9601 n www.marcumllp.com

 

102 

MANAGEMENT LETTER IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE RULES OF THE 
AUDITOR GENERAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA 

 
To the Honorable Mayor, Town Commission and Town Manager 
Town of Surfside, Florida 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the Town of Surfside, Florida (the Town), as of and for the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2016, and have issued our report thereon dated June 30, 2017. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor 
General. 
 
Other Reports  
 
We have issued our Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards; and Independent Accountants’ Report on an 
examination conducted in accordance with AICPA Professional Standards, regarding compliance 
requirements in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.  Disclosures in those 
reports, which are dated June 30, 2017, should be considered in conjunction with this management 
letter. 
 
Prior Audit Findings 
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not 
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding 
annual financial audit report.  There were no recommendations made in the preceding annual financial 
audit report.   
 
Official Title and Legal Authority 
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal 
authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in 
this management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.  The Town was 
established by the Town’s charter, which was adopted under the provisions of Chapter 279.14 Laws of 
Florida in 1951.  There are no component units related to the Town. 
 



 

103 

 
 
Financial Condition 
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require that we apply appropriate 
procedures and report the results of our determination as to whether or not the Town has met one or 
more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and identification of the 
specific condition(s) met.  In connection with our audit, we determined that the Town did not meet any 
of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes. 
 
Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.c. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial 
condition assessment procedures.  It is management’s responsibility to monitor the Town’s financial 
condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by 
management and the review of financial information provided by same.  This assessment was done as 
of the fiscal year end. 
 
Annual Financial Report 
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require that we apply 
appropriate procedures and report the results of our determination as to whether the annual financial 
report for the Town for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016, filed with the Florida Department of 
Financial Services pursuant to Section 218.32(1)(a), Florida Statutes, is in agreement with the annual 
financial audit report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016.  In connection with our audit, we 
determined that these two reports were in agreement. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management letter 
any recommendations to improve financial management.  In connection with our audit, we did not 
have any such recommendations. 
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address noncompliance with 
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have 
occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which warrants 
the attention of those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such 
findings. 
 
Purpose of this Letter 
 
Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing 
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida 
Auditor General, Federal, State and other granting agencies, the Honorable Mayor, Town Commission, 
and applicable management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. 
 
 
 
Miami, FL 
June 30, 2017 



Marcum LLP n One Southeast Third Avenue n Suite 1100 n Miami, Florida 33131 n Phone 305.995.9600 n Fax 305.995.9601 n www.marcumllp.com

 

104 

 
 
 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 218.415 FLORIDA STATUTES 

 
 
To the Honorable Mayor, Town Commission and Town Manager 
Town of Surfside, Florida 
 
 
We have examined the Town of Surfside’s (the Town) compliance with Section 218.415 Florida 
Statutes for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. Management is responsible for the 
Town’s compliance with the specified requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on the Town’s compliance based on our examination. 
 
Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the examination to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Town complied, in all 
material respects, with the specified requirements referenced above. An examination involves 
performing procedures to obtain evidence about whether the Town complied with the specified 
requirements. The nature, timing, and extent of the procedures selected depend on our judgment, 
including an assessment of the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error. 
We believe that the evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 
 
Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the Town’s compliance with 
specified requirements. 
 
In our opinion, the Town complied, in all material respects, with Section 218.415 Florida 
Statutes for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. 
 
This report is intended to describe our testing of compliance with Section 218.415 Florida 
Statutes and it is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
Miami, FL 
June 30, 2017 
 
 





 

 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION  
LOAN NO. WW131710 

 
SCHEDULE OF LOAN 

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES – BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
 

FOR THE PERIOD FROM AUGUST 24, 2012 
(DATE OF LOAN INCEPTION) THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

 



 

 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION LOAN NO. WW131710 
 

SCHEDULE OF LOAN REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES – BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
 

FOR THE PERIOD FROM AUGUST 24, 2012 
(DATE OF LOAN INCEPTION) THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

 
 

CONTENTS 
 

 
Independent Auditors’ Report 1-2 
  
Schedule of Loan Revenue and Expenditures – Budget and Actual –  
   Loan No. WW131710 

 
3 

  
Notes to Schedule of Loan Revenue and Expenditures – Budget to Actual 4-5 
  
Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting   
   and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial   
   Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 6-7 
 
 
 
 



Marcum LLP n One Southeast Third Avenue n Suite 1100 n Miami, Florida 33131 n Phone 305.995.9600 n Fax 305.995.9601 n www.marcumllp.com

 

1 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor, Town Commission and Town Manager  
Town of Surfside, Florida 
 
 
Report on the Schedule 
 
We have audited the accompanying schedule of loan revenue and expenditures – budget and 
actual (the schedule) of the Town of Surfside, Florida (the Town), State of Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection (FDEP) Loan No. WW131710 for the period from August 24, 2012 
(date of loan inception) through September 30, 2015.  This schedule is the responsibility of the 
Town’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this schedule based on our 
audit. 
 
Management's Responsibility for the Schedule 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of this schedule in 
accordance with the basis of accounting prescribed by Chapter 62-503, Florida Administrative 
Code and the State of Florida Department of Environmental Protection; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this schedule based on our audit.  We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the schedule is free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the schedule.  The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the schedule, whether due to 
fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 
to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the schedule in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the schedule. 
 
 



 

2 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the schedule of loan revenue and expenditures – budget and actual referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the loan revenue and expenditures – budget and 
actual of the Town’s State of Florida Department of Environmental Protection Loan No. 
WW131710 for the period from August 24, 2012 (date of loan inception) through September 30, 
2015. 
 
Emphasis of a Matter 
 
We draw attention to Note 2 of the schedule which describes the basis of accounting.  The 
schedule is prepared on the basis of accounting prescribed by the Chapter 62-503, Florida 
Administrative Code and State of Florida Department of Environmental Protection in order to 
comply with the loan agreement between the Town and FDEP.  Our opinion is not modified with 
respect to this matter. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 
30, 2017, on our consideration of the Town’s internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements 
and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and 
should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 
 
 
 
Miami, FL 
June 30, 2017 
 



Budget (1) Actual
Revenue

State of Florida loan proceeds 9,298,806$     9,298,806$      

Expenditures
Construction and demolition 9,095,000      9,095,000        
Capitalized interest 21,906           21,906            
Loan service fee 181,900         181,900          

Total Expenditures 9,298,806      9,298,806        

Excess of Revenue over Expenditures --$                   --$                  

(1) Source: Amendment #2 dated December 3, 2014

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION LOAN NO. WW131710

(DATE OF LOAN INCEPTION) THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

SCHEDULE OF LOAN REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE PERIOD FROM AUGUST 24, 2012

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.

3



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION LOAN NO. WW131710 
 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF LOAN REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES –  
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

 

FOR THE PERIOD FROM AUGUST 24, 2012 
(DATE OF LOAN INCEPTION) THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

 
 

4 

NOTE 1 - GENERAL 
 

The Town of Surfside, Florida (the Town) was incorporated on May 19, 1935. The Town of 
Surfside’s Charter was adopted under the provisions of Chapter 27914, Laws of Florida, 
1951. The Town is governed by an elected five-member Town Commissioners and operates 
under a commissioner-manager form of government. The Town provides services to its 
approximately 6,000 residents in many areas including general government and 
administrative services, public safety (police), physical environment, solid waste collection, 
transportation (maintenance of roads and streets), culture and recreation, tourism 
development, water/sewer and stormwater utilities. 

 
LOAN NO. WW131710 

 
The projects financed by this loan consist of furnishing all labor, materials, and equipment 
to construct the infrastructure rehabilitation (sewer & stormwater) project in accordance 
with the plans and specifications accepted by the State of Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection (FDEP) for the “Infrastructure Rehabilitation Project” contract.  
The loan has been identified as state financial assistance funded through the FDEP. 
 

 
NOTE 2 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 

The schedule of loan revenue and expenditures – budget and actual is prepared on the basis 
of accounting prescribed by Chapter 62-503, Florida Administrative Code, and the State of 
Florida Department of Environmental Protection in order to comply with the loan 
agreement described above between the Town and FDEP.  Under this basis, loan proceeds 
are recognized as revenue when monies are received.  Expenditures are recognized when 
the liabilities are incurred.  The schedule of loan revenue and expenditures – budget and 
actual cover the projects described in the loan agreement and is not representative of the 
Town taken as a whole. 

 
 
NOTE 3 - CONTINGENCY 
 

The loan revenue amount from the FDEP is subject to audit and adjustment.  If any 
expenditures are disallowed by the FDEP as a result of such an audit, any claim for 
reimbursement to the FDEP would become a liability of the Town.  In the opinion of 
management, all loan expenditures are in compliance with the terms of the loan agreement 
and Chapter 62-503 of the Florida Administrative Code. 



TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION LOAN NO. WW131710 
 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF LOAN REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES –  
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

 

FOR THE PERIOD FROM AUGUST 24, 2012 
(DATE OF LOAN INCEPTION) THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

 
 

5 

NOTE 4 - BUDGET 
 

Budget amounts, including all amendments, are required to be approved by FDEP. 
 
 
NOTE 5 - LOAN DEBT SERVICE RESERVE 
 

The loan agreement requires a loan debt service reserve to be established. The reserve was 
established in the amount of $243,000 for sewer and $81,000 for stormwater.  
 
 

NOTE 6 – RENEWAL AND REPLACEMENT RESERVE  
 

The loan agreement requires a renewal and replacement reserve to be established at 1% of 
the net capital assets of sewer and stormwater.   This reserve has been established. 

 
 
NOTE 7 - CAPITALIZED INTEREST 
 

Capitalized interest represents a finance charge that accrues at the financing rate on loan 
proceeds from the time of disbursement until six months before the first semi-annual loan 
payment is due.  Capitalized interest is financed as part of the loan principal. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Marcum LLP n One Southeast Third Avenue n Suite 1100 n Miami, Florida 33131 n Phone 305.995.9600 n Fax 305.995.9601 n www.marcumllp.com

 

6 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED 

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
To the Honorable Mayor, Town Commission and Town Manager  
Town of Surfside, Florida 
 
 
We have audited the schedule of loan revenue and expenditures – budget and actual (the 
Schedule) of the Town of Surfside, Florida (the Town), State of Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection Loan No. WW131710 for the period from August 24, 2012 (date of 
loan inception) through September 30, 2015 and have issued our report thereon dated June 30, 
2017.  We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the schedule, we considered the Town’s internal control 
over financial reporting as it pertains to the schedule (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 
the schedule, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s 
internal control as it pertains to the schedule.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Town’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s schedule will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
 



7 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town’s schedule is free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of schedule amounts.  However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or 
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report  

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s 
internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Miami, FL 
June 30, 2017 



9B































9C

























9D





9E






	1H - Safe Harbour - Creating a Walkable Surfside
	3A - Minutes
	3B - Town Manager's Report
	3C - Town Attorney's Report
	3D - Committee Reports
	5A - Town Website
	5B - Four Year Staggered Terms for the Town Commission and Retain Two Year Term for Mayor
	9A - Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2016.
	9B - Public Information Program
	9C - Parking Structure
	9D - Artificial Grass
	9E - Modifying Measurment of Height to Prepare for Sea Level Rise



